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General information

Rabobank Group Rabobank is an international financial services provider operating on the basis of cooperative

principles whose core comprises 147 local Rabobanks with 1010 branches in the Netherlands Rabobank comprises

the local cooperative Rabobanks in the Netherlands the central organisation Coöperatieve Centrale Raiffeisen

Boerenleenbank B.A Rabobank Nederland and number of specialised subsidiaries Rabobank provides services

in the form of retail banking wholesale banking asset management leasing and real estate services throughout

the world

Rabobank puts the common interests of people and communities first In the Netherlands the emphasis is on

being an all-finance service provider Internationally Rabobank focuses on the food agri business Rabobank

operates in Rabobank operates in 48 countries and employs some 59000 FTEs

Rabobank Nederland is cooperative whose capital is divided into shares It is largely the product of merger on

December 1972 of the two largest Dutch cooperative entities at the time Rabobank Nederland has its registered

office in Amsterdam and is established under Dutch law for an indefinite period Rabobank Nederland is registered

at the Trade Registry of the Utrecht Chamber of Commerce under number 30046259

Membership of Rabobank Nederland is open to cooperative banks whose Articles of Association have been

approved by Rabobank Nederland

The activities of Rabobank Nederland can be roughly divided into two categories First its role as central bank for

the local Rabobanks in which role it encourages the establishment continuation and development of cooperative

banks and its role as central bank for its members in which role it concludes agreements with members negotiates

members rights and undertakes obligations on behalf of its members insofar as these obligations have the same

consequences for all members Second Rabobank Nederlands own banking activities which supplement and are

independent of the activities of the local Rabobanks

The local Rabobanks are part of an organisation of cooperative entities incorporated under Dutch law the majority

of the members are clients At 31 December 2009 the local Rabobanks had approximately 1.8 million members

Address

Croeselaan 18

RO Box 17100

3500 HG Utrecht

The Netherlands

Internet

www.rabobank.com/annualreports

General information



Consolidated statement of financial position

At 31

December

Note 2009

At 31

December

2008

16565

35641

2761

91.22

3909.1

.433870

33349

418

4056

3736

61.24

17 1363

240

1174

26 .1467

.8721

607698

1.05

33776

11576

7896

66759

426283

3.1665

49.7

..3455
3728

.5870

1038

.298

16i9

.1.0555

61 21.20

In millions of euros

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

D.ue.from.other.b.an.ks

Trading fln.ancial.assets .......

Other.nancia.assets..atfair.vaiue.through profit.and.ioss

Derivative.firian.c 10

Loans to.customers 11

AvailablefaNsale 6nancial.assets .12

Held-tomaturLty.financial.assets 13

Investments in associates 14

nta ngible assets 15

Property and equipment 16

Investment properties

Current tax assets

Deferred tax assets 25

Ernployee.benefits

Other.assets 18

Totalassets
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At31 At31

December December

Note 2009 2008In millions of euros

Liabilities..........................................................

Due to.other banks ................19 22429 23891

Due to customers 20 286338 .304214

Debtse.curiti.es.irs.issue 2.1 1.7 752 1.35779

D.erivative.financial.instrum.ents.and other.trade liabilities 48765 77230

Other.deb.ts 22 8083 8644

.Other.financiai.liabilities.at.fair..value.th.rough..profit an.d.loss 23 27319 2479.7

Provisions 24 1095 875

Current tax liabilities....... ..............................................468 ......... 227

Deferred tax liabilities.... ................................. ....................................... ...................25..... 489 .... 474

.............. 500...... 37.1

Subordinated..debt 2362 .......... 2159

Total.liabilIties .......................................... ................. 5.69600 57866.1

Equity of Rab.obank.Nederland and local.Rabobanks....... ...... 29 .221.78 .20074
RabobankMember.Certfficates iss.ued.by.a..group company........................ ....... .. ... .............. ............. .......30 ............ 6315...... 6236

Capital.Securities.and.Trust.Preferred.Securities.ll1..to ............ 61.82 ........... 3510

Non-con.trolling.interests ........... 3423...... 3639

38098 .33459

Total.equity.and.liabilities



Consolidated statement of income

For the year ended 31 December

In millions of euros Note 2009 2008

Iriterestincorne 33 19766 2245

Interest expense 33 .11720 18728

Interest 33 8046 851.7

Eee.and connmission.income 34 3015 400

Fee.and.cornrnission.expense 34 440 511

Fees.a.nd.com.rn.ission 34 2575 2889

incorne.fro.rn.asso.ciates 35 592 26.

Net incorne.from.financial..assets .an.d liablliti.es.at.fa.ir.valu.e.throug.h.profi.t.a.nd.loss 36 226 i.l 55

.Gainson.ava 12 138 51

Other.income 1478

income .11867 ...... 11652

Staff costs 38 3869 4290

Other.adrninistr.ative.expens.es 39 2908 2796

D.epreciation.and arnortisation 40 527 525

Opera.ting..expenses 7304 761.1

Value.adj.ustmen.ts .41.1959 .1189

Operating..profit.before.taxatior 2604 2852

Income tax..expense .42 ....... 316 98

Net profit 2288 2754

Of.which.attributable.to.Rab.obank.Ne.derland.and.Iocal.Rab.obanks 29 1475 089

Of which.attributable to holders of Rabobank.Member.Certiflcates 30 318 316

O.f.which.attributable.to.Capital.Securities 3.1 308 94

Of.w.hich.attributable.ta.Trust.Preferred.Securities.IlI..to..VI 3.1 78 1.00

Of which attributable to.noncontroiIing interests
......... 32 ..... 109 1.55

Net.profitfor.the.year ..... ...... ..... ....... .......... ....... ...... ...... ....... 2288 .. 2754

See the notes to the consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

Forthe year ended 31 December

In millions of euros 2009 2008

Net profit 2288 754

Arisin.g.in.the.period.after taxation

Foreign currency.translation reserves

Currency translation differences 45 337

Revaiuationreserve Available-for-sale financial assets

Chartgas..in.associates 359 416

Fair value changes .. 490 1482

Arnortisation of reclassified assets 210 19

Transfe.rr.ed.to.proflt.o.r.loss 1.89 392

Revaluation reserve Associates

Fair..value.changes 29 .1

Revaiua.tion.reserve .Cash.flow.hedges

Fair.value.changes 32

Non-controlling interests.

Currency.translation..differences 37 56

Changes in AFS.revauation reserve 12 472

Issue of Capital.Securities

Costs.of.issu.e.of.Capital.Secu.rities .1.3 12

Total.o.ther.cornprehensi.ve.income 502 1241

Total comprehensive income 2790 15.13

Of which attributableto Rabobank Nederland and iocal.Rabobanks 2002 32.0

O.f which attributable to holders of.Rabobank Member Certificates ....... ..... 318 ... 316

.Of.which.attributable.to
Capital.Se.curiti.es 308 94

Of which.attributable.to Trust.Preferred Securities.lll toVl 78 100

O.f.which.attributable.to.noncon.trol1ing interests 84...............683

Total.comnprehensive .i.nco me 2790 1513



Consolidated statement of changes in equity

Equity of Rabobank Rabobank Capital Non

Nederland and Member Securities controlling

In millions of euros _local Rabobanks Certificates and TPS interests Total

At.1.January200a 19684 6233 2779 2713 409

Total.co.rnprehensive.income 320 316 1.94 683 1513

Payment on Rabobank Member Certificates Trust Preferred

.. S.ecurities.IIi .to.Vl.TPS.and..Capital.Sec.urities

Issue of..Capital.Securities

Share..premium .1.1.5

Other 1.85

At.3.1..December.2008 20074

At.i.January 2.009 20074

Total comprehensive income 2002

Payment on Rabobank Member Certificates Trust Preferred

.. Secu.rities.lIi.to.V.l..TPS.and..Capital.Securi.ties

Issue.of.Rabo.bank.Mernber..Ce.rtificate.s an.d.Capital.S.ecurities

Purchase of.Trust.Preferred Securities ill

Other 102

At3.1..December.2009 221.78 6315 61.82 3423 38098

3.1.6

154

151

.. 6236

6236

318

.194

835

.104

3510

3510

386

243

3639

3639

84

5.1.0

.835

39

1.73

33459

33459

2790

3.1.8

79

386

31.60

527

39 300

704

3239

527

.159
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Consolidated statement of cash flows

For the year ended 31 December

In millions of euros Note 2009 2008

Cash.flows from operatin.g activities..... ........ ................................

Operating profit before.taxation .......... 2604 2852

Adjusted for.... .....

Non-cash iternsrecognised in profit an.d.Ioss ................. ....

D.epre.ciation.and.arnortisation 40 527 525

Value.adjustrnents 1959 11.89

Result on sale.of property.and equipment 1.4 12

Share.of.pro.fit.of.associates 35 5.92 84

Fair value resuits on.financial.assets.and liabilities at fair.value through.profit and loss 36 226 1155

Net result.on.available-for-sale financial assets .12 .... .138 .5.1

Ne.t.change.in operating assets

Due from and.d.ueto.other.banks 719 3346 29.99

Trading financial assets. ............. 26.1.3 1.7603

Derivative finandal.instrurnents 10 27668 40670

N.et.cha.nge.in.non-trading.financial.as.sets.at.fair..value.th.rough profit.and.loss 2949 ......... 773.1

Loans to.customers 1.1 8856 533.1.5

Dividends.received.fro.m.associa.tes.and.financial.assets 54 68

Net .change.in.Iiabillties.relaring.to .operatin.g.a.ctivities

D.eri.vative.financi.al.instruments.and.other.trade.jiabilities 10 28464 461.33

D.ue..to.custo.mers 20 1.7875 27604

Debt securities in issue ..... ........ 2.1 .35973 ... 6033

O.therdeb.ts 22 562 1874

income tax paid 216 7.89

Other changes 932
._12950

Net cash flow fro.rn.operating.activities 10216 ......... 2253

Cash.flows from investing activities...

Acquisition..of.associates net of.cash.and.cash.equ.ivale.nts acquired 14 425 1.81

D.is.posal.of.associates.net.of.cashand.cash..eq.uivalents

Acquisition of.property.and.equiprnent.and.invesirnent.properlies 1.6.1 2020 638

Proceeds.from.sale..of.property.and..equiprnent 53.1 893

Acquisition of avaiiable-.fo.r-sale.financial.assets.and.hel.d-to-maturity.financial.assets 1213 25652 1.65.08.

Proceeds from sale and repayment of available-for-sale financial assets and held-to-maturity

financial assets 2452.1 9889

Net cash flow from investing activities ..... ...... ............ ........ 3042 .... 2456

Cash fiows.frorn financing activities .........

Proceeds.frorn.issue.of.Capi.tal..Secur.ities.and.RabobankMe.mbe.r.Certi.ficates 3.03.1 3239 823

Proceeds.frorn issue of .subordinated.debt 27 1000

7.04 5.1.0.

Purcliase.of.Trust.Preferred.S.ecuritjes 273.1 1249

Repayment of.and proceeds.from issue of.subordinated.debt 27 ...... 46

N.et.cash.flo.w.fro.m.nan.cing.activ.i.ties 2286 267

Net change.in cash and cash equivalents ..... 9460 ... 4976

Cash and .cash..eq.uivalents.at.be.girining.of.year 1.05 2129

Cash.and.cash.equivalentsat.end of year .. ..... .16565 .7105

Thecathf1ows.fro.rn lnterest.ar.e included.in the..ne.t.cas.h.flowfrorn.op.erating.actMties

interestincome 20503 27088

l.nter.estexpense 12289 18219



Notes to the consolidated

financial statements

Basis of consolidation

Rabobank Group Rabobank comprises the local Rabobanks Members in the Netherlands the central cooperative

Rabobank Nederland and other specialised subsidiaries Together they form Rabobank Group Rabobank Nederland

advises the Members and assists them in the provision of their services Rabobank Nederland also advises

the Members on behalf of De Nederlandsche Bank the Dutch Central Bank Rabobanks cooperative structure has

several executive levels each with its own duties and responsibilities

In IFRS terms Rabobank Nederland exercises control over the local Rabobanks

The consolidated financial statements of Rabobank include the financial information of Rabobank Nederland and

that of the Members and the other group companies

Accounting policies

The main accounting policies used in preparing these consolidated financial statements are explained below

2.1 General

The consolidated financial statements of Rabobank have been prepared in accordance with International Financial

Reporting Standards IFRS as adopted by the European Union In 2009 Rabobank applied IFRS IFRIC 13 and IFRIC

14 and the amendments to lAS IFRS and lAS 23 In addition the improvements to the IFRSs have been applied

IFRS 8Operating Segments applies to financial years commencing on or after January 2009 It addresses the

manner in which segments should be defined for financial reporting purposes Furthermore the standard requires

disclosure of the products and services which the company offers the geographical areas in which the company

operates and its principal clients This standard does not affect the manner in which segment information is presen

ted

IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes applies to financial years commencing on or after January 2009

Customer loyalty programmes are used by entities to provide customers with incentives to buy their goods or servi

ces If customer buys goods or services the entity grants the customer award credits often described as points

IFRIC 13 requires entities to recognise these points as separate component of the sale transaction Since Rabobank

does not operate any customer loyalty programmes IFRIC 13 does not apply

IFRIC 14The Limit on Defined Benefit Asset Minimum Funding Requirements and their Interactionapplies to

financial years commencing on or after January 2009 IFRIC 14 provides further guidance with respect to the

assessment of the restriction under lAS 19 on the surplus that can be recognised as receivable In addition IFRIC

14 explains how contractual funding requirements or funding requirements under the Articles of Association could

influence pension asset or pension liability This interpretation has no effect on results or equity

The amendment to lAS Presentation of Financial Statementsapplies to financial years commencing on or after

January 2009 The adjustment aims to enable users of financial reports to analyse and compare the information in

the financial statements more effectively This standard affects the presentation the statement of comprehensive

income has been added

The amendment to IFRS applies to financial years commencing on or after January 2009 The aim of the

adjustment is to provide more extensive disclosure of valuation methods used for financial instruments and

liquidity risk The amendment results in additional disclosure but does not affect results or equity

The amendment to lAS 23 Borrowing Costsç applies to financial years commencing on or after January 2009

The amendment results in the requirement for companies to capitalise borrowing costs that are directly attributable

10
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to the acquisition construction or production of qualifying asset as part of the costs of that asset Directly

recognising such borrowing costs in profit or loss is no longer allowed This amendment does not significantly

affect the consolidated financial statements

The most important new or amended standards and interpretations issued by the IASB that apply to Rabobank

with effect from 2009 are IFRS Business Combinations amended and IFRS Financial Instruments

Rabobank does not expect the amended IFRS to have material impact on its consolidated financial statements

The impact of IFRS is currently being assessed

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the basis of the accounting policies outlined

below The remaining assets and liabilities are accounted for on historical cost basis unless otherwise stated

Unless otherwise stated all amounts in these financial statements are in millions of euros

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and presentation

With effect from January 2009 Rabobank capitalises borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition

construction or production of qualifying asset as part of that assets cost Other borrowing costs are expensed as

incurred

Insofar as other insights implied the need for reclassifications the comparative figures have been restated

2.1.2 Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect

the amounts reported for assets and liabilities the reporting of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the

financial statements as well as the amounts reported for income and expenses during the reporting period

The situations that are assessed based on available financial data and information mainly concern the determination

of the provision for doubtful debts the fair value of assets and liabilities and impairments Although management

based their estimates on the most careful assessment of the current circumstances and activities the actual results

might deviate from these estimates

2.2 Group financial statements

2.2.1 Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries and other entities including special purpose entities over which Rabobank exercises control directly or

indirectly are consolidated The assets liabilities and results of these entities are consolidated in full Subsidiaries

are consolidated from the date on which Rabobank obtains control and cease to be consolidated on the date that

this control ends All intra-group transactions balances and unrealised gains and losses on transactions between

Rabobank Group entities are eliminated for consolidation purposes

Internal liability cross-guarantee system

number of corporate entities forming part of Rabobank Group stand surety for one another within the meaning

of the Financial Supervision Act This arrangement stipulates that in the event of participating entity not having

sufficient financial resources to meet its obligations to creditors the other participating entities have to provide

sufficient financial resources to the aforementioned entity so that it is able to meet these obligations

The participating entities are

The local member banks of Coöperatieve Centrale Raiffeisen-Boerenleenbank BA

Cooperatieve Centrale Raiffeisen-Boerenleenbank B.A Rabobank Nederland Amsterdam

Rabohypotheekbank N.y Amsterdam

Raiffeisenhypotheekbank N.y Amsterdam

Schretlen Co N.y Amsterdam

De Lage Landen International B.V Eindhoven

De Lage Landen Financiering B.V Eindhoven

De Lage Landen Trade Finance B.V Eindhoven

De Lage Landen Financial Services B.V Eindhoven

2.2.2 Joint ventures

The interests of Rabobank in entities where control is shared are consolidated proportionally With this method

Rabobank includes its share of the income and expenses assets and liabilities and cash flows of the various joint

ventures in the relevant items of its financial statements

11
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2.2.3 Investments in associates

Investments in associates are recognised in accordance with the equity method With this method Rabobanks

share of the profits and losses of an associate subject to Rabobanks accounting policies after the acquisition is

recognised in profit and loss and its share of the changes in reserves after the acquisition is recognised in reserves

The cumulative changes after acquisition are adjusted to the cost of the investment

Associates are entities over which Rabobank has significant influence and in which it usually holds between 20%

and 50% of the voting rights but over which it does not exercise control Unrealised gains on transactions between

Rabobank and its associates are eliminated in proportion to the size of Rabobanks interest in the associates

Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction indicates that an impairment loss should be recognised

on the asset transferred Investments by Rabobank in associates include the goodwill acquired If Rabobanks share

in the losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate Rabobank will not recognise any more

losses of the associate unless Rabobank has given undertakings or made payments on behalf of this associate

2.3 Derivative financial instruments and hedging

2.3.1 General

Derivative financial instruments generally comprise foreign currency contracts currency and interest rate futures

forward rate agreements currency and interest rate swaps and currency and interest rate options written as well as

acquired Derivative financial instruments might be traded on an exchange or as over-the-counter OTC instruments

between Rabobank and client All derivative financial instruments are recognised at fair value The fair value is

determined using listed market prices prices offered by traders cash-flow discounting models and option valuation

models based on current market prices and contracted prices for the underlying instruments as well as the time

value of money yield curves and the volatility of the underlying assets and liabilities All derivative financial

instruments are included under assets if their fair value is positive and under liabilities if their fair value is negative

Derivative financial instruments embedded in other financial instruments are treated separately if their risks and

characteristics are not closely related to those of the underlying derivative contract and this contract is not classified

at fair value through profit and loss

2.3.2 Instruments not used for hedging

Realised and unrealised gains and losses on derivative financial instruments classified by Rabobank as held for

trading are recognised underTrading income

2.3.3 Hedging instruments

Rabobank also uses derivative financial instruments as part of statement of financial position control to manage its

interest rate risks credit risks and foreign currency risks Rabobank makes use of the possibilities provided by the EU

through the carve-out in lAS 39 The carve-out facilitates the application of fair value portfolio hedge accounting to

certain positions Buckets are used to measure effectiveness

On the date of concluding derivative contract Rabobank can designate certain derivative financial instruments as

hedge of the fair value of an asset or liability in the statement of financial position fair value hedge as

hedge of future cash flows attributable to an asset or liability in the statement of financial position an expected

transaction or non-current liability cash flow hedge or as hedge of net investment in foreign entity

net investment hedge Hedge accounting can be applied for derivative financial instruments designated in this

manner if certain criteria are met These criteria include

Formal documentation of the hedging instrument the hedged item the objective of the hedge the hedging

strategy and the hedge relationship before applying hedge accounting

The hedge is expected to be very effective in range of 80% to 125% in offsetting changes in the hedged items

fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risks during the entire reporting period and

The hedge is continuously very effective from inception onwards

Changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments that are designated as fair value hedges and are effective

in relation to the hedged risks are recognised in profit and loss together with the corresponding changes in the fair

value of the assets or liabilities hedged against the risks in question

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting according to the fair value hedge model any

adjustment to the carrying amount of hedged interest-bearing financial instrument is amortised through profit

and loss until the end of the hedged period Any adjustment to the carrying amount of hedged equity instrument

is recognised under equity until disposal of the equity instrument

Changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges

and that are highly effective in relation to the hedged risks are recognised in the hedging reserve included under

equity see note 10 The non-effective part of the changes in the fair values of the derivative financial instruments

is recognised in profit and loss If the forecast transaction or the non-current liability results in the recognition of

12
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non-financial asset or non-financial liability any deferred gain or loss included in equity is restated to the initial

carrying amount cost of the asset or the liability In all other cases deferred amounts included in equity are taken

to the statement of income and are classified as income or expenses in the periods in which the hedged non-current

liability or the forecast transaction had an effect on profit and loss

Certain derivative contracts although they are economic hedges in relation to the managed risk positions taken

by Rabobank do not qualify for hedge accounting under the specific IFRS rules These contracts are therefore

treated as derivative trading financial instruments

The fair value of derivative financial instruments held for trading and hedging purposes is disclosed in note 10

Derivative financial instruments and other trade liabilities

2.4 Trade liabilities and other liabilities at fair value through profit and loss

2.4.1 Trade liabilities

Trade liabilities are mainly negative fair values of derivative financial instruments and delivery obligations arising on

short selling of securities Securities are sold short to realise gains from short-term price fluctuations The securities

needed to settle the short selling are acquired through securities leasing or sale and securities repurchase agree

ments Securities sold short are recognised at fair value at the reporting date

2.4.2 Other liabilities at fair value through profit and loss

Other liabilities at fair value through profit and loss include certain financial liabilities that Rabobank does not

intend to sell but which it accounted for at fair value on initial recognition Changes in the fair value of these

financial liabilities are recognised in profit and loss for the period in which they arise

2.5 Trading financial assets

Trading financial assets are acquired to realise gains from short-term fluctuations in the prices or margins of traders

or form part of portfolio that regularly generates short-term gains

These assets are stated at fair value based on quoted bid prices Any realised and unrealised gains and losses are

included underTrading income Interest earned on trading financial assets is recognised as interest income

Dividends received on trading financial assets are recognised as Trading income

All purchases and sales of trading financial assets that have to be delivered within period prescribed by regulations

or market convention are recognised at the transaction date Other trading transactions are recognised as derivative

financial instruments until the date of settlement

2.6 Non-trading financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit and loss

Rabobank has opted to classify financial instruments not acquired or entered into for realising gains from short-term

fluctuations in traders prices or margins at fair value through profit and loss These financial assets including venture

capital are carried at fair value

Management designates financial assets and liabilities to this category upon initial recognition if any or all of the

following criteria are met

Such designation eliminates or substantially reduces any inconsistent treatment that would otherwise have

arisen upon valuation of the assets or liabilities or recognition of profits or losses on the basis of different

accounting policies

The assets and liabilities belong to group of financial assets and/or financial liabilities that are managed and

assessed on the basis of their fair value in accordance with documented risk management or investment

strategy

The financial instrument contains an embedded derivative financial instrument unless the embedded derivative

financial instrument does not significantly affect the cash flows or if it is evident after limited analysis or no

analysis at all that separate recognition is not required

Interest earned on assets with this classification is recognised as interest income and interest due on liabilities with

this classification is recognised as interest expense Any other realised and unrealised gains and losses on revaluation

of these financial instruments at fair value are included underlncome from other financial assets and liabilities

2.7 Day profit

Discrepancies between the transaction price and fair value may arise if valuation techniques are applied at the time

of the transaction Such discrepancy is referred to as Day profit Rabobank recognises this profit directly under

Trading income provided that the valuation technique is based on observable data inputs from active markets

If unobservable data inputs were used the Day profit is amortised over the term of the transaction and recognised

underOther debts Profit is subsequently accounted for if the financial instrument in question is sold or if the data

input has subsequently become observable

13
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2.8 Available-for-sale financial assets

Management determines the appropriate classification of financial asset on the date of acquisition

Financial assets that are intended to be held indefinitely and that could be sold for liquidity purposes or in response

to changes in interest rates exchange rates or share prices are classified as available for sale

Available-for-sale financial assets are initially recognised at costs and immediately revalued at fair value based

on quoted bid prices or values derived from cash flow models The fair values of unlisted equity instruments are

estimated based on appropriate price/earnings ratios adjusted to reflect the specific circumstances of the respective

issuers Any unrealised gains and losses from changes in the fair value of available-for-sale financial assets are

recognised in equity unless they relate to amortised interest If such financial assets are disposed of or suffer

impairment losses the adjustments to fair value are recognised in profit and loss

At each reporting date management assesses whether there are objective indications of impairment of available-

for-sale assets An investment is impaired if its cost permanently exceeds its recoverable amount i.e its fair value is

permanently or significantly lower than its cost The recoverable amount of investments in unlisted equity instruments

is determined using approved valuation methods whereas the recoverable amount of listed financial assets is

determined on the basis of market value These listed assets are deemed to be impaired if there are objective

indications that the market value has decreased to such degree that no reasonable assumptions can be made that

the value will recover to carrying amount in the foreseeable future If the impairment of an available-for-sale asset

diminishes in subsequent period and the diminution can be objectively attributed to an event that occurred after

the impairment the impairment is reversed through profit and loss This does not apply to investments in equity

instruments whereby an increase in value after impairment is accounted for as revaluation

All purchases and sales made in accordance with standard market conventions for available-for-sale financial

assets are recognised at the transaction date All other purchases and sales are recognised at the settlement date

2.9 Held-to-maturity financial assets

Financial assets with fixed terms and cash flows are classified as held-to-maturity financial assets provided

management intends to keep them for their full terms and is in position to do so Management determines

the appropriate classification for its investments on their acquisition dates

Held-to-maturity financial assets are carried at amortised cost based on the effective interest method net of

provisions for impairment losses

Interest earned on held-to-maturity financial assets is recognised as interest income All purchases and sales

made in accordance with standard market conventions for held-to-maturity financial assets are recognised at

the date of settlement All other purchases and sales are recognised as forward derivative contracts until their

dates of settlement

2.10 Repurchase agreements and reverse repurchase agreements
Financial assets that are sold subject to related sale and repurchase agreements are included in the financial

statements under Trading financial assets and Available-for-sale financial assets The liability to the counterparty

is included underDue to other banksand Due to customers depending on the application

Financial assets acquired under reverse sale and reverse repurchase agreements are recognised as Due from

other banks or Loans to customers depending on the application The difference between the selling price and

repurchasing price is recognised as interest income or interest expense over the term of the agreement based

on the effective interest method

2.11 Securitisations and other derecognition constructions

Rabobank securitises sells and carries various financial assets Those assets are sometimes sold to special purpose

entities SPEs which then issue securities to investors Rabobank has the option of retaining an interest in sold

securitised financial assets in the form of subordinated interest-only strips subordinated securities spread accounts

servicing rights guarantees put options and call options and other constructions

financial asset or portion of it is derecognised if

The rights to the cash flows from the asset expire

The rights to the cash flows from the asset and substantial portion of the risks and benefits of ownership of

the asset are transferred

commitment to transfer the cash flows from the asset is presumed and substantial portion of the risks and

benefits are transferred

Not all the economic risks and benefits are retained or transferred however control over the asset is transferred

If Rabobank retains control over the asset but does not retain substantial portion of the rights and benefits
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the asset is recognised in proportion to the continuing involvement of Rabobank related liability is also

recognised to the extent of Rabobanks continuing involvement The recognition of changes in the value of

the liability corresponds to the recognition of changes in the value of the asset

If transaction does not meet the above conditions for derecognition it is recognised as loan for which security

has been provided

To the extent that the transfer of financial asset does not qualify for derecognition the transfer does not result

in Rabobanks contractual rights being separately recognised as derivative financial instruments if recognition of

these instruments and the transferred asset or the liability arising on the transfer were to result in double recognition

of the same rights or obligations

Gains and losses on securitisations and sale transactions depend partly on the previous carrying amounts of the

financial assets transferred These are allocated to the sold and retained interests based on the relative fair values of

these interests at the date of sale Any gains and losses are recognised through profit and loss at the time of transfer

The fair value of the sold and retained interests is based on quoted market prices or calculated as the present

value of the future expected cash flows using pricing models that take into account various assumptions such as

credit losses discount rates yield curves payment frequency arid other factors

Rabobank decides whether the SPE should be included in the consolidated financial statements

For this purpose it performs an assessment of the SPE by taking number of factors into consideration including

the activities decision-making powers and the allocation of the benefits and risks associated with the activities of

the SPE

2.12 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash equivalents are highly liquid short-term investments held to meet current obligations in cash rather than for

investments or other purposes Such obligations have outstanding terms of less than 90 days at inception Cash

equivalents are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value

2.13 Netting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are set off and the net amount is transferred to the statement of financial position if

legal right to set off the recognised amounts exists and it is intended to settle the expected future cash flows on

net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously This mainly concerns netting off of current

account balances The set-off of taxes is discussed in section 2.25

2.14 Foreign currencies

2.14.1 Foreign entities

Items included in the financial statements of each entity in Rabobank Group are carried in the currency that

best reflects the economic reality of the underlying events and circumstances that are relevant for the entity

the functional currency.The consolidated financial statements are presented in euros which is the parent

companys functional currency

Gains losses and cash flows of foreign entities are translated into the presentation currency of Rabobank at

the exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates which is approximately equal to the average exchange rates

For purposes of the statement of financial position they are translated at closing rates Translation differences

arising on the net investments in foreign entities and on loans and other currency instruments designated as

hedges of these investments are recognised in equity If foreign entity is sold any such translation differences

are recognised in profit and loss as part of the gain or loss on the sale

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of foreign entity are recognised as assets and

liabilities of the foreign entity and are translated at the closing rate

2.14.2 Transactions in foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rates ruling at the

transaction dates Translation differences arising on the settlement of such transactions or on the translation of

monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in profit and loss unless they are

recognised in equity as qualifying net investment hedges

Translation differences on debt securities and other monetary financial assets carried at fair value are included

under foreign exchange gains and losses Translation differences on non-monetary items such as equity instruments

held for trading are recognised as part of the fair value gains or losses Translation differences on available-for-sale

non-monetary items are included in the revaluation reserve reported under equity
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2.15 Interest

Interest income and expense for all interest-bearing instruments is recognised in profit and loss on an accrual

basis with the effective interest method being applied Interest income includes coupons relating to fixed-interest

financial assets and trading financial assets as well as the cumulative premiums and discounts on government

treasury securities and other cash equivalent instruments If any loans suffer impairment losses they are written

down to their recoverable amounts and the interest income recognised henceforth is based on the discount rate

for calculating the present value of the future cash flows used to determine the recoverable amounts

2.16 Fees and commission

Income from asset management activities consists mainly of unit trust fund management commission and

administration Income from asset management and insurance brokerage is recognised as earned once the services

have been provided

Fees and commission are generally recognised on an accrual basis Fees and commission received for negotiating

transaction or taking part in the negotiations on behalf of third parties for example the acquisition of portfolio

of loans shares or other securities or the sale or purchase of companies are recognised at completion of the under

lying transactions

2.17 Loans to customers and due from other banks

Loans to customers and due from other banks are non-derivative financial instruments with fixed or defined payments

not listed on an active market apart from such assets that Rabobank classifies as trading at fair value on initial

recognition with changes recognised through profit and loss or as available for sale These loans and receivables

are measured at amortised cost including transaction costs

Loans are subject to either individual or collective impairment analyses value adjustment provision for losses

on loans is recognised if there is objective evidence that Rabobank will not be able to collect all amounts due

under the original terms of the contract The size of the provision is the difference between the carrying amount

and the recoverable amount which is the present value of the expected cash flows including amounts recoverable

under guarantees and sureties discounted at the original effective rate of interest of the loans

The provision for loans includes losses if there is objective evidence that losses are attributable to some portions

of the loan portfolio at the reporting date Examples of objective evidence for value adjustments are

Significant financial problems on the part of the borrower

Default in making interest and/or redemption payments on the part of the borrower

Loan renegotiations

Possibility of bankruptcy of or financial reorganisation at the borrower

Changes in borrowers payment status

Changes in economic circumstances that could cause the borrower to default

The losses are estimated based on the historical pattern of losses for each separate portion the credit ratings of the

borrowers and taking into account the actual economic conditions under which the borrowers conduct their activities

The carrying amount of the loans is reduced through the use of provision account and the loss is taken to the

statement of income If loan is not collectible it is written off from the related provision for losses on loans

Any amounts subsequently collected are included under the item Value adjustments in the statement of income

In its role as relationship bank Rabobank will try to prevent the risk of default of payment on the part of the

customer through adequate credit management regular consultations with the customer and taking timely action

If despite these efforts customer defaults on payment Rabobank will attempt to restructure the loan instead of

realising the collateral as long as it sees prospects for continuity This may result in payments being rescheduled

new terms attached to the loan agreed or additional collateral obtained As soon as the prospects for continuity

have recovered the loan is no longer considered impaired not fully collectible Management continually assesses

these renegotiated loans to ensure that all criteria are satisfied with view to expected future cash flows

At each reporting date management assesses whether there is objective evidence that reclassified loans

previously recognised as available-for-sale assets have been impaired If this is the case the revaluation reserve

is recognised in the Net income from other financial assets and liabilities classified as at fair value through profit

or loss The loan is subsequently remeasured at the present value of the future cash flows at the effective rate of

interest at the inception of the contract and also recognised in Net income from other financial assets and liabilities

classified as at fair value through profit or loss
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2.18 Intangible assets

2.18.1 Goodwill

Goodwill is the amount by which the acquisition price paid for subsidiary or associate exceeds the fair value on

the acquisition date of Rabobanks share of the net assets and the contingent liabilities of the entity acquired

When non-controlling interests are purchased the positive and negative difference between the cost and the carrying

amount is accounted for as goodwill Impairment tests are performed annually or if indications so dictate more

frequently to determine whether impairment has occurred

2.18.2 Software development costs

Costs related to the development or maintenance of software are recognised as an expense at the time they are

incurred Costs directly incurred in connection with identifiable and unique software products over which Rabobank

has control and that will probably provide economic benefits exceeding the costs for longer than year are recognised

as intangible assets Direct costs include the employee expenses of the software development team financing and

an appropriate portion of the relevant overhead

Expenditures that improve the performance of software compared with their original specifications are added to

the original cost of the software Software development costs are recognised as assets and amortised on straight-

line basis over period not exceeding five years

2.18.3 Insurance contracts acquired as part of business combination or upon portfolio transfer and other

intangible assets

The fair value present value of the expected future cash flows of contractual insurance rights and obligations are

capitalised as intangible assets and amortised over the term of the contract which is generally between two and

five years The other intangible assets are amortised over their useful lives

Each year Rabobank performs an impairment test based on expected future cash flows An impairment loss is

recognised if the expected future profits do not justify the carrying amount of the asset

2.18.4 Impairment losses on goodwill

Each year at year-end goodwill is tested for impairment by comparing the recoverable amount of cash-flow generating

units with their carrying amount The higher of value in use on the one hand and fair value less selling costs on the

other determines the recoverable amount The definition of cash-flow generating units depend on the type of

company acquired

The recoverable amount of cash-flow generating unit is arrived at by determining the present valueof the

expected future cash flows of the cash-flow generating unit in question at the interest rate before tax The major

assumptions used in the cash flow model depend on the input data which reflect different financial and economic

variables such as the risk-free interest rate in country and premium reflecting the inherent risk of the entity

concerned The variables are determined subject to review by management

2.18.5 Impairment losses on intangible assets

At each reporting date Rabobank assesses whether there are indications of impairment of other intangible assets

If such indications exist impairment testing is carried out to determine whether the carrying amount of the other

intangible assets is fully recoverable An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable

amount Goodwill and software under development are tested for impairment each year at the reporting date or

more frequently if indications of impairment exist

2.19 Property and equipment

Equipment for own use is recognised at historical cost net of accumulated depreciation and impairments if applicable

Property for own use represents mainly offices and is also recognised at cost less accumulated depreciation and

impairments if applicable

Straight-line deprecation is applied to these assets in accordance with the schedule below

Each asset is depreciated to its residual value over its estimated useful life

Land Not depreciated

Buildings 25 40 years

Equipment including

Computer equipment years

Other equipment and vehicles years
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Each year Rabobank assesses whether there are indications of impairment of property and equipment If the carrying

amount of an asset exceeds its estimated recoverable amount the carrying amount is written down immediately to

the recoverable amount Gains and losses on the disposal of items of property and equipment are determined in

proportion to their carrying amounts and taken into account when determining the operating result Repair and

maintenance work is charged to profit and loss at the time the relevant costs are incurred Expenditures on extending

or increasing the benefits from land and buildings compared with their original benefits are capitalised and sub

sequently depreciated

2.20 Investment properties

Investment properties mainly office buildings are held for their long-term rental income and are not used by

Rabobank or its subsidiaries Investment properties are recognised as long-term investments and included in

the statement of financial position at cost net of accumulated depreciation and impairment

Investment properties are depreciated in accordance with the terms of the underlying lease contracts

2.21 Work in progress

Work in progress is included in other assets in the statement of financial position Work in progress relates to

commercial real estate projects as well as sold and unsold housing projects under construction or planned and is

carried at cost plus allocated interest net of provisions as necessary Instalments invoiced to buyers and customers

are deducted from work in progress If the balance for project is negative the amount of the invoiced instalments

exceeds the capitalised costs the balance of that project is reclassified as Other liabiIities

Gains and losses are recognised based on the percentage of completion method given the continuous transfer of

ownership involved In the course of the construction work Rabobank transfers the control and the material risks

and benefits of the ownership of the work in progress in its current state to the buyer

2.22 Leasing

2.22.1 Rabo bank as lessee

Leases relating to property and equipment under which virtually all risks and benefits of ownership are transferred

to Rabobank are classified as finance leases Finance leases are capitalised at the inception of the lease at the fair

value of the leased assets or at the present value of the minimum lease payments if the present value is lower

Lease payments are apportioned between the lease liability and the finance charges so as to achieve constant

rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability The corresponding lease liabilities are included under

Other debts after deduction of finance charges The interest components of the finance charges are recognised in

profit and loss over the term of the lease An item of property and equipment acquired under lease agreement is

depreciated over the useful life of the asset or if shorter the term of the lease

Leases under which considerable portion of the risks and benefits of ownership of the assets is retained by the

lessor are classified as operating leases Operating lease payments less any discounts by the lessor are charged to

profit and loss on straight-line basis over the term of the lease

2.22.2 Rabobank as lessor

Finance leases

If assets are leased under finance lease the present value of the lease payments is recognised as receivable under

Due from other banks or Loans to customers The difference between the gross receivable and the present value

of the receivable is recognised as unearned finance income Lease income is recognised as interest income over

the term of the lease using the net investment method which results in constant rate of return on the investment

Operating leases

Assets leased under operating leases are included in the statement of financial position under Property and

equipment The assets are depreciated over their expected useful lives in line with those of comparable items of

property and equipment Rental income less discounts granted to lessees is recognised under Other income on

straight-line basis over the term of the lease

2.23 Provisions

Provisions are recognised if Rabobank has present obligation legal or constructive as result of past event if

it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and if reliable estimate can be

made of the amount of the obligation If Rabobank expects provision to be reimbursed for example under an

insurance contract the reimbursement is recognised as separate asset but only if the reimbursement is virtually

certain The provisions are carried at the discounted value of the expected future cash flows
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2.23.1 Restructuring

Restructuring provisions comprise penalties for premature termination of leases payments under redundancy

schemes and other costs directly attributable to restructuring programmes The costs are recognised in the period

in which legal or constructive obligation arises for Rabobank and detailed redundancy scheme is in place

No provisions are formed in advance for costs relating to continuing operations of Rabobank

2.23.2 Tax and legal issues

The provision for tax and legal issues is based on the best possible estimates available at year-end taking into

account legal and tax advice The timing of the cash outflow of these provisions is uncertain because the outcome

of the disputes and the time involved are unpredictable

2.23.3 Other pro visions

This item includes provision for onerous contracts credit guarantees Opmaat and obligations under the terms of

the deposit guarantee system

2.24 Employee benefits

Rabobank provides various pension plans based on the local conditions and practices of the countries in which it

operates In general the plans are financed by payments to insurance companies or trustee administered funds

The payments are calculated actuarially at regular intervals defined benefit plan is one that incorporates

promise to pay an amount of pension benefit which is usually based on several factors such as age number of

years in service and remuneration defined contribution plan is one under which Rabobank pays fixed contributions

to separate entity pension fund and acquires no legal or constructive obligation if the fund has insufficient

assets to pay all the benefits to employee-members of the plan in respect of service in current and past periods

2.24.1 Pension obligations

The defined benefit
liability is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the reporting date including

adjustments for actuarial gains and losses and past service costs not yet recognised reduced by the fair value of the

plan assets The defined benefit obligation is calculated by independent actuaries each year using the projected unit

credit method The present value of the defined benefit obligation is calculated by discounting the estimated future

cash outflows at rates of interest on prime corporate bonds with terms approximating those of the related obligations

Most of the pension plans are career average pension plans and the net costs after deduction of employees

contributions are included under Staff costs Actuarial gains or losses from adjustments to actual developments

and modified actuarial assumptions are recognised using the corridor method Insofar as unrecognised cumulative

actuarial gains or losses exceed 10% of the higher of the present value of the gross obligation under the defined

benefit plan or the fair value of the fund such excess is taken to profit or loss spread over two years

2.24.2 Defined contribution plans

Under defined contribution plans Rabobank pays contributions to publicly or privately managed insured pension

plans on compulsory contractual or voluntary basis Once the contributions have been made Rabobank has no

further payment obligations The regular contributions are net period costs for the year in which they are due and

are included on this basis underStaffcosts

2.24.3 Other post-employment obligations

Some Rabobank units provide other post-employment benefits To become eligible for such benefits the usual

requirement is that the employee remains in service until retirement and has been with the company minimum

number of
years The expected costs of these benefits are accrued over the years of service based on system

similar to that for defined benefit plans The obligations are valued each year by independent actuaries

2.25 Tax

Current tax receivables and payables are set off if there is legally enforceable right to set off such items and if

simultaneous treatment or settlement is intended Deferred tax assets and liabilities are set off if there is legally

enforceable right to set off such items and if they relate to the same tax authority and arise from the same tax group

Provisions are formed in full for deferred tax liabilities using the liability method arising from temporary differences

at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting

purposes
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The main temporary differences relate to the depreciation of property and equipment the revaluation of certain

financial assets and liabilities including derivative financial instruments provisions for pensions and other post-

employment benefits provisions for losses on loans and other impairment and tax losses and in connection with

business combinations the fair values of the net assets acquired and their tax bases Deferred income tax assets

and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available

against which the temporary differences can be utilised

Provisions are formed in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries

associates and interests in joint ventures unless the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be

controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Taxation on profit is calculated in accordance with the tax legislation of the relevant jurisdiction and recognised

in the period in which the profit is realised The tax effects of the carry-forward of unused tax losses are recognised

as an asset if it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the losses can be utilised

Deferred tax assets or deferred tax liabilities are included for the revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets

and cash flow hedges that are directly taken to equity and recognised in profit and loss upon realisation together

with the respective gain or loss

2.26 Due to other banks due to customers and debt securities in issue

These borrowings are initially recognised at cost i.e the proceeds received less directly attributable and non-recurring

transaction costs Loans are subsequently included at amortised cost Any difference between the net proceeds and

the redemption amount is recognised over the term of the loan using the effective interest method

If Rabobank repurchases one of its own debt instruments it is derecognised with the difference between the

carrying amount of liability and the consideration paid being recognised as income or expense

2.27 Rabobank Member Certificates

These are the certificates for shares in the capital of Rabobank Ledencertificaten N.y Rabobank Ledencertificaten II N.y

and Rabobank Ledencertfficaten Ill N.y respectively issued in 2000 2001 2002 and 2005 On 30 December 2008

the merger between RLC as the recipient company RLC and RLC II became effective the merger Following the

merger RLC known after the merger as Rabobank Ledencertificaten N.y acquired all the capital of RLC and RLC II

by universal title and RLC and RLC II ceased to exist

Since the proceeds of the issue are available to Rabobank on perpetual and highly subordinated basis also

subordinate to the Trust Preferred Securities and since in principle no distribution is made if the consolidated

statement of income of Rabobank shows loss for any financial year the issue proceeds insofar as they have been

lent on to Rabobank Nederland are recognised underEquityin proportion to the number of certificates held by

members and employees As result distributions are accounted for in the profit appropriation

2.28 Trust Preferred Securities and Capital Securities

Trust Preferred Securities which pay non-discretionary dividend and are redeemable on specific date or at the

option of the holder are classified as financial liabilities and included underSubordinated debt The dividends on

these preferred securities are recognised in profit and loss as interest expense based on amortised cost using the

effective interest method

The remaining Trust Preferred Securities and Capital Securities are recognised as Equity as there is no formal

obligation to repay the principal or to pay the dividend

When non-controlling interests are purchased the positive and negative difference between the cost and

the carrying amount is accounted for as goodwill

2.29 Financial guarantees

Financial guarantees are initially measured at fair value and subsequently at the higher of two amounts i.e the

amount Rabobank would reasonably have to pay at the reporting date to settle the obligation or transfer it to

third party and the initial carrying amount less amortisation

2.30 Bills

Bills represent commitments by Rabobank to redeem bills issued to clients Rabobank expects to redeem most bills

at the time clients receive payment Bills are recognised as off-balance-sheet transactions and disclosed as contingent

liabilities and obligations
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2.31 Segment information

segment is distinguishable component of Rabobank that engages in providing products or services and is

subject to risks and returns that are different from those of other segments The segments reported by Rabobank

are defined on the basis of the management approach i.e the segments assessed by management for the benefit

of Rabobanks strategic management and in order to make informed management decisions and explore various

risk and return ratios Rabobanks primary segment reporting format is by business segment the secondary format

is by geographical segment

2.32 Statement of cash flows

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash resources money market deposits and deposits at central banks

The statement of cash flows is prepared in accordance with the indirect method of calculation and provides details

of the source of the cash and cash equivalents that became available during the year as well as their application

during the year Operating profit before taxation in the net cash flow from operating activities is adjusted for items

in the statement of income and movements in items in the statement of financial position which do not actually

generate cash flows during the year

The cash flows from operating investing and financing activities are stated separately Movements in loans and

receivables and interbank deposits are accounted for under cash flows from operating activities Investing activities

relate to acquisitions and disposals and repayments on financial investments as well as the acquisition and disposal

of subsidiaries and property and equipment

The proceeds from the issue of and payments on Member Certificates and subordinated loans qualify as financing

activities Movements on account of currency translation differences are eliminated as are the consolidation effects

of acquisitions of associates

Sovency

As bank Rabobank is subject to number of statutory requirements one of which concerns the minimum

solvency position That position is determined on the basis of set of ratios which compare the banks qualifying

capital BIS ratio and core capital Tier with the total risk-weighted assets The minimum requirements for

qualifying capital and core capital are 8% and 4% of risk-weighted assets respectively The Dutch banking super

visory authority the Nederlandsche Bank Dutch Central Bank sets detailed standards for determining the capital

ratios These standards are derived from the capital adequacy guidelines of the European Union the Directive on

the capital adequacy requirements of investment firms and credit institutions and the Basel Committee on Banking

Supervision the Basel II Accord In the Netherlands these standards have been incorporated into the Financial

Supervision Act and associated subordinate regulations

The risk-weighted assets are determined for credit risk purposes in many different ways

For most assets the risk weight is determined with reference to internal ratings and number of characteristics

specific to the asset concerned For off-balance sheet items the balance sheet equivalent is calculated first on the

basis of internal conversion factors The resulting equivalent amounts are then also assigned risk-weightings

An Advanced Measurement Approach Model is used to determine the amount with respect to the risk-weighted

assets for operational risk With the market risk approach the general market risk is hedged as well as the risk of

open positions in foreign currencies debt and equity instruments as well as items of property and equipment
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Rabobanks ratios

In millions of euros 2009 2008

Tier and qualifying capital can be.broken down as follows.....
Retained.earnings note .29 .22868 21304

RabobankMem.ber Certificates .note.30 6315 6236

Trust Preferred.Securities lU to VI note 31 1229 1697

Trust Preferred Securities ii note 27 391 1257

Capital Securities note 31 4953 .1813

35756 32307

Part.of.non-controlling.interest treated.as.qualifying.capital .1550 1461

Deductio.ns 5116 3410

Tier l.ca.pital 321.90 30358

Part of reserves treated as qualifying capital 16 178

Deductions 1287 501

Part.of.sub.ordinated.debt.treated.as.qualifying.capital 1944 877

Qualifying capital 32831 30912

Risk-weighted assets 233372 238080

Ratios

Tier.1-ratio 118% 12J%

BlS-ratio 14.i% 110%

Risk exposure of financial instrumenls

4.1 Risk governance

Rabobank Group manages risks at various levels At the highest level the Executive Board determines the risk strategy

it will pursue the policy framework as well as the limits under the supervision of the Supervisory Board and on the

recommendation of the Statement of Financial Position and Risk Management Committee Rabobank Group and the

Credit Management Committee Rabobank Group The Supervisory Board regularly assesses the risks attached to the

activities and portfolio of the Rabobank Group The Chief Financial Officer who is also member of the Executive Board

is responsible for the implementation of the risk management policy within the Rabobank Group Responsibility for

the risk policy within Rabobank Group is spread across two directorates Group Risk Management is in charge of the

policies for interest rate market liquidity currency and operational risks as well as for the policy for credit risks at

portfolio level Credit Risk Management is responsible for the credit risk acceptance policy at item level Furthermore

the Group entities practice independent risk management

4.2 Strategy for the use of financial instruments

Rabobanks activities are inherently related to the use of financial instruments including derivative financial

instruments Rabobank accepts deposits from clients at fixed and variable rates of interest for variety of terms

and aims to earn above average interest margins on these deposits by investing them in high-quality assets

Rabobank also aims to increase these margins by consolidating short funds and loans for longer terms at higher

interest rates at the same time keeping sufficient liquid resources to meet all payments that might become due

further objective of Rabobank is to increase its interest rate margins by obtaining above-average margins

after deduction of provisions and by granting loans to commercial and retail borrowers with various credit ratings

These risks apply not only to loans recognised in the statement of financial position Rabobank also gives guarantees

such as letters of credit and performance and other guarantee documents

Rabobank also trades in financial instruments when it takes positions in tradable and unlisted instruments OTCs

including derivative financial instruments in order to profit from short-term movements on the share and bond

markets and in exchange rates interest rates and commodity prices

4.3 Interest rate risk

On account of its activities Rabobank is exposed to interest rate risk in its core business Interest rate risk in financial

market environment is part of market risk Interest rate risk is the risk that the banks financial result and/or economic

value may decline due to unfavourable developments in the money and capital markets This risk may arise due to

an interest rate mismatch between assets and liabilities mismatch risk due to interest-related options embedded

in products that could affect cash flows option risk due to possible changes in the yield curve yield curve risk and

due to changes in the relationship between various yield curves basis risk Any interest rate risk run by customers
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due to the fact that their payment obligations increase as result of higher interest rates does not affect Rabobanks

interest rate risk position Any resulting negative effects qualify as credit risk

Accepting certain level of interest rate risk is inherent in the business of banking and can be major source of

results and value creation Each year the Executive Board under the supervision of the Supervisory Board determines

the risk appetite and corresponding limits Reports on the current interest rate risk position are submitted to the

respective risk management committees on monthly basis The various treasury departments within the group

entities are responsible for the daily monitoring activities Furthermore reports are provided to the supervisory

authority the Dutch Central Bank each quarter

Interest rate risk is not only measured on the basis contract terms the banks internal interest rate risk model also

takes client behaviour into consideration For instance premature mortgage repayments are taken into account and

items in the statement of financial position without term stipulated by contract such as savings and current

account balances are modelled based on what is known as the replicating portfolio method Portfolios of money

market and capital market instruments are selected that most replicate the behaviour of these items

Gap analyses duration determination and simulation are used to determine the interest rate risk Both the

income-at-risk and equity-at-risk are subject to restrictions Another major risk indicator is the basis point value

The basis point value BPV is the absolute loss in market value of equity that arises in the event of parallel

increase of the entire interest rate curve by basis point During the year under review the BPV never exceeded 26

The definition of equity used for interest rate risk management differs from the IFRS definition of equity For interest

rate risk management purposes the economic value of equity is defined as the present value of the assets less the

present value of the liabilities plus the present value of the derivative position.Through the use of hedge accounting

and due to the fact that substantial number of items in the statement of financial position in IFRS terms is stated

at amortised cost and hence is not subject to any changes in value the effects of the calculated changes in value on

the IFRS equity will be largely restricted to an impact on the net interest income

4.3.1 Income at risk

The table below sets out the basis point sensitivity of the interest rate result interest income less interest expense

before tax for the next two years based on level statement of financial position structure and no management

intervention The impacts in the first and second year are listed separately and are based on the assumption that

the interest rate will show an even and parallel increase/decline by 200 basis points during the first 12 months and

remain at the same level in months 13 through 24 The simulation of the possible interest income is based on an

interest rate risk model developed in-house whereby certain assumptions are made in respect of interest rate sensi

tivity of products whose interest rates are not directly linked to certain money or capital market rate such as

savings of private customers smaller increase or decrease will have proportionally similar effect Said impact on

interest income is reflected in IFRS equity through profit and loss and is very small

Income at risk

31 Dec2009 31 Dec2008

In millions of euros 200 bp increase 200 bp decline 200 bp increase 200 bp decline

.1-12 months .. ... 129 ....... 83..... 35 ........... 54

.1.3-24..rnoriths 379 3.63 87 36

4.3.2 Equity at risk

The table below shows the sensitivity of the economic value of equity to interest rate changes based on the

assumption that the yield curve increases and declines by 200 basis points at once The percentages in the table

represent the deviation from the current present value of equity

Equity at risk

31 Dec2009 31 Dec2008

In 200 bp increase 200 bp decline 200 bp increase 200 bp decline

Econo.mic.val.ue.of.equity 1.0% 12% 1.1.%

The aforementioned methods are supported by various scenario analyses The results of these scenario analyses are

important for integral interest rate risk management purposes and are included in reports to senior management

4.4 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty is unable to meet financial or other contractual obligation vis-à-vis the

bank Credit risk is inherent to granting loans Positions in tradable assets such as bonds and shares are also subject

to credit risk
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Rabobank restricts its credit risk exposure by setting limits for loans to an individual counterparty or group of

counterparties as well as for loans to countries The four-eyes principle is key factor when granting loans

multi-level committee structure is in place to make decisions on major loan applications with the competent

committee being chosen based on the size of the loan Decisions on the largest loans are made directly by the

executive board

The credit risk exposure relating to each individual borrower is further restricted by the use of sub-limits to hedge

amounts at risk not all of which are disclosed in the statement of financial position and the use of daily delivery risk

limits for trading items such as forward
currency contracts Most actual risks are assessed daily against the limits

Once loan has been granted it is continually subject to credit management as part of which new information

financial and other is reviewed Credit limits are adjusted where necessary Rabobank obtains collateral or guarantees

for the majority of the loans

The new Basel II capital accord became effective for Rabobank Group as from January 2008 The Dutch Central

Bank has granted Rabobank Group permission to determine the Basel II equity requirements in accordance with the

most advanced methods i.e the Advanced Internal Ratings Based approach For this purpose Rabobank Group has

developed its own risk models over the past few years

4.4.1 Maximum credit risk

The table below sets out the maximum credit risk to which Rabobank is subject at the reporting date in respect of

the various categories without taking into account any collateral or other measures for restricting credit risk

In some cases the amounts below deviate from the carrying amounts since the outstanding equity instruments

are not included in the maximum credit risk The amounts are based on fair value and represent the current credit

risk and could deviate from the maximum credit risk in the future as result of changes in parameters

Maximum gross credit risk

In millions of euros 2009 2008

Cash.and..cash..eq.uiv.alents 16565 71.05

Due from other.banks 35641 33776

Trading..finan.cial.asse.ts 1.0433 9386

Other.financiai.assets.atfair.va.ue..thrau.gh.p.rofit.and.Ioss 6655 7021

Derivative..firrnn.ci.al.instrurn.ents 3909.1 66759

Loans.to.custarners 433270 426283

Available-for-sale financial assets 32324 3067.1

Held-to-maturity financial assets 418 ......... 497

Other assets.incl current tax assets 8961 1.0853

Total 583958 5.9235.1

Credit
relate.d.and.co.ntirsgent.liabilities 4.664 4265.1

Total 628.622 ......... 635002

4.4.2 Loans

Apart from due from other banks 36 billion or 6% of total assets Rabobanks only significant risk concentration is

in the private sector lending these loans to private customers account for 48% of all loans to customers These loans

have very low risk profile as evidenced by the actual losses incurred in previous years The proportion of the total

loan portfolio attributable to the food agri sector was 17% in 2008 The proportion of the total loan portfolio

attributable to trade industry and services was 35% at year-end 2009 Loans to trade industry and services and

loans to the food agri sector are both spread over wide range of industries in many different countries None of

these shares represents more than 10% of the total client loan portfolio Continuing poor market conditions in

the Netherlands have massive impact on many industry sectors For the local Rabobanks bad debt costs in the

food agri sector are concentrated in glass horticulture with virtually all segments in the 115 sector having been hit

hard inland shipping in particular For Rabobank International bad debt costs were significantly influenced by the

provisions formed for the Irish real estate portfolio
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In millions of euros 2009 2008

Total 4337O.426283
.Of.whi.ch .to..govern.m.ent.clients 3936 8848

.se.curities.trans.actions due.frorn.private.secto.r.lending 8368 3812

interest r.ate.h.ed.ges.h.edge..accounti.ng 58i8 003

Private sector lending 415748 08520

This.can be brokers.down geographically.asfollows

The Netherlands 312477 75% 2981.72 73%

Rest.Europ.e 37259 9% 43228 11%

North.America 36194 9% 40415 1.0%

Latin.Arnerica 8837 2% .. 7372 2%

Asia 6112 1% 5803 1.%

Australia 1.4837 4% 1.2830 3%

O.ther.co.untries 32 0% 800 0%

Total ... 415748 100% 408620 1.00%

Risk spread in the loan portfolio can be broken down by business

segment as follows

Private individuals 200607 48% 193958 47%

Trade.i.ndustr.y.and.serv.ices 1.43679 35% 1.46336 3.6%

Foodandagri .71462 17% 68326 17%

Total 415748 1.00% .408620 100%

4.4.3 Derivative financial instruments

Rabobank sets strict limits for open positions in amounts as well as in terms If ISDA International Swaps and

Derivatives Association standards apply or master agreement including equivalent terms has been concluded

with the counterparty and if the jurisdiction of the counterparty permits setting off the net open position is

monitored.The amount exposed to credit risk is limited in each case to the fair value of the transactions plus an

uplift for potential future risks This credit risk is managed as part of the general lending limits for clients Where

needed Rabobank obtains security or other safeguards with respect to credit risks inherent in these transactions

The credit risk exposure represents the current fair value of all open derivative contracts showing positive

market value taking into account master netting agreements enforceable by law

4.4.4 Credit risk management methods

Rabobanks credit risk exposure is restricted in part by obtaining collateral where necessary

The amount and nature of the collateral required depends partly on the assessment of the credit risk of the loan

to the counterparty Rabobank follows guidelines for the purpose of accepting and valuing different types of collateral

The major types of collateral are

Residential mortgage collateral

Mortgage collateral on property inventories and receivables mainly for business loans

Cash and securities mainly for securities lending activities and reverse repurchase transactions

The bank also uses credit derivative financial instruments to manage credit risks Management monitors the market

value of collateral obtained and requests additional collateral if necessary

Rabobank further limits its exposure to credit risk by entering into master netting arrangements with counterparties

for significant volume of transactions In general master netting arrangements do not lead to the setting off of

assets and liabilities included in the statement of financial position as transactions are usually settled gross

The credit risk is limited by master netting arrangements however to the extent that if an event or cancellation

occurs all amounts involving the counterparty are frozen and settled net Taking netting arrangements into

account the total fair value of the derivative contracts portfolio is positive amount of 13613 2008 22350

The total credit risk exposure of Rabobank from derivative financial instruments to which netting arrangements

apply is highly sensitive to the closing of new transactions lapsing of existing transactions and fluctuations in

market interest and exchange rates
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4.4.5 Off-balance sheet financial instruments

The guarantees and stand-by letters of credit which Rabobank provides to third parties in the event client cannot

fulfil its obligations vis-à-vis these third parties are exposed to credit risk Documentary and commercial letters of

credit and written undertakings by Rabobank on behalf of clients authorise third parties to draw bills against

Rabobank up to preset amount subject to specific conditions These transactions are backed by the delivery of

the underlying goods to which they relate Accordingly the risk exposure of such an instrument is less than that

of direct loan

Obligations to grant loans at specific rates of interest during fixed period of time are recognised under credit

granting liabilities and accounted for as such unless these commitments do not extend beyond the period expected

to be needed to perform appropriate underwriting in which case they are considered to be transactions conforming

to standard market conventions Rabobank is exposed to credit risk when it promises to grant lending facilities The

size of such losses is less than the total of the unused commitments as most promises to grant credit facilities are

made subject to the clients meeting certain conditions that apply to loans Rabobank monitors the term to expiry of

credit promises as long-term commitments are generally associated with higher risk than short-term commitments

4.4.6 Credit quality of financial assets

In its financing approval process Rabobank Group uses the Rabobank Risk Rating which reflects the counterpartys

probability of default PD over one-year period The table below sets out the credit quality after deduction of the

provision for doubtful debts of the loan-related items in the statement of financial position

Credit quality of financial assets

Virtually Adequate

In millions of euros no risk to good Vulnerable Impaired Total

At.31..Decernber 2009

Due.frorn.other.banks 311.51 4410 10 70 3564.1

Loans.to.custorners

Loans.to.gov.ernment.clients 3329 5.90 12 3.936

Loans.to.private.clients

overdrafts 292 1230.1 1533 749 14875

mortgages 62962 135352 25.45 432 20129.1

leases 1412 15514 .1290 1148 19364

receivabies.r.elatin.g.to.se.curities.transactions 5526 2842 8368

corporate.loans 1.4676 126010 1234 2277 1.441.97

other 727 28600 053 459 41839

Total 128075 .325619 10670 51.47 4.69511

At 3.1 December 2008

D.ue.fr.om.o.ther.banks 30857 2885 22 12 33776

Loans.to customers

Loans.togovernrnentclients 7810 1034 8848

Loans .to.pri.vate.clients

overdrafts 2313 1.2092 210 109 14724

mortgages 50010 140699 745 22.1 192675

leases 178.1 1.5936 1316 400 1.9433

receivab.es.relating.to.se.curities.transactio.ns 11.80 263.1 381.1

corporate.loaris 28230 1.19743 1240 1747 150960

other 1.1328 21315 1851 1338 35832

Total 133509 3.1.6335 6384 383.1 4.60059
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The table below shows the classffication of the structured credit exposures in the balance sheet

Structured credit exposures in millions of euros

Sector

ABS.CDO

Other.ABS

Corn m.erdal real estate

Nori-subpr.i.rn.e RMBS

CDO/CLO and other corporate.exposures

US.subprirne

Total

Exposure

224

1046

1261

3013

2294

151

2989

1.12

........
.1%

Structured credit exposures by rating category in millions of euros

Structured credit exposure by region in millions of euros

Rating category

number of structured investments have been further impaired as result of the further deterioration of the US

housing market as well as the corporate market in that country These impairment losses involved an amount of 267

after taxation for the full year 2009 and are recognised underNet income from other financial assets and liabilities

classified as at fair value through profit or loss An additional provision of 30 after taxation has been formed in con

nection with liquidity facility that has been partially secured by subprime mortgages

Monoline insurers

Monoline insurers are counterparties in some credit default swaps used to hedge the credit risk of certain investments

There was further deterioration in the creditworthiness of number of monoline insurers in 2009 which was

reflected in the further downgrading of the ratings of these institutions Counterparty risk arises in relation to these

monoline insurers either because the value of credit default swaps with these counterparties increases due to

decrease in the value of the underlying investments or because other insured investments might result in claims

for these insurers When calculating the level of counterparty risk time-related aspects and the credit quality of the

relevant investments are taken into consideration At year-end 2009 the total counterparty risk before provisions
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Trading financial assets

and other financial liabilities

at fair valueLoans

224

1046

126.1

2856

2062

.7598
95%

Availableforsale

financial assets

157

277

Sector

ABS.CDO....................................................................

Other.ABS

Corn rn.ercial real estate

N.on-subprirn.e.RMBS

.CDO/CLO and other corporate .expos.ures.......

US.subprirne

Total

Exposure

224

1046

3013

2294

AAA

91.1

.1074

7.1%

______
AA

37

5.86

974

North

America

.1027

148

.2437
3.0%

256

12

.408

Asia

Pacific

10

421

6%

Below

7.1

15.1

11

.226

5.62

7%

Africa

Middle East

12

12

0%

Sector Exposure

ABS.CDO 224

Other ABS 1046

.Commercial.real.estate ............................126.1

Non-su.bprirne.RMBS 3013

CDOCLQ.and other..corporate exposures ............. 2294

Total.... ..................................... 7989

Western

Europe

.1173

1.86

5095

64%



amounted to 1321.The total provision increased to 1138 partly as result of the scaling down of the portfolio and

the formation of an additional provision which had an impact on earnings of 196 after taxation recognised under

Net income from other financial assets and liabilities classified as at fair value through profit or loss

As regards the above exposures an actual exposure to monoline insurer would arise only in the event of the

relevant investments actually going into default and an insurance claim having to be filed with the monoline

insurer Actual losses would be incurred only if both the investment and the relevant monoline insurer are in

default At 31 December 2009 the counterparty risk was 183

Monoline insurer
rating Principle amount Counterparty risk before Total provisions Counterparty risk after

in millions of euros 31-Dec-2009 provisions 31-Dec-2009 31-Dec-09 provisions 31-Dec-09

Investment grade ......................... 2668 ....... 12 12

Noriinvestment..grad.e................. 5009.....................1309............... 1138 ................ 1.7.1

Total 7677 132.1 11.38 1.83

Based on the positions at year-end 2009 as shown in the above table any further downgrades will only have

limited impact as provisions have been formed for most of the counterparty risk

Leveraged finance

The leveraged finance portfolio of Rabobank International amounted to 3.1 3.4 billion at year-end 2009 This port

folio is diversified and consists of large number of relatively small positions notably in Dutch and other Western

European businesses Leveraged finance activities focus primarily on Rabobank clients and the food and agri sector

4.5 Currency risk

Rabobank is exposed to exchange rate fluctuations impacting the financial position and cash flows Just as with

other market risks the currency risk exposure of the trading books is managed using value-at- risk VaR limits set

by the Executive Board This risk is monitored on daily basis The policy aims to prevent open positions whenever

possible The non-trading books are only exposed to the translation risk on capital invested in foreign activities

and on issues of hybrid equity instruments not denominated in euros To monitor and manage translation risk

Rabobank follows policy of protecting equity against exchange rate fluctuations

4.6 Liquidity risk

Rabobank is exposed to liquidity risk i.e the risk that the bank is unable to meet all of its repayment obligations

as well as the risk that the bank is unable to fund increases in assets at reasonable prices or unable at all This could

happen if for instance clients or professional counterparties suddenly withdraw more funds than expected which

cannot be met by the banks cash resources or by selling or pledging assets or by borrowing funds from third

parties

For long time now Rabobank has recognised liquidity risk as major risk type Rabobanks policy therefore is to

match the term of funding with the term of loans granted Long-term loans must be financed through funds entrusted

by customers or long-term funding by professional markets Rabobank uses three pillars to manage liquidity risk

The first
pillar strictly limits the maximum cash outflows within wholesale banking Among other things the expected

cash outflows for the next thirty days are measured and reported on daily basis Limits were set for these cash

outflows for all currencies and locations Detailed contingency plans with procedures were drawn up to face possible

crisis situation

Through the second pillar an ample buffer of tradable securities is maintained Where necessary these assets can

be allocated for pledging to central banks for use in repo transactions or direct selling in the market to immediately

generate liquidity Over the past few years the Rabobank Group has internally securitised portion of its loan

portfolio As result it can be pledged to the central bank thus serving as an additional liquidity buffer Since these

securitisations are internal and for liquidity purposes only they are not reflected in the statement of financial posi

tion for financial reporting purposes although they do add to the available liquidity buffer

The third pillar entails the restriction of liquidity risk through prudent funding policy aimed at meeting the

financing requirements of the group units at acceptable cost Diversification of sources of funding and currencies

flexibility of the funding instruments applied and hands-on investor relations approach are key factors This prevents

Rabobank from being overly dependent on single source of funding

Furthermore scenario analyses are performed each month to simulate the possible consequences of wide range

of stress scenarios distinguishing between scenarios specific for the market and scenarios specific for Rabobank

Monthly reports on the liquidity position of the Group as whole are submitted to the Dutch Central Bank These

reports are prepared in accordance with the guidelines drawn up by this supervisory authority
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The table below shows Rabobanks non-discounted liabilities grouped by the liquidity period remaining between

the reporting date and the earliest reasonable contract repayment date The total amounts do not correspond

exactly with the amounts in the consolidated statement of financial position since this table is entirely based on

non-discounted cash flows related to both principal and future interest payments

The item Derivative financial instruments and other trade liabilities has not been analysed on the basis of the

contract repayment date because they are not essential for the management of liquidity risk and for reporting to

the management of Rabobank

Contract repayment date

On Less than months More than No repayment

demand months to year years date

05.1 12

.15020 238

33042

12791

59444

5066.7

1-5 years

.3124

91.40

5.1374

2229

966

45549

.3600 878 305 18 2568

098

48539

47444

1833

4.1403

24871

2078

.9200

46994

1094

51.82

26636

12

1221

5048 583 403

In millions of euros Total

At.31.De.cemb.er.2009

Liabilities

D.ue..to.other.banks 3406 22624

Due to customers 1.95841 .288649

D.eb.t.securities.irs issue 969 183601

Other debts including current tax

liabilities 1296 8665

Other financial liabilities at fair value

through.profitand.loss 485 72.1 3355 0869 908.1 3451.1

Subordinated..de.bt 436 973 2414

Total.financial liabilities 203997 .. .127230 60979.75248 701.85 2825 540464

Contingent liabilities 101.1 1.01 17

At.3.1..Decernber2008

Liabilities

Due toother banks 81.38 24258

D.ue..to customers 1.93652 309202

D.ebtsecurities.iri issue 2892 148832

Other debts including current tax

liabilities 2723 887.1

Other financial liabilities at fair value

through profit.and.loss .30344

S.ubordi n.ated debt 2449

Total financial liabilities 207419 .5.23966

Co.ntingent.lia.biiities 9515 9515

The table below shows Rabobanks assets and liabilities grouped by the period remaining between the reporting

date and the contract repayment date These amounts correspond with the statement of financial position

Contract repayment date

Less than More than

In millions of euros lyear year Total

At.3.1.De.cernber.2009

Cash and.cash equivalents 15748 817 16565

Due.from other.b.anks 30380 5261 3564.1

Trading fin.an.cial.asse.ts 2864 9897 1.2761

Other.financiai.assets.atfair.va.ue..throu.gh.proflt.and.oss 1276 7846 91.22

Derivativefinan.cial.instrurnents 871 30380 3909.1

Loans.to.custorners 8331 35055.1 433870

AvaiIableforsale..firtarscial.assets 1.0215 231.34 33349

Held-tornaturity.financial.assets 1.74 244 418

Other.assets.incL.current.tax.assets 4590 437 896.1

Total.financia 1.57277 43250.1 5.89778

1.14

341

1.1.2477

3768

72460

7443

319

67432

18760

1.19

.62910

23

1263
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Contract repayment date

Less than More than

In millions of euros year year Total

At 31 December2009

Due.tootherbanks 1.8371 4058 22429

D.ue .to customers 263411 22927 286338

Debt.securities in issue 98643 73109 .171752

D.eri.vative.flnan.cial.instrurnents.and.other.trade.liabilities 1.2603 361.62 48765

Other debts.i.ncl current tax liabilities .. 5661 2890 .855.1

Other.financialiiabilities.at.fair..value.through.proft.and.loss 4323 22996 27319

Subordinated debt 2362 2362

Total.fi.nancial.liabilities 403012 164504 5.67516

Net liquidity surplus/deficit 245735 267997 22262

At 31 December 2008

Total financial assets 134422 461988 .596410

Total fi.nancial.liabilities 4.10613 1.66328 5.7694.1

N.et liquidity surplus/deficit 27.61.91 295660 1.9469

The above breakdown was compiled on the basis of contract information without taking into account actual move

ments in items in the statement of financial position This is taken into account however for the day-to-day

management of the liquidity risk Customer savings are an example By contract they are payable on demand

However experience has shown that this is very stable source of financing at the long-term disposal of the bank

The regulations of the supervisory authority are also factored in Based on the liquidity criteria of the Dutch Central

Bank Rabobank had substantial liquidity surplus at 31 December 2009 and throughout 2009 The average liqui

dity surplus was 28% of the total liquidity requirement The surplus at 31 December 2009 was 23%

The liquidity requirements to meet payments under guarantees and stand-by letters of credit are considerably

lower than the size of the liabilities as Rabobank does not generally expect that third parties to such arrangements

will draw funds The total open position relating to contractual obligations to provide credit does not necessarily

represent Rabobanks future cash resource needs as many of these obligations will lapse or terminate without

financing being required

The table below sets out the Asset Backed Commercial Paper conduits Outstanding Asset Backed Commercial Paper

declined to 15.3 billion in December 2009 2008 17.5 billion largely owing to the termination of the Neptune

programme These money market investment vehicles are mainly used for financing own originated loans and

customer loans and receivables These vehicles form an integral part of Rabobank Groups liquidity risk management

and have been largely included in the consolidated statement of financial position since the introduction of

International Financial Reporting Standards

Amount outstanding

in billions of euros

Type Programme Launched 31-Dec-09 Underlying portfolio

Solvency management Atlantis 1997 9.5 Own .originated.ioans

Client.facilitation Erasmus 200.0 2.3 Predominantly customer loans

N.ieuw.Amsterdam .199.9 2.3 and receivables

High-quality

Securities arbitrage Tempo 200.7 1.2 ass.etbacked.securities

Total 15.3

4.7 Market risk

Rabobank is exposed to market risk market risk arises on open positions in relation to interest rates currency

credit spreads and share-based products all of which are affected by general and specific market movements

Rabobank employs value-at-risk VaR method to estimate the market risk of positions it holds and the maximum

expected losses The method requires number of assumptions to be made for various changes in market conditions

to order to estimate the risk underabnormal market conditions as well the effect of certain extreme events event

risk on the value of the portfolios is also measured
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Each year the Executive Board determines the risk appetite and corresponding VaR and event risk limits These limits

are converted into limits at book level and are monitored daily by the market risk management department The risk

position is reported to senior management on daily basis and discussed in the various risks management committees

each month In addition to the VaR limits very extensive system of trading controls per book is in place These

controls include rotation risk delta limits per bucket nominal limits and the maximum number of contracts thus

limiting risks that may offset each other in the VaR system

The internal VaR model forms an integral part of Rabobanks risk management framework it has also been approved

by the Dutch Central Bank and is also applied to determine the solvency requirement for market risk Rabobank has

opted to apply VaR based on historical simulation for which one years worth of historic data is used The VaR is

calculated over time horizons of both one day and ten days For internal risk management purposes Rabobank has

opted for confidence level of 97.5% Furthermore the VaR with confidence level of 99% is also calculated on

daily basis

The major benefit of VaR model based on historical simulation is that no assumptions need to be made in terms

of distribution of possible value changes of the various financial instruments drawback is that certain period of

historic market movements needs to be selected which may affect the level of the calculated VaR Further to the

requirements of the supervisory authority and after internal research Rabobank has opted for historical period of

one year

The actual results are regularly assessed through back testing in order to determine the validity of the assumptions

and parameters/factors applied when calculating the VaR

In addition to the VaR model Rabobank employs stress testing programme which measures the effect of extreme

yet plausible events not taken into account in the regular VaR model Not only hypothetical scenarios but also actual

scenarios are extrapolated for this purpose such as the stock market crash of 1987 and the credit market turbulence

of 1998 Complementing the VaR model with the stress test results enables Rabobankto obtain more accurate

perspective on risk positions All results generated by the stress testing programme were within the relevant limits

The table below shows the composition of the VaR divided into several components diversification benefit is

obtained due to the fact that opposite positions in different books partially offset each other Paragraph 4.3

Interest rate risk provides analyses of the interest rate risk within the core business Compared to the previous yea the

average VaR increased by more than 50% during the year mainly owing to extreme volatility of the financial markets

By reducing positions the VaR increase was less steep than could be assumed based on the market development

VaR day 97.5%

Foreign

In millions of euros Interest rate Credit currency Shares Diversification Total

200931.D.ecember 22 15 1.2 22

2009.-..average 22 23 n/a 32

200.9.highest 33 36 n/a 50

2009.-Jowest 15 13 n/a 23

200.8.-.3i..Decernber 28 34 20 45

2008...average 3.1 35 n/a 39

2008.-..high.est 49 44 1.1 n/a 58

2008 lowest 15 28 n/a 3.1

Besides Value at Risk there are other important risk indicators for measuring market risk For example the Basis

Point Value indicates how the value of positions changes if the yield curve shows parallel increase by percentage

point These positions are shown for each key currency in the table below

Basis Point Value

in millions of euros 31-Dec-09

Euro 0.12

US 0.24

U.K 0.05

Australia OJO

Japan 0.07

Other 005
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4.8 Operational risk

Operational risk is risk category to which every single organisation is exposed

Rabobank Group has opted to steer its operational risk management at group level from Group Risk Management

This section determines the policy as well as the frameworks for all entities within the group Senior management

of the individual group units is responsible for managing the specific operational risks since the risks vary considerably

per unit and need to be controlled as close to the source as possible Group Risk Management subsequently

ensures that the frameworks are observed and that the risks and risk control measures are transparent throughout

the organisation

In terms of the solvency requirement for operational risks Rabobank applies model that meets the demands of

the Advanced Measurement Approach which has been approved by the Dutch Central Bank

This model takes into account realised losses and the possible consequences of certain scenarios Rabobank

Group adopts conservative approach Another factor taken into account when calculating the solvency requirement

is the quality of risk control

4.9 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

The next table shows the fair values of financial instruments based on the stated valuation methods and assumptions

This table is included because not all financial instruments are disclosed at fair value in the financial statements The

fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged or liability settled between two knowledgeable

and willing parties in an arms length transaction

Rabobank uses the market price as fair value if an active market exists such as stock market as this is the best

measure of the fair value of financial instrument

Market prices are not available for large number of the financial assets and liabilities that Rabobank holds or

issues Hence for financial instruments for which no market prices are available the fair values shown in the table

below have been estimated using the present value or the results of other estimation and valuation methods based

on the market conditions at the reporting date The values produced using these methods are highly sensitive to

the underlying assumptions used for the amounts as well as for the timing of future cash flows discount rates and

possible market illiquidity The following methods and assumptions have been used

Cash and cash equivalents The fair value of cash and cash equivalents is assumed to be almost equal to their carrying

amount This assumption is also used for highly liquid investments and the current component of all other financial

assets and liabilities

Due from other banks Due from other banks comprise interbank placings and items to be collected The fair values

of floating rate placings and overnight deposits are their carrying amounts The estimated fair value of fixed-interest

deposits is based on the present value of the cash flows calculated using appropriate money market interest rates

for debts with comparable credit risks and terms to maturity

Financial assets and derivative financial instruments held for trading Financial assets and derivative financial

instruments held for trading are carried at fair value based on available quoted market prices If quoted market

prices are not available the fair value is estimated from appropriate discounted cash-flow models and option

valuation models

Other financial assets at fair value through profit and loss These financial assets are carried at fair value based on

quoted prices in active markets if available If not they are estimated from comparable assets on the market or

using valuation methods including appropriate discounted cash-flow models and option valuation models

Loans to customers The fair value of issued loans is estimated from the present value of the cash flows using

current market rates for similar loans For variable-interest loans that are reviewed regularly and do not vary

significantly in terms of credit risk the fair value is based on the carrying amount until maturity

Available-for-sale financial assets and held-to-maturity financial assets Available-for-sale financial assets and

held-to-maturity financial assets are carried at fair value based on available quoted market prices If quoted market

prices are not available the fair value is estimated from discounted cash-flow models and option valuation models

Other financial assets For almost all other financial assets the carrying amount is good approximation of the fair

value

Due to other banks Due to other banks comprise iriterbank placings items to be delivered and deposits The fair

values of floating rate placings and overnight deposits are their carrying amounts The estimated fair value of fixed-

interest deposits is based on the present value of the cash flows calculated using ruling money market interest

rates for debts with comparable credit risks and terms to maturity

Trade liabilities The fair value of trade liabilities is based on available quoted market prices If quoted market prices

are not available the fair value is estimated from valuation models

Other financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss The fair value of these liabilities is based on available

quoted market prices If quoted market prices are not available the fair value is estimated from appropriate

discounted cash-flow models and option valuation models
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Due to customers Due to customers include current accounts and deposits The fair value of savings and current

accounts that have no specific termination date is assumed to be the amount payable on demand at the reporting

date i.e their carrying amount at that date The fair value of the deposits is estimated from the present value of

the cash flows based on current bid rates of interest for similar arrangements with terms to maturity that match

the items to be measured The carrying amount of variable-interest deposits is good approximation of their fair

value at the reporting date

Debt and other instruments issued by Rabobank The fair value of these instruments is calculated using quoted

market prices For notes for which no quoted market prices are available discounted cash flow model is used

based on current yield curve appropriate for the term to maturity

2009 2008

Carrying Carrying

In millions of euros amount Fair value amount Fair value

Assets

Cash.arid.cash..equivalents 16565 16565 7105 71.05

Due.from.other.b.anks 3564 36266 33776 33803

Trading.financi.aI.assets 1276.1 1.2761 1576 1.15.76

Other.financia.assets.at.fair.val.ue..thro.u.gh.pro.fitnd.loss 91.22 91.22 7896 896

D.erivative.finan.cial.assets 3909.1 3909.1 66759 66759

Loans.to.custorners 433870 431579 426283 426787

AvailabIefoNsale..fin.an.cial.assets 33349 33349 31665 31665

HeIdtornaturityfirtancial assets 418 423 497 .. .50.1

Total.assets 5.80817 5791.56 585557 586092

Liabilities

Due.to other banks 22429 22923 2389.1 22644

Due..to.custorn.ers 286338 .28578.1 304214.304647

Debt securities in issue 171752 1.71276 .135779 135328

Derivatives and.other trade liabilities 48765 48765 77230 77230

Other financial Liabilities.at.fair.value.through.profit.and loss 27319 27319...... 24 797 ........... 24797

S.ubordinated.debt 2362 .2323 21.59 21.65

Total.liabilities 558965 558387 5.68070 5.6681.1

The above-stated figures represent the best possible estimates by management based on range of

methods and assumptions

If quoted market price is available this is the best estimate of fair value If no quoted market prices are available

for fixed-term securities equity instruments derivative financial instruments and commodity instruments Rabobank

bases the fair value on the present value of the future cash flows discounted at market rates corresponding to

the credit ratings and terms to maturity of the investments Also model-based price can be used to determine

an appropriate fair value

Rabobanks policy is to have all models used for valuing financial instruments validated by expert staff who are

independent of the staff who determine the fair values of the financial instruments

In determining market values or fair values various factors have to be considered such as the time value of money

volatility underlying options warrants and derivative financial instruments Other factors included liquidity and the

creditworthiness of the counterparty The valuation process has been designed such that market prices that are

available on periodic basis are systematically used This systematic valuation process has proved its worth during

the credit market crisis Modifications to assumptions might affect the fair value of held-for-sale and available-for-sale

financial assets and liabilities

The table on the next page summarises the valuation methods used in determining the fair value of financial assets

and liabilities

The breakdown is as follows

Category Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Category Inputs other than quoted prices included in category that are observable for the asset or liability

either directly i.e as prices or indirectly i.e derived from prices

Category Inputs for the asset or liability not based on observable market data
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In millions of euros

At 31 December2009.

Assets

Trading financial assets

Other financial assets at fair

.value.throu.gh.proflt arid loss..

Derivative.financial.assets

Available-for-sale.financial assets

Liabilities

Derivatives and other

..trade.liabilities

Other financial liabilities at fair

value through.pro.flt arid loss

Fair value

changes

through profit

and loss

373 37

398 394

13 22

154

411

410

1.58

755

The amount in total gains or losses presented in the statement of income for the period relating to the assets and

liabilities held at the end of the reporting period is 20 and is recognised under Net income from other financial

assets and liabilities classified as at fair value through profit or loss Owing to the change in market conditions

certain financial instruments were reclassified at fair value to category
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In millions of euros Category category Category Total

At.31 December2009

Assets

Tradirig.finan.cial assets 087 4422 252 1.2761

O.ther.financial assets.at.fair value throu.gh.profit.and.oss 81.14 598 410 .. 91.22

Derivative finan.ci.al.assets 1687 37246 1.58 3909.1

Availablefofrsale..flnan.cial.asse.ts 31283 1311 755 33349

Liabilities

Derivatives.and.other trade.liabilities 900 .. 46817 48 48765

Other firiancial.liabilities at fair vaLue through proftt.and loss 2399 .24826 .94 27319

At.31 December2008

Assets

Trading financial assets 10670 86.1 45 11576

Other financial .assets.at fair value through profit and.Ioss 6654 869 373 7896

D.erivative flnancial.assets 1.8677 47684 398 66759

Availablefofrsale .flnancial.asse.ts 29713 1939 13 3.1665

Liabilities

Derivatives.and.other trade.liabilities 1.5448 .61782 230

Other..flnancial.liabilities at fair v.alue.through.proflt.an.d.loss 2435 22362 24797

If prices of the financial instruments at fair value in category decline by 10% the result is 143 2008 83 lower

The unrealised loss on these financial instruments included in the consolidated statement of income is 288

2008 226 gain

Financial instruments at fair value in category

Balance at

January

2009

45

Fair value

changes

through equity

Transfers to

or from

category

.33

Balance at

31 December

2009

252

Purchases

178

322

Sales Settlements

48 .48

95 94



Transfers from category to category

In miUions of euros

At.3.1..De.cernber 2009

Assets

Trading financial.asse.ts 2126

Other.financial assets at fair.vaiue through profit.arsd loss 3925

Derivative financial asse.ts 2076

Avaiable.-for-sale..finan.cial assets

Liabilities

D.erivatives.and other .trade.liabi 1714

Other financial liabilities at fair.value.through profit and loss

The table below shows the movement in deferred profit of the financial instruments which were initially recognised

at value determined using valuation technique based on data input not substantiated by market prices

Provision Day profit

In millions of euros 2009 2008

Opening.balance 96 223

Additions 60 32

Arnortisation 21 42

Movements 20 .1.1.7

closing balance 1.15 96

4.10 Securities services

Rabobank provides management advisory and custody services Assets held in connection with fiduciary activities

are not disclosed in these financial statements As part of its management services Rabobank has to make decisions on

the allocation purchase and sale of wide variety of financial instruments For some of the arrangements Rabobank

has agreed to achieve return targets for the assets under its management Rabobank provides advisory services to

third parties with regard to buy and sell orders With these management and advisory services Rabobank could be

exposed to the risk of being held liable for inadequate management advice or performance
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Business segments

The business segments Rabobank uses in its reporting are defined from management viewpoint This means they

are the segments that are reviewed as part of Rabobanks strategic management and for the purpose of making

business decisions and have different risks and returns

Rabobank distinguishes five major business segments Domestic retail banking Wholesale and international retail

banking Asset management and investment Leasing and Real estate

The Domestic retail banking segment mainly comprises the operations carried out by local Rabobanks and

Obvion

The Wholesale and international retail banking segment Rabobank International provides support to

Rabobank Group in achieving market leadership in the Netherlands as an all-finance service provider Internationally

it concentrates on the food agri sector Rabobank International undertakes regional corporate banking operations

while also including entities operating globally such as Global Financial Markets Structured Finance Leveraged

Finance Renewable Energy Infrastructure Finance Direct Banking and Trade Commodity Finance It carries on

its retail banking operations under the Rabobank label with the exceptions of ACCBank and Bank BGZ in addition

to participating in private equity firms

The Asset management and investment segment mainly comprises the operations of Robeco Schretlen Co and

Sarasin

The Leasing segment De Lage Landen is responsible for the lease operations offering wide range of lease

trade finance and consumer finance products in its Dutch home market Across the globe it supports sales of

manufacturers vendors and distributors offering them its asset finance products In Europe De Lage Landen

operates the car lease company Athlon Car Lease

The Real estate segment Rabo Vastgoedgroep performs Rabobanks real estate operations Its core business

is in developing residential and commercial real estate as well as providing finance and asset management services

operating under the labels Bouwfonds Ontwikkeling MAB Development FGH Bank and Bouwfonds REIM

The other business activities of Rabobank comprise variety of segments none of which requires separate

reporting Results reported under Otherare results from central hedge accounting as well as consolidation effects

Inter-segment transactions are conducted in accordance with normal commercial terms and market conditions

The domestic retail banking segment includes the dividend distributed to local Rabobanks of 342 million under

Other income No material income or expense items other than from operating activities arise between business

segments The assets and liabilities of segment comprise operating assets and operating liabilities in other words

substantial part of the statement of financial position but excluding items relating to tax

The accounting policies used for segment reporting are the same as those described in the section on the main

accounting policies used in preparing the consolidated financial statements

37

Notes to the consolidated financial statement



Wholesale

banking and inter-

Domestic retail national retail

banking banking

Domestic retail

banking

.4360
1261

505

61.26

4619

1507

294

1213

328907

21

328928

.308255

.308255

1.80

In millions of euros

For the..year.ended 3.1..Decernber 2009

Interest

Fees and commission

Other income

Total income

Segment expense

Operating profit befo re tax

income tax expense

Net profit for.the
.year

Business unit assets

investments in associates

Total assets

Business unit liabilities

Total liabilities

Additions to property and.equiprnent

Depreciation and amortisation including

amortisation of software

Value adjustments

In millions of euros

Wholesale

banking and inter- Asset

national retail management and

banking investment
Leasing Real estate Other Total

.. 2926 104 590 1.82 1.16.. 8046

488 757 .59 44 .. 34 2575

1.33 1.23 377 283 1.75 1246

3547 984 1026 5.09 325 1867

2723 954 9.16 419 3.68 9263

.. 824 30 110 2604

1.78 17 22 193 316

646 13 .1.12 68 236 2288

06823 22079 28712 2629.1 20.91.71 603642

331 72 27 78 35.27 056

407154 .221.51 28739 .26369 205643 607698

452593 1.9695 26013 25249 262205 .569600

452593 19695 26013 .25249 262205 569600

23 10 1394 90 243 1940

133 94 1.09 35 37 119 5.27

72.1 940 300 22 28 1959

Asset

management and

investment Leasing Real estate Other Total

Value adjustments in loans to customers

At January

Additional impairment for credit losses.

Reversal of impairment for credit losses

D.efaulting.loans written off during .the.year

Interest and other adjustments

Closing.baance

Individual value adjustment

specific provision

Collective value adjustment

collective provision

General provision IBN.R

1415

1500

556

382

.62

1915

1512

1398

154.1

805.

.191.

87

.2030

1706

164

160

.5 246

33.1

23

182

15

38

25

36

1.4

.45

41

14

42.

13

.31.30

3429

1440

.764

____ ____ 44

4399

274 45 13 3560

218 35 416

1.85 78 23

2030 915 .387 45 13 .4399
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Domestic retail

banking

.4758

.354

42

6154

4243

191.1

478

1433

309699

14

309713

290303

290303

165

Wholesale

banking and inter

national retail

banking

3156

304

14.63

99

2494

497

524

27

419413

304

41.971

476519

476519

.100

Asset

management and

investment

144

084

390

618

055

563

125

.438

21449

76

21525

19201

1.9201

32

Leasing

530

6.1

424

15

214

301

66

235

301.68

25

.301.93

27695

27695

.1062

Real estate

85

31

311

42

33

24

25895

.6
2590.1

24839

24839

53

Other

156

55

542

44.1

100

541

56

592

197959

3030

94929

259a96

259896

193

Total

8512

2889

246

11652

8800

2852

98

2754

.608665

3455

.6.1 2.1 20

5.78661

578661

1605

In millions of euros

For.the.year.ended 31 December2008

Interest

Fees.and commission

Other.incoroe

Total income

Segment expense

Operating profit before .tax

income tax expense

N.et profit for.the
.year

Business unit assets

investments .in associates

Total.asse.ts

Business unit liabilities

Total.liabillties

Additions to p.roperty.and equipment.

Depreciation and amortisat ion including

...amortisa.tion of software

Value adjustments

In millions of euros

Value.adjustments in loans.to customers

At.1 January

Additional value adjustment

for..credit.losses

Reversal of value adjustment

...for.credit.losses

Defaulting loans written off during

the.year

I.nterestan.d other.adjustme.nts

Closing.balance

Individual value adjustment

specific provision

Collective value adjustment

collective provision

General provision .IBNR

1.4 84 1.02 31 43 1.24 525

1.99 .786 42 118 44 1189

Asset

management and

investment

.4

Real estate

27

Leasing

226

1.95

Wholesale

banking and inter

national retail

banking

72.1

.1137

387

155

99

415

Other

Domestic retail

banking

1303

534

323

164

48

1398

1023

Total

2282

192916 42

55 15 780

1.16

246

170

4.125

161.02

441

140

31.30

1398 1415

127 23 267

258 1.86 53 506

41 2352

246 25 4.1 1.30



Cash and cash equivalents

In millions of euros 2009 2008

Cash 863 1259

Money marke.t loans 42 74

Deposits at central banks other than mandatory reserve deposits 15170 5236

Cash and.cash equivalents 16075 6569

Mandatory reserve .deposits.at.central.ban.ks 490 536

Total.cash.and .cash equivalents 1.6565 71.05

Mandatory reserve deposits consist of deposits with the Dutch Central Bank required under its minimum reserve

policy These deposits are not available to Rabobank for use in its daily business activities

Due from other banks

In millions of euros

Deposits with other banks

Assets transferred under .repurchase transactions

Loans

Other

Less value adjustments

Reclassffied assets

Total due frorn.other banks

Breakdown of value adjustments

At January

Additional impairment for credit losses

Reversal of.impairrnen.t.for credit losses

Value.adjustrnents

Amounts .written.offdu.ring..the.year

Other.chan.ges

At 31 December

Value adjustments of Due from other banks have been recognised in the statement of income as Value adjustments

In millions of euros

Investments in property

Income from and equipment and

external clients intangible assets

At 31 December 2009

Investments in property

Income from and equipment and

external clients intangible assets

At31 December2008

The.Netheri.ands

Other countries in the EU zone

Rest.of Europe .excl EU zone

North America

Latin America

Asia

Australia

O.ther.arid consolidation effects

Total

6638

097

042

1398

390

296

434

572

1.1867

1794

7.1

60

1.77

.. 12

15

7853

692

15

918

404

1.04

480

1214

50

415

18

41

68 1.86

2201 11652 663

2009

1648.1

12564

3518

78

134

32507

1.34

3564.1

1.18

26

19

1.34

2008

22585

462.1

241.1

76

118

29575

4201

33776

35

73

68

15

1.18
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Trading financial assets

In millions of euros 2009 2008

Purchased.loans 3644 2643

Shar.tte.rm.gov.emment.secu.rities 893 1.72

overnrnent.bo.nds 1802 2005

Other debt.se.curities 4094 4566

Equity.instrurnents 2328 21.90

Total 1.2761 1.15.76

Other financial assets at fair value through profit and loss

In millions of euros 2009 2008

Sh.ort-term.government.s.ecurities 1.13 13

Government.bonds 762
.........

565

Other.debt.securities ........... 5780...... 6443

Venture.capital 518 646

Equity.instruments 1949 229

Total 91.22 7896

The maximum credit risk of other financial assets at fair value through profit and loss is 6655 2008 7021

The current years decrease in the fair value of the financial assets that is allocable to the changes in credit risk

is 19 This also represents the cumulative decrease

Derivative financial iistrumentsand other trade liabiUties

10.1 Types of derivative instruments used by Rabobank

Forward currency and interest rate contracts are contractual obligations to receive or pay net amount based on

changes in exchange or interest rates or to purchase or sell foreign currency or financial instrument on future

date at fixed specified price in an organised financial market As collateral for forward contacts is provided in the

form of cash cash equivalents or marketable securities and changes in the value of forward contracts are settled

daily the credit risk is negligible

Forward rate agreements are individually agreed forward interest rate contracts under which the difference

between contractually agreed interest rate and the market rate on future date has to be settled in cash based

on notional principal amount

Currency and interest rate swaps are commitments to exchange one set of cash flows for another Swaps entail an

economic exchange of currencies or interest rates such as fixed rate for one or more variable rates or combination

i.e cross-currency swap Except for certain currency swaps there is no transfer of the principal amount The credit

risk exposure of Rabobank represents the potential cost of replacing the swaps if the counterparties default The risk

is monitored continuously against current fair value portion of the notional amount of the contracts and the

liquidity of the markets As part of the credit risk management process Rabobank employs the same methods for

evaluating counterparties as it does for evaluating its own lending activities

Currency and interest rate options are contracts under which the seller known as the writer gives the buyer

known as the holder the right entailing no obligation to purchase in the case of call option or sell in the case

of put option specific amount of foreign currency or specific financial instrument on or before an agreed date

or during an agreed period at price set in advance As consideration for accepting the currency or interest rate

risk the writer receives payment known as premium from the holder Options are traded on exchanges or

between Rabobank and clients OTC Rabobank is exposed to credit risks only as option holder and only up to the

carrying amount which is equal to the fair value in this case

Credit default swaps CDSs are instruments by means of which the seller of CDS agrees to pay the buyer an

amount equal to the loss that would be incurred by holding an underlying reference asset if specific credit event

were to occur i.e the materialisation of risk The buyer is under no obligation to hold the underlying reference

asset The buyer pays the seller credit protection fee expressed in basis points with the size of the fee depending

on the credit spread of the reference asset
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10.2 Derivative financial instruments issued or held for trading

Rabobank trades in financial instruments to take positions in tradable or OTC instruments including derivative

financial instruments so that it can profit from short-term movements on share and bond markets and in exchange

and interest rates For this type of trading Rabobank sets risk limits relating to market positions at the end of the

day overnight trades as well as during the day intraday trades Apart from specific hedging rules the currency

and interest rate risks associated with these derivative financial instruments are usually offset by taking counter

positions in order to manage the volatility in the net amounts needed to liquidate the market positions

10.3 Derivative financial instruments held as hedges

Rabobank concludes various derivative contracts that are intended as fair value cash flow or net investment

hedges and which accordingly qualify as such Rabobank also concludes derivative contracts as hedges against

economic risks It does not apply hedge accounting to these contracts

Fair value hedges

Most of Rabobanks fair value hedges are interest rate and cross currency swaps that provide protection against

potential decrease in the fair value of fixed-interest financial assets or potential increase in the fair value of clients

time deposits in local as well as foreign currencies The net fair value of the interest at 31 December 2009 is loss

of 6769 2008 loss of 6043

Rabobank hedges part of its
currency

risk exposure relating to available-for-sale shares with fair value hedges in

the form of
currency

futures contracts The net fair value of these forward
currency contracts at 31 December 2009

is loss of 2008 loss of 1253

For the year ended 31 December 2009 Rabobank recognised loss of 77 2008 gain of 98 on the portion of the

fair value hedges classified as ineffective

For the year ended 31 December 2009 Rabobank recognised loss of 1155 2008 loss of 7380 on the hedging

instrument The total profit on the hedged position allocable to the hedged risk is 1078 2008 7478

Cash flow hedges

Rabobank makes almost no use of cash flow hedges

Net investment hedges

Rabobank uses forward currency contracts to hedge part of the translation risk on net investments in foreign enti

ties The net fair value of these forward currency contracts at 31 December 2009 was 24 2008 loss of 60
At 31 December 2009 forward contracts with total notional amount of 2.0 10 2008 1336 were classified as net

investment hedges These contracts produced gains totalling 281 2008 211 which were recognised in equity

No deductions from equity were made during the year 2008 For the year ended 31 December 2009 Rabobank

recognised no ineffectiveness result of the net investment hedges

42

Consolidated Financial Statements 2009 Rabobank Group



10.4 Notional amount and fair value

Although the notional amount of certain types of financial instruments provides basis for comparing instruments

that are included in the statement of financial position it does not necessarily represent the related future cash

flows or the fair values of the instruments Hence it does not represent the exposure of Rabobank to credit or

exchange risks The notional amount is the value of the underlying asset or reference rate or index of derivative

financial instrument and forms the basis for measuring changes in the value of such instruments It provides an

indication of the volume of transactions executed by Rabobank it is not measure of risk exposure however

Some derivative financial instruments are standardised in terms of notional amount or settlement date having been

designed for trading on active markets i.e on stock exchanges Others are specifically constructed for individual

clients and not for trading on an exchange even though they can be traded at prices negotiated by buyers and

sellers OTC instruments

The positive fair value represents the cost for Rabobank to replace all contracts on which it will be entitled to

receive payment Replacement would apply in the event of all counterparties remaining in default This is the

standard method in the industry for calculating the current credit risk exposure The negative fair value represents

the cost of all Rabobank contracts on which it will have to make payment Replacement would apply in the event of

Rabobank remaining in default The total of positive fair values and the total of negative fair values are disclosed

separately in the statement of financial position Derivative financial instruments are favourable if passive or not

favourable if not passive as result of swings in market or exchange rates in relation to their contract values

The total contract amount or notional amount of derivative financial instruments held the degree to which these

instruments are favourable or not favourable and hence the total fair value of the derivative financial assets and

liabilities can sometimes fluctuate significantly

The next table shows the notional amounts and the positive and negative fair values of Rabobanks derivative

contracts
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In millions of euros Contract/Notional amount Fair value

Liabilities

2835121 .38600

.115010 7662

2503

2950131 48765

3625.1

.377339

6826

1032

622

422070

28759

983

35742

192

8794

.16800

3812

2835.1 2.1

0374

1.04635

1.1 5009

538

2392

82

38215

23037

.337

3146

26523

16

26539

422

223

7645

17

662

Assets

38215

876

.3909.1

63.1

.7288

205

12

8136

607

6709

159

1.1

7486

1399986 21575

574 29

699566 311

1.69344 3208

.. 2269470 .25123

227

697 251.24

At 31..Decemb.er 2009

Derivative financial instruments held for trading

Derivative financial instruments held as hedges ..

Shor.t.positions.shares and bonds.

Total .derivative..financial assets/liabilities recognised

Derivative financial instruments held.for trading

Currency.derivative.financial instruments ..

Unlisted tradable contracts OTC
Forward currency contracts

Currency swaps

Currency options

Liste.d tradable contracts

Currency futures

Options

Total.currency.derivativ.e.financiai instruments

Interest rate derivative.financial instruments

Un listed tradable contracts OTC

Interest .rate swaps

Cross.currency interest .rate swaps

Forward .rate agreements

interest rate.options

Total OTC contracts

Listed tradable.contracts

Interest rate swaps

Total.interes.t.rate derivative financial instruments

Cr.edit.derivative financial instruments

Credit default swaps

Total return.swaps

Total.credit derivativ.e.fi.nancia

Equity instrunientsiindex derivative financial instruments

iinlisted.tradable.contracts OTC

Options ..

Lis.te.d.tradable contracts

Futures

Options ... ..

Total.e.quity.instruments/index.derivative .financial.instruments

Other derivative financial instruments

Total.derivative .firiancial.assets/liabilities.held for.trading

Derivative.financial.instruments held.as hedges

D.erivative.finan.cial instru.m.ents.classified.as.fair.value.hedges

Currency.swaps.and.cross.curren.cy.interest.rate.swa.ps

Interest rate swaps

Total derivative..financial instruments classified.as fair.val.ue .hedges

Deri.vative.financial instruments classified as.cash flow hedges

Interest rate swaps

Total.derivative .financial.assets/liabilities.ciassified.as .he.dges
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1713

768

2481

8527814

960

628

588

715

2715

272

38600

2.1

454

875

876115010



In millions of euros Contract/Notional amount Fair value

At.3.1..Decernber 200

Derivative financial.instuments held for trading

Derivative financial.instruments.held.as hedges

Shor.t positions shares and bonds

Total.derivative.flnartcial.assets/liabilities.recogriise.d

Derivative financial.instruments held for trading

Currency.derivative financial instruments

Unlisted.tradable contracts OTC

Forward currency contracts

Currency.swaps

Currency options

Listed tradable co.ntracts

Currency futures

Options

Total
currency derivative financial instruments

interest rate derivative.financial instruments

Unlisted tradable.contracts.OTC

Interest rate swaps

Cross-currency interest rate.swaps

Forward rate agreements

Interest .rate options

Total OTC.contracts

Lis.te.d tradable.co.ntracts

Interest rate swaps

Total.interes.t.r.ate.derivative.financial.instru.ments

Creditde.rivative.financial..instruments

Credit defaultswaps

Total retur.n swaps

Total credit derivative financial instruments

Equity.irsstruments/index derivathie.financial instruments

Unlisted tradable contracts OTC

Options

Listed tradable contracts

F.utures

Options

Total equity instruments/index derivative financial instruments

Other der.i.vative financial instruments

Total.derivative financial assets/liabilities held for tradin.g

Derivative financial instruments.held as hedges

Deri.vative financial instruments.classified.as fair value hedges

Currency.swaps

Interest rate swaps

Total.derivative..financial.instrumen.ts.classified.as.fair.value hedges

Derivative financial instruments classified.as cash flow hedges

Interest rate swaps

Total.derivative..financial.assets/liabilities.ciassified as hedges

2410230

129936

1.66

45390

286074

9325

1855

135

342779

1322629

149.85

31.9628

181950

1809222

126797

1936019

114137

7069

.121206

5094

213

614

5921

4305

2410230

987

112949

129936

Assets

66058

701

.66759

1710

1.0874

424

.15

1.3023

34810

263

.366

4573

40012

40015

1.38

1.42

.9280

3398

53

345.1

289

66058

33.1

370

701

701

Liabilities

66967

7997

2266

77230

1716

135.02

332

26

15577

361.72

79

377

420

41048

.65

40983

5530

593

123

41.07

1.73

4280

66967

1584

6413

7997

997129936
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11 Loans to customers

In millions of euros 2009 2008

Loans initiated by Rabobanic ..

Loans to.go.vernrnent.clients

leasing 847 833

other .3091 8019

Loans.to.pri.vate.cli.ents

ov.erd rafts 5025 1.4832

mortgages .201477 192741

leasing 1.9750 1.9684

-receivables relating to.securities transactions 8368 3816

corporate loans 145618 152424

other 35445 27070

Gross loans to customers 42962.1 4.1.9419

Less changes.in Ioans.to customers 4399 3130

425222 41.6289

Reclassffie.d.assets 8648 9994

Tatal.loans to customers 433870 426283

The impairment of reclassified assets amounts to 217 2008 317 and is recognised in profit and loss under Net

income from other financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit and loss

In millions of euros 2009 2008

Value adjustments in loans to customers

Value.adjustments in .loans.to customers can be.broken do.wn as follows

At 1.January 1.30 2282

Additional impairmen.t.for.credit.losses 3429 1929

Reversal of impairment for.credit losses 440 780

D.efaulting.loans written.off.during.the..year 7.64 441

Interestand other.ch.an.ges 44 1.40

Total value.adjustments in.loans to customers 4399 31.30

Individual.va adjustment .specffic.provision 3560 2357

Collective.value adjustment collective provision 416 .267

General provision IBNR 423 506

Total.value.adjustments.in.loans.to.custo.mers 399 31.30

Gross carrying amount of loans whose value adjustments

...wer.e.establish.ed.on an individual.basis spe.cific.and.colle.ctiv.e provisio.ns 9090 6455

The fair value of the collateral obtained by the bank for assets which were individually adjusted at the reporting

date amounts to 6983 2008 3000

During the year Rabobank acquired financial and non-financial assets by taking possession of collateral with an

estimated value of 26 2008 18 In general it is Rabobanks policy to sell these assets in the reasonably foreseeable

future Yields are allocated to repay the outstanding amount

Reclassification of financial assets

Based on the amendments to lAS 39 and IFRS Reclassification of financial assets Rabobank has reclassified

number of trading financial assets and available-for-sale financial assets to loans to customers and due from other

banks

Rabobank has identified assets to which this amendment applies with the intention clearly shifting to holding

the securities for the near future as opposed to selling or trading them in the short term The reclassifications were

effected as from July 2008 at their fair value at the time This note provides details on the impact of the reclassifi

cations at Rabobank
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The table below shows the carrying amounts and fair values of the reclassified assets

31 December 2009 31 december 2008

Carrying Carrying

In millions of euros amount Fair value amount Fair value

Trading financial assets reclassified to loans.... .. ...........................23.46 ...... 2051...... 3468 ..... 2995

Available-for-sale..finanrial.asse.ts.reclassified.to.loans 9436 8098 1.0727 9106

Total.financial.assets.re.classified.toioans 11782 10149 195 1210.1

The reclassification of trading financial assets had an adverse effect on the net profit for 2009 owing to unrealised

fair value losses of 177 not being included The reclassification of trading financial assets had favourable effect on

the net profit for 2008 due to the fact that unrealised fair value losses of 393 had not been included

The change in equity in 2009 would have been 84 higher 2008 730 lower if available-for-sale financial assets

had not been reclassified

Following reclassification the reclassified financial assets made the following contribution to operating profit

before taxation in 2009

Year ended Year ended

31 December 2009 31 December 2008

N.et.interest income 96 86

Value.adj.ustrnents

Operating profit before.taxation on reclassified trading.financial assets 88 86

Netinterest.incorne 254 1.15

Value.adj.ustrnents 209 31.7

Operating profit before taxation on reclassified avaiIab.lefo.rsale.financial.assets 45 202

Value adjustments includes an amount of EUR 116 in connection with the remeasurement of the asset at the

present value of future cash flows at the effective interest rate at the inception of the contract

Finance leases

Loans to customers also includes receivables from finance leases which can be broken down as follows

In millions of euros 2009 2008

Receivables frorn.gross investrne.nt.in..finance.leases

Shorter.than..1..year 7079 8296

Longer.th.ari.1..year..but.not.onger.than.5.years 1.2622 1.3354

Long.er.th.an.5.years 11.55 42.1

Total.receivab.les.fro.m..gross.investrnertti.n.finance.leas.es 20856 2307.1

Unearned deferred.finance..incorne from finance.leases 800

Netinvestment in .firian.ce.leases 2021 20271

Net investment.in finance leases.can be broken.down as.follows

Shorter than..1..year..... ................. ............ ......................................... 7442 .7846
Long.er..than..1..year..butnotonger.than..5.years 1.i536..............1.i326

Longer than.5.years 1045 1099

Net investment in .finan.ce.leases................. ........................................................ 20023 ......... 20271

The provision for finance leases included in value adjustments amounted to 386 at 31 December 2009 2008 246

The unguaranteed residual values accruing to the lessor amount to 149 2008 95 The contingent lease payments

recognised as income in 2009 are nil
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12 Available-for-sale financial assets

In millions of euros 2009 2008

Shortterm government securities..... .. .... 887 1579

Government bonds

Other debt instruments 228 11964

Eq.uity.ins.trurne.nts 1025 994

Total.available-for.-sale..finan.cial.assets 33349 3.1665

The impairment of available-for-sale financial assets amounts to 33 2008 646 and is recognised in profit and loss

under Net income from other financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit and loss

Gains or losses on available-for-sale financial assets can be broken down as follows

In millions of euros

D.ereco.gnised.available-for-sale.finan.cial.asse.ts

The changes in available-for-sale financial assets can be broken down as follows

2009 2008

1.38 51

2009

31665

302

25543

24336

715

64

33349

2009

360

58

418

2008

50355

2232

16204

27448

.1031

86 1.6

31

31665

2008

464

33

497
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In millions of euros

Opening balance

Transtation.differen.ces.on.mo.n.etary assets

Additions

Disposals.sale and repayment

Changes .in.fair.vatue

Reclassified assets

Other.than.ges

Closing.balance

13 Held-to-maturity financial assets

In millions of euros

Government bo.nds

Other.deb.t instruments

Tatal.heldto-maturity financial assets ..

The changes in held-to-maturity financial assets can be broken down as follows

In millions of euros

Opening balance.

Additions..

Redemption

impairments

Closin.g.balance

2009 2008

497 859

1.09 304

.1.85 6.64

2.

418 497



14 Investments in assodates

In millions of euros 2009 2008

O.pening.balarice 3455 4558

Purchases 425 1.8.1

Sales

Share.of.profitofassociates 592 26

Dividends.paid 1.7 10

Associates iricluded.in consolidation .. 340

Revaluation 359 41.6.

Other 37 489

Total 4056 3455

The principal associates are listed under note 46 Principal subsidiaries and associates The main investments made in

2009 totalling 416 were Eureko in the Netherlands Banco Terra in Mozambique Banco Regional in Paraguay and

FinTerra in Mexico In addition Rabobank sold the home search portals Moviq and Zoekallehuizen

15 Intangible assets

Software Other

developed intangible

In millions of euros Goodwill in-house assets Total

Year.ended 31 December 2009

Netopenin.g.carrying.amount 2408 378 942 3728

Foreign excha age differences 68

Additions 221 40 262

Other 34 43 25 34

Amortisation 82 150 232

Impairments 51 .. 53

Netclosing..carrying.amount 2363 510 863 3736

Cost 238.1 85.1 1429 66.1

Accumulated depreciation and impairments .1.8 341 925

Netcarrying amount 2363 510 863 3736

Year ended 31 December2008

Net opening.carrying amount .2046 268 869 183

Foreign exchange differences

Additions 337 162 89 588

Acquisition/disposal.of subsidiaries 16 16

Other 22 29 .1.10 .161

Amor.tisation 75 138 21.3

Impairments .1.4

Net closing carrying.amount .. 2408 378 942 3728

Co.s.t 2423 584 380 4387

Accurnuiated.de.preciation..an.d.inipairments .15 206 438 659

Netcarryingamount .2408 378 .942 37.28

49

Notes to the consolidated financial statement



Goodwill is reviewed for impairment by comparing the carrying amount of the cash-generating unit including good

will with the best estimate of the value in use of the cash-generating unit For that purpose first the best estimate of

the value in use is determined on the basis of cash flow forecasts taken from annual medium-term plans drawn up as

part of the annual planning cycle which reflect the managements best estimates of market conditions market restric

tions discount rates after taxation growth in operations etc If the outcome shows that there is no significant diffe

rence between the fair value and the carrying amount the fair value is assessed in more detail with the relevant share

price being used for listed companies In addition valuation models are used which are similar to the initial recognition

of an acquisition peer reviews etc The valuation models are assessed and include the development of the activities

since the acquisition the most recent income and expenditure forecasts drawn up by management as well as updated

forecasts assessments of discount rates end values of growth rates etc Peer reviews include an assessment of the

price/earnings ratio and price/carrying amount ratio of similar listed companies or similar market transactions

Assumptions are generally based on experience managements best estimates of future developments and if availa

ble external data Market developments in 2009 had significant impact on the estimated fair values of reportable

entities However impairment testing as at 31 December 2009 on the basis of assumptions best estimates and reaso

nably likely changes thereto did not result in the recognition of impairment losses

16 Propertyand equipment

Land and

In millions of euros buildings Equipment Total

Year.ended3.1 December 2009..............................................................................................................

Net openin.g.carrying.amount .... .. .............................................................2236...... 3634.... 5870

Eoreign..exch.an.gedifferences 18 18

Purchases 410 1530 1940

Disposals 89 534 623

Depreciation 132 163 295

Impairments

D.ep.re.ci.ation.of.o.pe.rating..easeass.ets 725 725.

Other 35 .1.9 54

Net closing .carrying.arnount 2383 3.z4 61.24

Cost 3897 .691.1 10807

Accurnu.lated.depreciation..an.d.impairrnents 15.14 31.70 4683

Net.carrying.arnount 2383 3741 124

Land and

In millions of euros buildings Equipment Total

Yea r.ended.3.1 Dece.mbe.r.200.8

Netopenin.g carrying.amourit 1974 3598 5572

Eoreign.excharige..differences 10 33 23

Purchases 1.84 1228 1412

Acquisition..of subsidiaries 1.92 ..................1.93

Disposals 76 261 337

Depreciation 144 168 312

Depre.ciation.of.o.pe.ratiug.1.ease.ass.ets 704 704

Other 96 27 69

Net.closing.carry.ing.arnount 2236 3634 5870

Co.s.t 3660 6540 1.0200

Accumulated.depreciatiori an.d.impairments 1424 2906 .4330

Net.carrying.amo.unt 2236 ...............363................5870
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17 Investment properties

In millions of euros 2009 2008

Net opening.carrying..amount 1038 11.05

Purcisases 80 1.3.1

Sales 108 183

Depreciation 28 33

Transferred from.other assets 446

Other 65 18

Net.closing.carrying amount 1363 i038

The carr.yin.g.amou.nt.exceeds the.fair.value by.41

Cost 1676 1258

Accumulated depreciation 313 220

Netcarrying amount 1363 1038

The maximum remaining maturity of investment properties is 15 years

Other assets

In millions of euros 2009 2008

Receivables and.prepayments 1392 1380

Accrued interest 1640 2377

Precio.us.metals.goods an.d.warehouse.receipts 1.0.1 65

Assetsirs.pro.gress 3251 707

Accrued income 443 678

Other assets 2348

Total.other.assets 872.1 10555

Real estate projects

In millions of euros 2009 2008

Building sites.and..equaiisation funds 1949 1954

Work in progress 1096 1492

Trade.receivables..real.estate 206 261

Total.real estate projects 325.1 3707

Work in progress

In millions of euros 2009 2008

Housing.development.planned and.under..constru.ction 919 131.1

Commercial real estate under development and under construction 1629 1374

Housing construction instalments.invoiced in advance 51.6 725

Commercial real.estate.instalments..invoiced.in.advarice 936 68

Total.real estate projects 096 1492

19 Due to other banks

In millions of euros 2009 2008

Other.loans 3442 091

Money.market deposits 33 105

Time deposits.. 1.3379 .11882

Other.deposits 3622 6101

Bepurchase.agreemen.ts 1953 712

Total due.to.other banks 22429 2389.1
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20 Due to customers

In millions of euros 2009 2008

Savings 121373 1.1.4680

Currentaccount/settlern.en.t.accoun.ts 761.56 73062

Tirne.deposi.ts 47897 81554

Repurchase.agreements 1207 664

Other.due..to.cus.to.rn.ers 39705 34254

Total due to.customers .286338 304214

Due to customers also includes investments of central banks of 13 2008 23 billion

21 Debt securities in issue

In millions of euros 2009 2008

Certificates of deposit 239.1 32004

.com.mer.cial.paper 25473 23345

Bonds 90259 78076

O.ther.debt.se.curities 3629 2354

Total.debtsecurities.in.issue 171752 135779

22 Other debts

In millions of euros 2009 2008

Payables 1.84 2652

Dividends.payabie 1.58 1.42

Accrued interest 3030 3598

Other 1596 21.56

Provision for.day .1 profit 1.15 96

Total.other.debts 8083 8.644

23 Other financial liabilities at fair value through

profit and loss

The change in the fair value of the other financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss that is attributable to

changes in Rabobanks credit risk is -183 after taxes 2008 736 The cumulative change in fair value attributable to

changes in Rabobanks credit risk since the issue of structured notes amounts to 742 The change in fair value that

is allocable to changes in the credit risk is calculated by establishing connection with the change in credit mark-up

of structured notes issued by Rabobank The amount Rabobank is obliged to pay on the contract repayment date

discounted at the effective rate of interest exceeds the carrying amount by 0.7 billion 2008 1.6 billion

In millions of euros 2009 2008

Structured notes 22498 19729

.Other.debt securities 41.80 4189

Tirne.deposits 64 379

Total other financial.iiabilities.at.fair.value.through profit.and loss 27319 24797
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24 Provisions

Rabobank recognised the following provisions during the year

In millions of euros

Restructuring provision

Provision for tax.a.nd.le.gal issues

Other

Total.provisions

223

7.1

70

228

512

63

58

.1.3

512

140

213

355

1095

348

60

42

154

223

63.1

8.1

38

1.69

512

188

53

19

140

875

Approximately 43% 2008 40% of the provision for tax and legal issues relates to tax claims Other includes

provisions for onerous contracts credit guarantees Opmaat and obligations under the terms of the deposit

guarantee system

Maturity of the Rabobank provisions

excluding provisions for employee benefits and doubtful debts

Less than More than

In millions of euros year 1-5 years years Total

At.31 December2009 952 1.39 095

At.31 December 2008 793 13 875
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2009

228

512

355

1095

2008

223

512

1.40

875

Restructuring provision

Opening balance

Interest

Additions..charged.to.proflt

Withdrawals

Release

closing balance

Provision..for tax.and.le.gal issues

Opening.balance

Interest

Additions charged to profit

Withdrawals

Release

Closing balance

Other

Opening balance

Add.itions .charged.to.profit.due..to.d.eposit.guarantee.system

O.ther.additions charged to profit

Withdrawals ..
Release

Closing balance

Total provisions

.87



25 Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured for all temporary differences using the liability method based on

an effective tax rate of 25.5% 2008 25.5% in the Netherlands No deferred tax asset has been recognised for carry

forward losses totalling approximately 735 2008 275 The carry forward losses relate to various tax authorities and

their term to maturity is unlimited Changes in the deferred income tax account can be broken down as follows

In millions of euros 2009 2008

Deferred tax assets

Openingbalance 1619 .1565

Recognised.in.profit.andloss

-irs.re.spect.ofrate.changes 17

o.ther temporary differences .60 56

AvaiIableforsale..finan.cial.assets 2.70 439

Foreign cxc ha nge differences 20 83

Acqulsition/disposal.of.subsidiaries

Other 95 540

Closing balance 1.74 1619

Defe.rredtaxliabilities

Opening balance 474 851

Recognised in proflt.and loss

in res.pe.ct.of.rate changes 12

other temporary .d ifferences 34 6.77.

Availablefofrsale flrsancial.assets 32 59

Foreign exchange differences 37

Acquisition/.disposal of.subsidiaries 37

Other .14 155

Closin.g.balance 489 474

Deferred tax assets

Pensions and other.post-employ.ment.benefits 347 29

Impairments 739 559

O.ther.provisions 26 1.36

Hed.gingof interest rate risk 315 307

Carr.y.forward.iosses .243 505

ntarigible..ass.ets 1.14 238

AFS.reserve 12 405

Property and equipm.en.t.including.leases 120

Otherteniporar.y differences 1.92 54

Total.deferred.tax.assets 1174 1619

Defe.rred.tax.liabilities

I.ntangibleassets 150

O.ther.pro.visions 1.63

Pension.and.oth.er post-emplo.ymen.t benefits

Other tempo rar.y
differences 12 1.92

AFS.r.eserve 23 44

Other temporary differences 285 88

Total.deferred.tax.liabili.ties 89 474
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The deferred tax expense included in the income statement can be broken down by temporary difference as

follows

In millions of euros 2009 2008

Property.and equipment ...... .... 21 ...... 11.4

Pensions and other post-employment benefits .329...... .1.0

Impairments provisions.and.losses.on..firtan.cial.assets 147 31 5.

Carr.y.for.ward losses 28 2.96

Other ternporar.y.di.fferences 1.07

Deferred .tax.expense 26 738

26 Employee benefits

In millions of euros 2009 2008

Employee benefits-assets 1467

Employee.benefits liabilities 500 371

Total.employee benefits 967 371

Pension.plans 1408 15
Other.ernplo.yee benefits 441 556

Total pension liabilities .967 371

26.1 Pension plans

Rabobank has implemented several pension plans covering significant percentage of its employees Most of

the plans are career average defined benefit plans some of which are administered by pension funds The assets

of the fund-administered plans are held independently of Rabobank assets and are managed by the trustees of the

funds These plans are valued each year by independent actuaries using the method prescribed by IERS The most

recent actuarial valuations were carried out at the end of 2009 About 95% of the pension liability relates to the

Rabobank Pension Fund with 3% relating to foreign pension funds and 2% to other Dutch pension funds

The weighted averages of the principal actuarial assumptions used in the valuation of the provision for defined

benefit plans at 31 December in per annum are

2009 2008

Discount.rate 5.25 5.75

Projecte.d.saiary.trends

Price.inflation

Wage inflation 2.25 .2.25

Expected return on investments 5.75 6.25

The expected long-term return on the Rabobank Pension Funds portfolio depends largely on the allocation of assets

to various investment categories fixed-interest securities shares real estate and alternatives as each category

has its own specific projected returns The Dutch Central Bank which is the supervisory authority for the pensions

industry has set limits to projected returns for the various investment categories that may be disclosed as part of

continuity analysis Based on the present asset allocation in the Rabobank Pension Funds portfolio and the Dutch

Central Banks parameters the projected long-term return is estimated at 5.75% Experience adjustments on plan

liabilities amounted to 88 2008 320

55

Notes to the consolidated financial statenlent



In millions of euros 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

Pres.en.t.valu.e .1.1.O74.942 9497 9699 .9676

Fair value of.plan.assets 12020 12206 .1.1013 .1.0262 8739

946 27.78 15.1.6 5.63 937

Present value.of liabilities.not administered.by funds .1

Unreco.gnised.actuarial.gains/.osses 4.62 2592 1859 1.84 .62

Unreco.gnised.past.service costs 38

Net liabilities 1408 185 341 618 838

In millions of euros 2009 2008

Pres.en.t.value.of liabilities adrninistered..byfunds

Presen.t.valu.e.of.entitlernents.at.1.January 9428 .. 9497

Interest 526 522

Increase .in..en.titlements.d.uring .the year 368 377

Benefits paid 187 200

Transfer.o.f.accrued.beriefits 116 15

Pension plan.chan.ges

Other 32 .. 59

Expected.present value of .entitlernents.at 3.1..December 1.0283 1.0.1 53

Actuarial result 79.1 725

Presen.t.value.of.entitlem.ents.at.3.1..De.cernher 11074 9428

Fair..value.of plan.asse.ts

Fair value.of.asse.ts.a.t 1.January 1.2206 1.1013

Acquired plan.assets 762 669

Expected income from investments 606 425

Premium contributed by the employer 60 .. 22

Premium contrib.uted.by.the employee 187 .. 200

Transfe.r of.accrued beaefi.ts.and costs 116

Other .14 46

Expected fair value of assets at 31 December 13549 11886

Actuarial result 1529 320

Fair.value.of.assets.at 31 December 1.2020 12206

The premium to be contributed to the 2010 plan is expected to be 600

Plan assets have been allocated as follows

__________________________________________________________________________________________
2009 2008

Shares 51.0% 51.6%

Fixed-interest securities 39.5% 38.1%

Real estate 6.9% ... 6.9%

Cash.and.cash..eq.uivalents 16% 3.4%

Total.plan assets 100% .100%

Less than 5% of plan assets is allocated to Rabobanks own funds These are chiefly cash and cash equivalents held

with Rabobank
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In millions of euros 2009 2008

Actual.income from.inves.tments...

Expected.in.corne..frorn.investrnents 762 669

Actuarial result 1529 320

Actual.income from investments 7.67 989

The amounts recognised in consolidated statement of income for the year are as follows

In millions of euros 2009 2008

Costs based on period.of employment during th.e.year 368 3.7

interest on liabilities 526 522

Expected income from plan assets 762 6.69

Past ser.vice costs

Amortisation of actuarial gainsJIosses 734 312

Lossesgains.o.n.disco.unts./settlements/costs 40

Total.cost.of defined.benefit.pians 562 .74

26.2 Other employee benefits

Other employee benefits mainly comprise early retirement liabilfties/non-active persons scheme for an amount of

251 2008 362 and liabilities for future long-service awards for an amount of 812008 73

27 Subordinated debt

In millions of euros 2009 2008

Trust Preferred.Securities 1.1 39.1 1257

RabobankNedertand 1910 839

FGN.Bank 42 40

Other 19 23

Total .subordiriated..debt 2362 2159

Movements in the Trust Preferred Securities II are stated in the table below

In millions of euros 2009 2008

Trust Preferred Securities 1.1

At.1 Januar.y 1257 1189

Purchase.of Trust Preferred Securities 722

Foreign exchange differences and other 144 68

At.3.1..Decernb.er 391 1257

In 2003 1.75 million non-cumulative Trust Preferred Securities were issued by Rabobank Capital Funding Trust II

Delaware group company of Rabobank Nederland The expected distribution is 5.26% until 31 December 2013

after which the expected distribution is equal to the three-month USD LIBOR plus 1.6275% The total proceeds from

this issue amounted to USD 1750 As from 31 December 2013 these Trust Preferred Securities can be repurchased

on each distribution date once every quarter after prior written approval is received from the Dutch Central Bank

Rabobank Nederland granted loan of 1000 in 2005 bearing interest at fixed rate of 4.74% and maturing in

2015 In 2009 Rabobank Nederland granted loan of 1000 at fixed interest rate of 5.875% falling due in 2019

The subordinated debt is lower at group level since portion has been placed with group companies

The subordinated loan of FGH Bank is loan of 42 bearing interest at fixed rate of 6% The loan matures in 2012
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28 Contingendes and commitments

Credit related liabilities

Credit granting liabilities represent the unused portions of funds authorised for the granting of credit in the form of

loans guarantees letters of credit and other lending related financial instruments Rabobanks credit risk exposure

from credit granting liabilities consists of potential losses amounting to the unused portion of the authorised funds

The total expected loss is lower than the total of unused funds however because credit granting liabilities are

subject to the clients in question continuing to meet specific standards of creditworthiness Guarantees represent

irrevocable undertakings that provided certain conditions are met Rabobank will make payments on behalf of

clients if they are unable to meet their financial obligations to third parties Rabobank also accepts credit granting

liabilities in the form of credit facilities made available to ensure that clients liquidity requirements can be met but

which have not yet been drawn upon

In millions of euros 2009 2008

Guarantees 10117 9515

Credit.granting liabilities 30420 31388

Letters.of.credit 3887 1540

Other contingent liabilities 240 208

Total.creditrelated.and.contin.gentiiabilities 44664 4265.1

The contractual commitments relating to the acquisition of property and equipment amount to 48

Liabilities relating to operating leases

Rabobank has taken on various operating lease contracts as lessee The future net minimum lease payments under

non-cancellable operating leases can be broken down as follows

In millions of euros 2009 2008

Shorter than year ................. .. 64 .52

Long.er..than year but notl.ong.er.th.an.5.years.. 137 1.24

Long.er..than..5.years 29 54

Total.liabili.ties.reiati.ng.to.op.erating.ieases 230............... 230

Payments receivable from operating leases

Rabobank has taken on various operating lease contracts as lessor The future net minimum lease payments recei

vable from non-cancellable operating leases can be broken down as follows

In millions of euros 2009 2008

Earlier than year 11.89 684

Later than..1..y.ear.butnot iater.th.an.5.years 2347 3056

Later.than.5.years 1.68 255

Total.payments.re.ceivable.frornoperati.ng.leas.es 3704 3995

No contingent lease payments were recognised as assets during the year under review

Carrying amount of financial assets provided as security for contingent liabilities

In millions of euros 2009 2008

Due from other banks 11.1.6 ................. 222

Trading financial.assets 1557

Other.financiai.assets.atfair.vaiue..throu.gh.p.ro.fit.and.l.oss 1.88 1.40

Loans.to customers 3535 2609

Available-for-sale firiancial.assets 1580 6.1 45

Total 6419 .1.0673

The assets were provided to counterparties as security for contingent liabilities If Rabobank remains in default the

counterparties may use the security to settle the debt
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29 Equity

Equity of Rabobank Nederland and local Rabobanks

In millions of euros 2009 2008

For.eign.currency.trans 4.1.9 4.64

Revaluation.res.er.ve.for.availablefoNs.ale.finandal.asse.ts 368 898

Revaluation reserve.for.associates 1.34 163

H.ed.ging.reserve.for..cash..flo.w.hedges 37 31

Retained.earnings 22868 21304

Tatal.reserves and.retained earnings at.yearend 22178 20074

Changes in reserve5 were as follows

In millions of euros 2009 2008

Foreign currency translation.reserve

Opening .bala nce 4.64 .. 127

.Currency.transla.tion.ditferences.e.rn.ergirtg.during.the year 45 3371

Closin.g.balance ...............4.19 464

Revaluation.reserve.foravailablefofrsale flnancial.assets

Opening.balance 898 489

Chan.ges..in.associates 359 4.1.6

Fair value changes 490............ 1482

Amartisatio.n.af.reclassifled.assets 210 119

Transferred to profit or lass ............... 189 392

Closing balance...... 368 898

In millions of euros 2009 2008

Revaluation reserve far associates

1.63 164

Fair.value changes 29

Clasin.g balance 1.34 1.63

If shareholding is increased to such an extent that it must be consolidated the initial shareholding is remeasured

at fair value at the time of its increase

In millions of euros 2009 2008

Hedging reserve.for cash flaw hedges

Opening.balance 31

Fair..value.changes ........... 32

N.et.gains/lass.es.reclassified.u.nder.prafit

Clasin.g.balance 37 31

Retairied.earnin.gs

O.pening.balarsce 21304 1.9157

N.et.profit attributable.to.Rahobank Nederland and.local Rabobarsks 1475 2089

Other 89 58

Closiri.g.balance 2268 21304

Total.reserves.and.retained.earnings 221.78 20074
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30 Rabobank Member Certificates issued

by group company

Members capital relates to the share certificates Rabobank Member Certificates issued in 2000 2001 2002 and

2005 in the capital of Rabobank Ledencertificaten N.y RLC Rabobank Ledencertificaten II N.y RLC II and

Rabobank Ledencertificaten Ill N.y RLC respectively hereinafter RLC RLC II and RLC are jointly referred to as

theRLC companies

In 2000 RLC issued 40 million shares The total proceeds of this issue amounted to 1000 In 2000 RLC granted

Rabobank Nederland 900 deep-subordinated loan with term of 31 years In 2001 RLC issued an additional

60 million shares.The total proceeds of this issue amounted to 1575 In 2001 RLC granted Rabobank Nederland

1350 deep-subordinated loan with term of 30 years In 2007 RLC granted Rabobank Nederland third deep-

subordinated loan of 250 with term of 24 years

In 2002 RLC II
issued 17 million shares The total proceeds of this issue amounted to 1747 In 2002 RLC II granted

Rabobank Nederland 1487 deep-subordinated loan with term of 32 years In 2007 RLC II granted Rabobank

Nederland second deep-subordinated loan of 165 with term of 27 years In 2005 RLC issued 40 million shares

The total proceeds of this issue amounted to 2000 In 2005 RLC granted Rabobank Nederland 1999 deep-

subordinated loan with term of 35 years

With effect from 30 September 2008 the terms and conditions of the Rabobank Member Certificates were

amended For instance the remaining terms to maturity of the subordinated loans granted to Rabobank Nederland

by RLC and RLC II were adjusted to the remaining terms to maturity of the subordinated loan granted to Rabobank

Nederland by RLC 29 September 2040 as result of this amendment

On 30 December 2008 the legal merger between RLC as the acquiring company RLC and RLC II became effec

tive the Merger As consequence of the Merger RLC known after the Merger as Rabobank Ledencertfficaten

N.y acquired all the capital of RLC and RLC II by universal title and RLC and RLC II ceased to exist

After the Merger became effective the loan agreements existing between the RLC companies and Rabobank

Nederland were combined on 30 December 2008 as result of which the existing subordinated loans were combined

into single subordinated loan Subject to the approval of the Dutch Central Bank this loan may be repaid on

29 September 2040 the Subordinated Loan Subject to the approval of the Dutch Central Bank the Subordinated

Loan may be repaid ahead of schedule on 29 September 2035 and on the 29th of the third month of every quarter

thereafter Since the proceeds of the issue are available to Rabobank on perpetual and highly subordinated basis

also subordinate to the Trust Preferred Securities and since in principle no distribution is made if the consolidated

statement of income of Rabobank shows loss for any financial year the issue proceeds insofar as they have been

lent on to Rabobank Nederland are recognised in equity in proportion to the number of shares held by members

and employees

The combined loan agreement stipulates that with effect from 19 March 2009 and where necessary in the opinion

of the Dutch Central Bank the entitlements of RLC under the Subordinated Loan will be restricted to entitlements

in the event of dissolution contingency or bankruptcy of Rabobank Nederland with the proviso that these

entitlements at that time rank pan passu with the entitlements of the holders of shares held by the local Rabobanks

as members of Rabobank Nederland as referred to in Article 73 of the Articles of Association of Rabobank

Nederland therefore subordinated to all other subordinated and other creditors of Rabobank Nederland and ii

the remaining liquidation surplus if any will be shared with the aforementioned holders of shares in proportion

to the entitlements after all subordinated and other creditors of Rabobank Nederland have been satisfied without

RLC retaining claim should that surplus not suffice Subject to the prior written approval of the Dutch Central

Bank the aforementioned no longer applies if the reason why this stipulation became operative ceases to exist

Furthermore the agreement stipulates that with effect from 19 March 2009- if Rabobank Nederland issues new

instruments with the objective of fuelling equity the Dutch Central Bank must be consulted with view to the

laws and regulations ruling at that time on the question to what extent the newly to be raised capital is allocated

to cover losses incurred in the period prior to that in which the capital was raised

The distribution per certificate in 2009 was 1.33 RLC has the right not to make distribution

At year-end 2009 the number of shares adjusted to the new notional amount held by members and employees

was 241018966 with net asset value of 6315 At year-end 2008 the number of shares adjusted to the new

notional amount held by members and employees was 237849504 with an asset value of 6236
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Rabobank Member Certificates

In millions of euros 2009 2008

Changes during the year

Opening balance 6236 .6233

Share premium 154

RabobankMember Certificates issued and cancelled during .the.year and other 79 151

closing balance 6315 6236

31 Capital Securities ano Trust Preferred Securities Ill toVI

Capital Securities can be broken down as follows

In millions of euros 2009 2008

Capital.S.ecurities issued.b.y.Rabobarik.Nederland 4953 1813

Trust.P.re.ferred Securities lll.to VI issued by group companies 1229 .1697

Closing.balance 1.82 3510

Capital Securities

In 2009 Rabobank Nederland issued Capital Securities in the amounts of EUR 500 million NZD 280 million

USD 2868 million and CHF 750 million The Capital Securities are perpetual and have no expiry date The distribution

on the Capital Securities per issue is as follows

Issue of EUR 500 million

The distribution is 9.94% per year and is made payable annually in arrears as of the issue date 27 February 2009

for he first time on 27 February 2010 As from 27 February 2019 the distribution will be made payable every quarter

based on the three-month Euribor plus an annual 7.50% mark-up

Issue of NZD 280 million

The distribution equals the five-year swap interest plus an annual 3.75% mark-up and was set at 8.7864 per annum

on 25 May 2009 As from the issue date 27 May 2009 the distribution will be made payable every quarter in

arrears for the first time on 18 June 2009 short first interest period From 18 June 2014 the distribution will be

made payable every quarter based on five-year swap interest plus an annual 3.75% mark-up to be set on 18 June

2014 From 18 June 2019 the distribution will be made payable every quarter based on the 90-day bank bill swap

interest plus an annual 3.75% mark-up

Issue of USD 2868 million

The distribution is 11% per year and will be made payable every six months in arrears as of the issue date June

2009 for the first time on 31 December June 2009 long first interest period As from 30 June 2019 the distribution

will be made payable every quarter based on the three-month USD LIBOR plus an annual 10.868% mark-up

Issue of CHF 750 million

The distribution is 6.875% per year and will be made payable annually in arrears as of the issue date 14 July 2009

for the first time on 12 November 2009 short first interest period As from 12 November 2014 the distribution will

be made payable every six months based on the six-month CHF LIBOR plus an annual 4.965% mark-up

The level of Rabobank Nederlands profit may influence the distribution of interest on the Capital Securities

Should Rabobank Nederland become insolvent the Capital Securities are subordinate to the rights of all other

current and future creditors of Rabobank Nederland unless the rights of those other creditors substantively

determine otherwise
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Trust Preferred Securities Ill to VI issued by group companies

In 2004 four tranches of non-cumulative Trust Preferred Securities were issued

Rabobank Capital Funding Trust Ill Delaware group company of Rabobank Nederland issued 1.50 million non-

cumulative Trust Preferred Securities The expected distribution is 5.254% until 21 October 2016 For the period

21 October 2016 to 31 December 2016 inclusive the expected distribution is equal to the USD LIBOR interpolated

for the period plus 1.5900% The trust has the right not to make distribution Thereafter the expected

distribution is equal to the three-month USD LIBOR plus 1.5900% The total proceeds from this issue amounted to

USD 1500 million As from 21 October 2016 these Trust Preferred Securities can be repurchased on each

distribution date which is once quarter after prior written approval is received from the Dutch Central Bank

Rabobank Capital Funding Trust IV Delaware group company of Rabobank Nederland issued 350 thousand

non-cumulative Trust Preferred Securities The expected distribution is 5.556% until 31 December 2019 after

which the expected distribution is equal to the six-month GBP LIBOR plus 1.4600% The trust has the right not to

make distribution The total proceeds from this issue amounted to GBP 350 million As from 31 December 2019

these Trust Preferred Securities can be repurchased on each distribution date which is once every half-year after

prior written approval is received from the Dutch Central Bank

Rabobank Capital Funding Trust Delaware group company of Rabobank Nederland issued 250 thousand

non-cumulative Trust Preferred Securities The expected distribution is equal to the three-month BBSW plus

0.6700% until 31 December 2014 inclusive after which the expected distribution is equal to the three-month

BBSW plus 1.6700% The trust has the right not to make distribution The total proceeds from this issue

amounted to AUD 250 million As from 31 December 2014 these Trust Preferred Securities can be repurchased on

each distribution date which is once quarter after prior written approval is received from the Dutch Central

Bank

Rabobank Capital Funding Trust VI Delaware group company of Rabobank Nederland issued 250 thousand

non-cumulative Trust Preferred Securities The expected distribution is 6.41 5% until 31 December 2014 after

which the expected distribution is equal to the three-month BBSW plus 1.6700% The trust has the right not to

make distribution.The total proceeds from this issue amounted to AUD 250 million As from 31 December 2014

these Trust Preferred Securities can be repurchased on each distribution date which is once quarter after prior

written approval is received from the Dutch Central Bank

distribution becomes due on the Trust Preferred Securities issued in 1999 and 2003 included under subordinated

loans if

the most recent audited and adopted consolidated financial statements of Rabobank Nederland show that

Rabobank Group realised net profit after tax and extraordinary expenses in the previous year or

ii distribution is made on securities that are more subordinated such as Rabobank Member Certificates or on

securities of equal rank pan passu subject to the proviso that no distribution becomes due should the Dutch

Central Bank object for example if Rabobank Groups solvency ratio is below 8%
The condition stated under does not apply to Trust Preferred Securities issued in 2004 The other conditions do

apply If Rabobank Group realises profit Rabobank Nederland can make distribution on these securities at its

own discretion

In 2009 392 in Trust Preferred Securities III were purchased.The result is accounted on Net income from other

financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit and loss

Trust Preferred Securities

In millions of euros 2009 2008

Changes during.the year.....................................................................................

Opening.balance 697 1789

Purthase.of.Trust.Preferred.S.ecu.rities 527

Foreign exchange.differences 59 92

Closin.g balance 1229 1697
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32 Non-controlling interests

This item relates to shares held by third parties in subsidiaries and other group companies Movements in

non-controlling interests mainly relate to the effects of structured finance deals and conduits with third-party

investors

In millions of euros 2009 2008

O.peningbalance 3639 2713

Net.profit
1.09 1.55

Currency.translation differences 37 56

Associates included inconsolidation deconsolidated 283 289

Changesin.AF.S.reval.uation.reserve 12 72

Other .1.7 46

Closin.g.balance 3423 3639

33 nterest

In millions of euros 2009 2008

Interest income

Cash.and cash equivalents 76 176

Due frorn.o.ther.banks 654

Tradirig.flnancial.assets 332 718

O.therfmancial.assets.atfair.value.through pro.fit.an.d loss 1.77 61.1

Loans.tocustorners 1.71.63 21748

Available-for-sale..firian.cial.assets 1246 2282

Held-to-rnaturity.firiaricial assets 23

Other.. 176 33

Total.interest income 19766 27245

In millions of euros 2009 2008

Interest expense

Due to.oth.er banks 789 15.64

Other trade liabilities 56 75

D.ue .to customers .61.43 .9959

Debt securitiesin.issue 3756 5940

Otherdebts 163 1.65

Other.financia.iiabilities.at.fair..value.through.profit.and.loss 708 1015

Other 1.05 10

Total interest.expense 1.1720 1.8728

Net interest 8046 8517

Capitalised interest attributable to qualifying assets amounted to 28 2008 69
The average interest rate applied in determining interest charges to be capitalised ranges between 2.1% and

4.9% 2008 between 3.9% and 4.9% In 2009 Rabobank repurchased part of the issued debt securities and

subordinated loans with nominal value of 1.8 billion and recognised it under interest expense The impact on

net profit for the year was some 0.2 billion
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34 Fees and commission

In millions of euros 2009 2008

Fee and commission income

Asset.rnanagement 891 1264

Insurance commission 377 423

Lending 36.1 284

Purchase and.sale .of oth.er financial assets 310 301

Payment services 489 512

Custodial fees.and..s.ecu.rities services .5.1 52

Handling..fees 152 159

Other transactions.involving.financial instruments 71 73

Other commission income 313 332

Total fee and commission income 3015 .3400

Fee and commission expense

Asset management 217 256

Purchase and sale of other financial assets .116 116

Payment.services

Custodial fees and securities services 13

Handling.fees 36 34

Other.commission expense 57 86

Total fee.and commission expense .. 51.1

Net fees.and.comrnission 2575 2889

35 Income from associates

In millions of euros 2009 2008

Income fro.m.asso.ci.ates 5.92 26

Key figures.of.associates.are.as.follows

Total.assets at.yearend 98459 1.01823

Total.liabili.ties atyear-end 87678 9195.1

Total income 25782 1.9737

N.et result .. 1446 867

Rabobankshare.of pr.ofi.t.of associates 602 26

Discontinued/disposed interests 1.0

Total.incorne frorn.associa.tes 592 26.

36 Net income from financial assets and liabilities at fair

value through profit and loss

In millions of euros 2009 2008

D.ebt.instru.rnents.and .interest.ra.te..de.rivative.financiai.instruments 1279 121.1

Equity.instrurnents 116 2417

Foreign currencies and other trading income 264 565

Nettrading.income 1427 17.71

Net income from other financial assets and liabilities .. 1653 616

Total net.income from financial assets .and liabilities at fair.value through profit
and loss 226 1155

Net income from currency trading also includes gains and losses on spot and forward contracts options futures

and assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies

64

Consolidated Financial Statements 2009 Rabobank Group



37 Other income

In millions of euros 2009 2008

Real estate activities 218 265

Rental.iricorne 272 329

Other 252 .884

Total other income 742 1478

Rental income includes operating lease income and rental income from investment properties Operating lease

income includes income of 1693 2008 1706 depreciation charges of 725 2008 704 and other costs of

741 2008 716 Rental income from investment properties includes income of 97 2008 91 depreciation charges

of 28 2008 33 and other costs of 24 2008 15

38 Staff costs

In millions of euros 2009 2008

Wages.and.salaries 3415 3342

Soc.ial.sec.ur.ity..contributions.and.irss.uran.ce.costs
349 330

Pension costs for defined contribution plans 58 .53

Pension costs for defined benefit plans 5.62 74

O.ther.poste.m.ployment benefits 25 .1.0

Other employee costs 583 649

Total.staff costs 3269 4290

Expressed in FTEs the average number of employees was 59939 2008 57652

39 Other administrative expenses

This item includes office supplies travel expenses IT expenses postage advertising rent maintenance of buildings

etc Other administrative expenses also include costs relating to the provision under the terms of the deposit

guarantee system of 213 2008 53

In millions of euros 2009 2008

Other.admini.strative expenses 2908 2796

40 Depreciation and am ortisation

In millions of euros 2009 2008

Depreciation of.propertyand.e.quipment 295 312

Aniortisation
of.i.ntan.gible.assets

232 213

Total depreciation.and amortisation 527 525

41 Vaue adjustments

In millions of euros 2009 2008

D.ue..from.other.banks 19 68

Loans to customers 1989 1149

Receipts.less writeoffs 56 53.

Credit.related liabilities .. 17

.Other.assets

Total vaue adjustments 1959 1189
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42 Income tax expense

In millions of euros 2009 2008

Current income.tax

Year.u.nder review 293 793

Prior..years
43

Defe.rred.tax 26 738

l.ncorne.tax.expense 316 98

The taxation on operating profit of Rabobank differs from the nominal amount based on Dutch standard tax rates

The reconciliation between the two amounts is shown below

In millions of euros 2009 2008

Proflt.before.taxatio.n 604 2852

Tax exempt income 802k 1238

Non-deductible .expenses .. 35 40

Tax losses.not re.cognised..in.prior.years .1.1.9 91

Other 119

1719 1444

income tax .expens.e based on a.ra.te of 25.5% 200825.5% 438 368

Effect of chan.ge in tax losses

Effect of diffe.rent.tax.rates in other countries and.other non-recurring tax.gains.or losses .122 265

income.taxexpense 316 98

Taxation reported in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income was as follows

In millions of euros 2009 2008

Charsges..in.fair.val.ue of.avaiiable-for-sale.financial.assets 1.66 505

Gains on avai financial assets added.to net profitfor the year 136 174

Changes in fair value of cash fiow.hedging revaluation reserve

Costs.o.f.issue.of.Capital Securities.

Taxations.reported Ln.the.consolidated.s.tatement of.compreh.ensive.income 290 342

43 Transactions with related parties

Two parties are considered related if one party exercises control or has significant influence over the other party

regarding finance or operating decisions In the normal course of business Rabobank conducts wide variety of

transactions with related entities involving different types of loans deposits and transactions in foreign currencies

Transactions between related parties also include transactions with associates joint ventures the Executive Board

and the Supervisory Board These transactions are conducted at arms length conditions In accordance with lAS

24.4 transactions within Rabobank Group are not disclosed in the consolidated financial statements

In the normal course of Rabobanks business operations banking transactions are carried out with related parties

These involve loans deposits and transactions in foreign currencies These transactions are conducted at arms length

conditions and against market prices The volumes of related party transactions year-end outstanding balances and

the corresponding income and expenses during the year are given on the next page
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In millions of euros

Loans

Outstanding.at begin.ning of year

Granted during the year

Repaid.during the year
___________ ___________ ___________ ___________

Loans at end of the.year

Due to o.ther.banks and .due to.cus.tomers

Outstanding.at beginning of the year

Received during the year

Bepaid.during the year
___________ ___________ ___________ ___________

Deposits at 3.1 December..

O.ther.liabilities

Credit liabilities and other.guarantees issued.by Rabobank

Income

Interest income

Commission income

Trading income

Other
__________ __________ __________

Total income from transactions with related parties

Expens.e

Interest expense

Commission expense

Total.expenses frorn.transactions.with.related.par.ties

44 Fees for services in icordance with Section 382a

of Book of the Dutch Civil Code

In millions of euros

Financial statements audit

Other.audit engagements

Total

45 Supervisory Board Executive Board

The members of the Supervisory Board and the Executive Board are listed on page 71 of these consolidated

financial statements The remuneration of members and former members of the Executive Board amounted

to 9.9 in 2009 2008 9.0 This amount is included under staff costs Rabobank regards the members of the Executive

Board as managers with key positions

In millions of euros 2009

Salaries 6.6

Pension.charges ... 13

Performance related bonuses 1.8

Other .. 0.2
__________

Total 9.9

Of the performance-related payments 54% 2008 55% can be considered short-term The pension plan for

the members of the Executive Board qualifies as defined benefit plan The total remuneration of members

and former members of the Supervisory Board amounted to 1.6 2008 1.6

Associates Other related parties

2009 2008 2009 2008

269 545 23 23

603 .. 168

.104 444

768 269 13 23

5695 6281

38 37

.. 254 623

5479 5695

91 9.1 15 .12

1475 12 332

167 24

307 299

156 42

32 70

636 313 73

369 69

13 .12

382 8.1

2009 2008

10 13

13 .. 15

2008

6.7

1.0

0.2

9.0
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Executive Board Supervisory Board

In millions of euros 2009 2008 2009 2008

Loans advances and guarantees

Outstanding at January 4.1 4.0 3.6 4.0

Granted during the year 3.7 0.2 0.4 .0.6

Repaid during.the year .. 3.2 .0.1 0.5 1.0

Outstandin.g.at 31 December 4.6 4..1 3.5 3.6

These transactions were concluded at staff terms and/or market rates The average interest on fixed-interest loans in

EUR for the Supervisory Board and the Executive Board was 4.5% and 3.7% respectively in 2009

46 Principal subsidiaries and associates

Naam Share Voting rights

Subsidiaries

Netherlands

De Lage Landen.lnternational 1009/a 100%

Rabo VastgoedgroepN 1.0.0% 100%

OWM Rabobanken B.A .1.00% 10.0%

Obvion N.y 50% 70%

Rabohypo.theekbankN.V 100% 100%

Rabo.bankLedencertificaten 10.0% 1.00%

Rabo Merchant Bank NV .100% 100%

Rabo.Wi.elerploegen.B.V 100% 1.00%

Raiffeis.enhypo.theekbank.N.V 100% 1.0.0%

Robe.co.GroepN 100% 1.0.0%

Schretlen .C0N.V 100% 100%

Other Euro zone/EU countries

ACCBankPIc 100% .100%

Rest of Europe ...

Bank Sarasi.n Cie S.A 46% 69%

B.G.LS.A .59% .. 59%

North America ..

Rabobank.CapitalFunding.LCCIItoVI 100% 100%

RabobankCapitalFundinglrustlltoVl 10.0% .. 1.00%

Utrech.t.America.i-oldings Inc 1.00% 100%

Australia and New.Zea

RabobankAustralia Limited 100% 100%

RabobankNew Zealand Limited .. .. 1.00% 100%

Associates

Netherlands

Eureko.BN .39% 39%

EquensN.V 17% .17%G.ifunds Divers Divers

Rabobank holds less than 20% of the voting rights in Equens but has significant influence over Equens For instance

two members of the Supervisory Board of Equens as well as the chairman of the Audit Compliance Committee

are Rabobank representatives On account of Rabobanks significant influence over Equens the interest qualifies as

an associate
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47 Reverse repurchase transactions and securities

borrowing agreements

Reverse repurchase transactions and securities borrowing agreements concluded by Rabobank are included under

Due from other banks and Loans to customers At 31 December they amounted to

In millions of euros 2009 2008

Due..from.other.banks 1.2564 462.1

Loans to customers 8368 3844

Total reverse repurchase transactions and securities.borrowing agreements 20932 .. 8465

Under the terms of the reverse repurchase transactions and securities borrowing agreements Rabobank receives

collateral under conditions that enable it to repledge or resell the collateral to third parties The total fair value of the

securities received under the terms of the agreements was 20672 at 31 December 2009 2008 8500 In accordance

with the agreement terms portion of the securities was repledged or sold as collateral These transactions were

effected subject to the normal conditions for standard reverse repurchase transactions and securities borrowing

agreements

48 Repurchase transactio ns and securities

ending agreements

Repurchase transactions and securities lending agreements concluded by Rabobank are included underDue from

to other banksand Due to Customers At 31 December they amounted to

In millions of euros 2009 2008

Due to.otherbanks 1953 712

Due.to.customers 1207 664

Total repurchase.and.securities lending 31.60 2376

At 31 December 2009 and 2008 interest-bearing securities with carrying amount of 3476 and 2378 respectively

had been provided as collateral for repurchase and similar agreements In general the counterparty has the right to

resell or repledge the securities These transactions were performed subject to the normal conditions for standard

repurchase transactions and securities lending agreements

49 Securftisatons

As part of Rabobank Groups financing activities and the reduction of credit risk cash flows from certain financial

assets are transferred to third parties Most financial assets subject to these transactions are mortgage and other

loan portfolios After securitisation the assets continue to be recognised in Rabobank Groups statement of financial

position underLoans to customers The securitised assets are measured in accordance with the accounting policies

referred to in section 2.17 above

The carrying amount of these financial assets is 73461 2008 78541 and the corresponding liability amounts to

some 741112008 79570 Approximately 80% of transferred assets are securitised internally

50 Events after the reporting date

No events after the reporting date have occurred to date
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51 Managements report on internal control

over financial reporting

The management of Cooperatieve Centrale Raiffeisen-Boerenleenbank B.A Rabobank Nederland is responsible

for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting Management is also responsible

for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements

Rabobank Nederlands internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation and fair presentation of financial

statements for external purposes in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by

the European Union

All internal control systems no matter how well designed have inherent limitations Because of its inherent

limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements Also projections

of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that control may become inadequate

because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

Management assessed the effectiveness of Rabobank Nederlands internal control over financial reporting as of

31 December 2009 based on the framework set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organisations of the Treadway

Commission COSO established in Internal Control Integrated Framework Based on that assessment management

concluded that as of 31 December 2009 Rabobank Nederlands internal control over financial reporting is effective

based on the criteria established by COSO

Ernst Young Accountants LLF which have audited the consolidated financial statements of Rabobank Nederland

for the fiscal year ended 31 December 2009 also examined managements assessment of the effectiveness of

Rabobank Nederlands internal control over financial reporting and the effectiveness of Rabobank Nederlands

internal control over financial reporting their report is included on page 74

Piet Moerland P.W Bert Bruggink
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52 Approval by Supervisory Board

The publication of these consolidated financial statements was approved by the Supervisory Board on

March 2010 The General Meeting will adopt these financial statements in June 2010

Executive Board

Piet Moerland RW chairman

Bert Bruggink cfo

Berry Marttin BJ member

Sipko Schat S.N member

Piet van Schijndel PJ.A member

Gerlinde Silvis A.G member

Supervisory Board

Lense Koopmans chairman

Antoon Vermeer A.J.A.M deputy chairman

Sjoerd Eisma S.E secretary

Martin helen M.J.M deputy secretary

Irene Asscher-Vonk l.P member

Bernard Bijvoet member

Tom de Bruijn member

Louise Fresco L.a member

Rinus Minderhoud member

Paul Overmars RF.M member

Herman Scheffer H.C member

Aad Veen man A.W member

Cees Veerman C.R member

Arnold Wairavens A.H.C.M member
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Auditors report

To the executive board and supervisory board of Rabobank Nederland

Report on the consolidated financial statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements 2009 which are part of the financial

statements of Coaperatieve Centrale Raiffeisen-Boerenleenbank B.A Rabobank Nederland Amsterdam which

comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2009 the consolidated statement

of income consolidated statement of comprehensive income consolidated statement of changes in equity and

consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended and summary of significant accounting policies

and other explanatory notes

Executive boards responsibility

The executive board is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements

in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union and with Part

of Book of the Netherlands Civil Code and for the preparation of the executive board report in accordance with

Part of Book of the Netherlands Civil Code This responsibility includes designing implementing and maintaining

internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements that are

free from material misstatement whether due to fraud or error selecting and applying appropriate accounting

policies and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances

Auditors responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with Dutch law This law requires that we comply with ethical requirements

and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the consolidated financial statements are

free from material misstatement

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the

consolidated financial statements The procedures selected depend on the auditors judgment including the

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements whether due to fraud or

error In making those risk assessments the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entitys preparation and

fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate

in the circumstances An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the executive board as well as evaluating the overall presentation

of the consolidated financial statements

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide basis for our

audit opinion

Opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements give true and fair view of the financial position of Rabobank

Nederland as at 31 December 2009 and of its result and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with

International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union and with Part of Book of the

Netherlands Civil Code
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Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Pursuant to the legal requirement under Section 393 5f of Book of the Netherlands Civil Code we report to the

extent of our competence that the executive board report is consistent with the consolidated financial statements

as required by Section 391 of Book of the Netherlands Civil Code

Utrecht March 2010

Ernst Young Accountants LLP

Is G.H.C de Meris
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Assurance report

To the Executive Board and Supervisory Board of Rabobank Nederland

Assurance report

We have performed an assurance engagement on internal control over financial reporting companys internal

control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of

financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting

policies companys internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that

pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and

dispositions of the assets of the company

provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial

statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting policies and that receipts and expenditures of the

company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company

and

provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition use or

disposition of the companys assets that could have material effect on the financial statements

Inherent limitations

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements

Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become

inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may

deteriorate

Executive Boards responsibility

The Executive Board of Rabobank Nederland is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial

reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting

Auditors responsibility

Our responsibility is to conclude on the Executive Boards assessment and on the effectiveness of Rabobank

Nederlands internal control over financial reporting based on the procedures performed during our assurance

engagement

We conducted our assurance engagement in accordance with Dutch law including ISAE 3000 Assurance

engagements other than audits or reviews of historical financial information based on criteria established in

Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organisations oftheTreadway

Commission the COSO criteria

This requires that we plan and perform the assurance engagement to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects Our assurance

engagement included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting evaluating the

assessment of Rabobank Nederlands Executive Board testing and evaluate the design and operating effectiveness

of internal control and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances

We believe that the evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide basis for our conclusion
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Conclusion

Based on the procedures performed we conclude that the Executive Boards conclusion that as of 31 December 2009

Rabobank Nederlands internal control over financial reporting is effective is fairly stated in all material respects

based on the COSO criteria We also conclude that Rabobank Nederland maintained in all material respects effective

internal control over financial reporting as of 31 December 2009 based on the COSO criteria

Utrecht March 2010

Ernst Young Accountants LLP

Is G.H.C de Meris
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Colophon

Published by

Rabobank Nederland Communications Department

Materials used

This document was printed using environmentally friendly materials The ink was mineral oil-free Novavit Easy Mix Bio and

the paper 130 and 300 gram Arctic the Volume FSC certified

Disclaimer

This Consolidated Financial Statements is translation of the Dutch Annual Report In the event of any conflict in interpretation

the Dutch original takes precedence

About the Consolidated Financial Statements

This publication the financial statements and the separate edition Annual Report 2009 Rabobank Group together form the

annual report the financial statements and other information of the Coaperatieve Centrale Raiffeisen-Boerenleenbank BA

Filing

After they have been adopted the annual report 2009 the financial statements 2009 and other information will be filed at the

offices of Trade Registry of the Chamber of Commerce and Industries under number 30.046.25g

Annual Reports

In 2010 Rabobank Group publishes the following reports both in English and in Dutch

Annual Summary 2009 Rabobank Group Jaarbericht 2009 Rabobank Groep

Annual Report 2009 Rabobank Group Jaarverslag 2009 Rabobank Groep

Report 2009 Rabobank Group Verslag 2009 Rabobank Groep

Financial Statements 2009 Rabobank Group Geconsolideerde jaarrekening 2009 Rabobank Groep

Financial Statements 2009 Rabobank Nederland /Jaarrekening 2009 Rabobank Nederland

Interim Report 2010 Rabobank Group Halfjaarverslag 2010 Rabobank Groep

Our reports are published on www.rabobank.com/annualreports and www.rabobank.com/jaarverslagen

Contact

Cooperatieve Centrale Raiffeisen-Boerenleenbank B.A Rabobank Nederlandl

Croeselaan 18

RO.Box 17100

3500 HG Utrecht

The Netherlands

31 302160000

FSC
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Sender UC-G 717 Postbus 17100 3500 HG Utrecht

Office of International Corporate Finance

Division of Corporation Finance

Securities and Exchange Commission

450 Fifth Street N.W
Washington D.C 20549

U.S.A

Our reference BB/jcd

Date May 2009

Rabobank
Rabo bank Nederland

Direcroraat Control Rabo bank Groep

Visiting address Croeselaon 18 Utrecht

Telephone 0031 302162615

Fox 0031302161940

Subject Rabobank Nederland Rule 12g3-2b File No 82-5010

The enclosed Consolidated Financial Statements 2009 press

releases from the periode April 2010 and the Pricing Supplements

of April 2010 are being furnished to the Securities and Exchange

Commission the SEC on behalf of Rabobank Nederland the

Bank pursuant to the exemption from the Securities Exchange

Act of 1934 the Act afforded by Rule 12g3-2b there under

This information is being furnished under paragraph of Rule

12g3-2b with the understanding that such information and

documents will not be deemed to be filed with the SEC or

otherwise subject to the liabilities of Section 18 of the Act and that

neither this letter nor the furnishing of such information and

documents shall constitute an admission for any purpose that the

Bank is subject to the Act

Yours sincerely

Rabobank

Ne94ffl11

Rabobank Group
Executioard

CoOperotieve Centrole Roiffeisen-Boerenleen bank ba

ingeschreven bUde Kv.K ondernr 30046259



na Terms

COOPERATIEVE CENTRALE RAFFElSENBOERENLEENBANK 8A
RABOBANK NEDERLAND

eoOperatie formed under the aws of the Netherlands with its statutory seat in Amsterdam

COOPERATEVE CENTRALE RAFFElSENBOERENLEENBANK BA
RABOBANK NEDERLAND AUSTRAUA BRANCH

Australian Business Number 70 003 917 655

caäperatie formed under the aws of the Netherlands with its statutory seat in Amsterdam

COOPERATIEVE CENTRALE RA1FFESEN-BOERENLEENBANK BA
RABOBANK NEDERLAND SINGAPORE BRANCH

Singapore Company Registration Number F03634W

coOperatie formed under the laws of the Netherlands with its statutory seat in Amsterdam

Euro 110000000000

Global MediumTerm Note Programme

Due from seven days to perpetuity

SERES NO 2163A

TRANCHE NO

NOK 250000000 400 per cent Fixed Rate Notes 2010 due 27 January 2015 the Notes

to be consolidated and form single series with the NOK 500000000 0O per cent Fixed

Rate Notes 2010 due 27 January 2015 issued on 27 January 2010 and the NOK 250000000

400 per cent Fixed Rate Notes 2010 due 27 January 2015 issued on March 2010 the

Existing Notes

Issue Price 10235 per cent plus 71 days accrued interest from and including 27 January 2010

to but excluding April 2010

Rabobank InternatonaI TD Securities

The date of these Final Terms is April 2010
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Issue Date

ii Interest Commencement Date

if different from the Issue Date

Maturity Date

Domestic Note if Domestic Note there will be

no gross-up for withholding tax

10 Interest Basis

11 Redemption/Payment Basis

12 Change of Interest or Redemption/Payment

Basis

13 Put/Call Options

14 Status of the Notes

ii Date approval for issuance of Notes

obtained

15 Method of distribution

PROVISIONS RELATING TO INTEREST IF ANY

16 Fixed Rate Note Provisions

Rate of Interest

ii Interest Payment Dates

iii Fixed Coupon Amounts

iv Broken Amount

Day Count Fraction Condition 1a
vi Determination Dates Condition

1a
vii Other terms relating to the method of

calculating interest for Fixed Rate

Notes

17 Floating Rate Provisions

18 Zero Coupon Note Provisions

19 Index Linked Interest Note Provisions

20 Equity Linked Interest Note Provisions

21 Dual Currency Note Provisions

A11599666

8April 2010

27 January 2010

27 January 2015

No

4.00 per cent Fixed Rate

Further particulars specified below

Redemption at par

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Senior

Not Applicable

Syndicated

PAYABLE

Applicable

4.00 per cent per annum payable annually in

arrear

27 January in each year commencing on 27

January 2011 up to and including the

Maturity Date

NOK 400 per Calculation Amount

Not Applicable

Actual/Actual ICMA unadjusted

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable



PROV1S IONS RELATING TO REDEMPTION

22 Call Option Not Applicable

23 Put Option Not Applicable

24 Final Redemption Amount all Notes NOK 10000 per Calculation Amount

except Equity Linked Redemption Notes

and Index Linked Redemption Notes of

each Note

25 Final Redemption Amount Equity Linked Not Applicable

Redemption Notes of each Note

26 Final Redemption Amount Index Linked Not Applicable

Redemption Notes of each Note

27 Early Redemption Amount

Early Redemption Amounts As set out in the Conditions

payable per Calculation Amount

and/or the method of calculating the

same if required or if different from

that set out in the Conditions on

redemption on the occurrence of

an event of default Condition 13 or

for illegality Condition 7Q or

for taxation reasons Condition 7c
or in the case of Equity Linked

Redemption Notes following certain

corporate events in accordance with

Condition 7g or in the case of

Index Linked Redemption Notes

following an Index Modification

Index Cancellation or Index

Disruption Event Condition 7h or

in the case of Equity Linked

Redemption Notes or Index Linked

Redemption Notes following an

Additional Disruption Event if

applicable Condition 7i

ii Redemption for taxation reasons Yes

permitted on days other than Interest

Payment Dates Condition 7c
iii Unmatured Coupons to become void No

upon early redemption Bearer Notes

only Condition 10fl

GENERAL PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO THE NOTES

28 Form of Notes Bearer Notes

temporary Global Note exchangeable for

A11599566



permanent Global Note which is

exchangeable for Definitive Notes in the

limited circumstances specified in the

permanent Global Note

New Global Notes No

29 Financial Centres Condition 10h or London and Oslo

other special provisions relating to payment

dates

30 Talons for future Coupons or Receipts to be No

attached to Definitive Notes and dates on

which such Talons mature

31 Details relating to Partly Paid Notes amount Not Applicable

of each payment comprising the Issue Price

and date on which each payment is to be

made and consequences if any of failure to

pay including any right of the Issuer to forfeit

the Notes and interest due on late payment

32 Details relating to Instalment Notes Amount Not Applicable

of each instalment date on which each

payment is to be made

33 Redenomination renominalisation and Not Applicable

reconvantioning provisions

34 Consolidation provisions Not Applicable

35 Other terms or special conditions So long as Bearer Notes are represented by

temporary and/or permanent Global Note

and the temporary and/or permanent Global

Note is held on behalf of Euroclear

Clearstream Luxembourg or any other

clearing system notwithstanding Condition

17 notices to Noteholders may be given by

delivery of the relevant notice to that

clearing system for communication by it to

entitled accountholders Any notice thus

delivered to that clearing system shall be

deemed to have been given to the

Noteholders on the day on which that notice

is delivered to the clearing system

DISTRIBUTION

36 If syndicated names and addresses Coöperatieve Centrale Raiffeisen

of Managers
Boerenleenbank B.A Rabobank

International

Thames Court

One Queenhithe

London EC4V 3RL

United Kingdom
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The Toronto-Dominion Bank

Triton Court

14/18 Finsbury Square

London EC2A 1DB

United Kingdom

ii Stabilising Managers if any NotApphcable

iii Managers Commission 1.625 per cent selling commission

0.25 per cent combined management and

underwriting commission

37 It non-syndicated name and address of Not Applicable

Deafer

38 Applicable TEFRA exemption Rules

39 Additional selling restrictions Not Applicable

40 Subscription period Not Applicable

GENERAL

41 Additional steps that may only be taken Not Applicable

following approval by an Extraordinary

Resolution in accordance with Condition

14a

42 The aggregate principal amount of Notes Euro 30833250

issued has been translated into Euro at the

rate of 0.123333 producing sum of for

Notes not denominated in Euro

43 In the case of Notes listed on Euronext Not Applicable

Amsterdam

LISTING AND ADMISSION TO TRADING APPLICATION

These Final Terms comprise the final terms required to list and have admitted to trading the issue

of Notes described herein pursuant to the Euro 110000000000 Global Medium-Term Note

Programme of Rabobank Nederland

RESPONSIBILITY

The Issuer accepts responsibility for the information contained in these Final Terms

Signed on behalf of the Issuer

By

Duly authorised
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PART OTHER INFORMATION

Listing

Listing Luxembourg Stock Exchange

ii Admission to Trading Application has been made for the Notes to be admitted to

trading on the Luxembourg Stock Exchanges Regulated

Market with effect from the Issue Date

The Notes are to be consolidated and form single series

with the Existing Notes which are listed and admitted to

trading on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange

iii Estimate of total expenses Euro 400

related to admission to

trading

Ratings

Rating
The Notes to be issued have been rated

SP AAA

Moodys Aaa

Fitch Ratings Ltd AA

As defined by Standard Poors an AAA rating means that

the Notes have the highest rating assigned by Standard

Poors and that the Issuers capacity to meet its financial

commitment on the obligation is extremely strong As defined

by Moodys an Aaa rating means that the Notes are judged to

be of the highest quality with minimal credit risk As defined

by Fitch an AA rating means that the Notes are judged to be

of very high credit quality and denote expectations of low

credit risk It indicates
very strong capacity for payment of

financial commitments and is not significantly vulnerable to

foreseeable events

Notification

The Netherlands Authority for the Financial Markets Autoriteit Financiele Markten has provided each of

the Commission bancaire financiØre et des assurances CBFA in Belgium Epitroph Kefalaiagoras in

Greece ComisiOn Nacional del Mercado cia Valoros CNMV in Spain AutoritØ des marches financiers

AMF in France Irish Financial Regulatory Authority in Ireland Commissione Nazionale per ía Società

Borsa CONSOB in Italy Kredittilsynet in Norway Finanzmarktaufsicht FMA in Austria

Rahoitustarkastus in Finland Finansinspektionen in Sweden Financial Services Authority FSA in United

Kingdom Commission de surveillance du secteur financier in Luxembourg the Bundesanstalt für

Finanzdienstleistungsaufsicht BaFin in Germany the Comisia Nationalª Va/on/or Mobiliare in

Romania Finanstllsynet in Denmark and comisso do Mercado de va/ores MobiliÆrios in Portugal with

certificate of approval attesting that the Offering Circular has been drawn up in accordance with the

Prospectus Directive
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Notwithstanding the foregoing no offer of Notes to the public may be made in any Relevant Member

State which requires the Issuer to undertake any action in addition to the filing of the Final Temis with the

Netherlands Authority for the Financial Markets unless and until the Issuer advises such action has been

taken

Interests of natural and legal persons involved in the issue

Save as disclosed in the Offering Circular so far as the Issuer is aware no person involved in the offer of

the Notes has an interest material to the offer

Reasons for the offer estimated net proceeds and total expenses

Reasons for the offer Banking business

ii Estimated net proceeds NOK 253007705.48

iii Estimated total expenses NOK 4812500 comprising combined management selling

and underwriting commission of NOK 4687500 and

Managers expenses of NOK 125000

Yield Fixed Rate Notes Only

indication of yield 3.458 per cent per annum

The yield is calculated at the Issue Date on the basis of the

Issue Price It is NOT an indication of future yield

Historic interest rates Floating Rate Notes only

Not Applicable

Performance of index/formula explanation of effect on value of

investment and associated risks and other information concerning the

underlying Index-Linked Notes only

Not Applicable

Performance of rate of exchange and explanation of effect on value of investment Dual

Currency Notes only

Not Applicable

10 Performance of underlying explanation of effect on value of investment and associated

risks and information concerning the underlying Equity-Linked Notes only

Not Applicable

11 Operational information

Intended to be held in manner which No

would allow Eurosystem eligibility

ii ISIN XS0479655432

iii Common Code 047965543

iv German WKN-code A1ASDE

Private Placement number Not Applicable

vi Any clearing systems other than Not Applicable

All 599566



Euroclear and Clearstream Luxembourg

and the relevant numbers

vii Delivery Delivery against payment

viii Names and addresses of additional Not Applicable

Paying Delivery Agents if any

ix Names and addresses of Calculation Not Applicable

Agents if different from Deutsche Bank

London Branch

12 General

Time period during which the offer is Not Applicable

open

ii Description of the application process Not Applicable

iii Description of possibility to reduce Not Applicable

subscriptions

iv Manner for refunding excess amount Not Applicable

paid by applicants

Minimum andlor maximum amount of Not Applicable

application

vi Method and time limit for paying up the Not Applicable

securities and for delivery of the

securities

vii Manner and date in which results of the Not Applicable

offer are to be made public

viii Procedure for exercise of any right of Not Applicable

pre-emption the negotiability of

subscription rights and the treatment of

subscription rights not exercised

ix Process for notification to applicants of Not Applicable

the amount allotted and the indication

whether dealing may begin before

notification is made

All 599566



Usting Prospectus dated April 2010

Coöperatieve Centrale RaiffeisemBoerenleenbank

Rahobank Ned erla.nd

increase of CHF 150000000 to be consoHdated and form singe sedes

with the existing 2125% Bonds 20052017 of CHF 400000000

new ssue size CHF 550000000 the Bonds

interest Rate 25% pa payable ann..ally on 11 October for the next time on October 2010

ssue Price 100.678/c of thee ommal amount plus 178 days accrued nterest befom commisCon

Placement Pr ce he acemet cc of the Bo ds will be fixed in accordance vvth supoly and demad

Payment Date Goril 2010

Redemption 11 Octohec 2017 at par

Eady Redemption or tax masons only anytime at par following notice period according to the tenis cnndh

tions of the Bods

Further ssues Tnssuermserves %e nght to issue further Bonds ranking pan passu with the Bonds inaccorJ

ance with the tenis and conditions of the Bonds

Denominations CHF 5000 nomina and multiples tereof

Form of the Bonds Bearer Form Permanen Global Certihc%e be delivered to SIX SIS AG the SIS Holders or

the Bonds do of have the nght to request the printing and de very of defin tive Bonds

Covenants Pan Passu Clause Negatve Pledge Clause and Cross Default ause

Listing st ng will be appl ed for on the Standard for Bonds of the SIX Swes Exchange The Bonds are

proviconally admtted for trad ng on the SIX Swss Exchange on April 2010 The last trading

date wi be the third bus ness day prior to Redemption

The Bonds and all contiactual documentation cffC governed uy arid shar be conat ueJ ri

accordance vvith Swiss aw Place of jur sd ct on shall be the courts of Zurich

Saes Restrictions In particular U.S.A U.S persons United Kingdom EPA Austa ia Singapore japan The Nether

ands Hong Kong Un ten Arab Emkates Qataç Republic of Italy and the Republic of France

Rating Aaa by Moodys AAA by Standard Poors AA by itch Ratings Ltd

Security Number/ Unt Payment Date 11.0/4.112 CHO1 0741128 049492189

SN/Common Code After Payment Date 2210.847 CHOO2708470 022960571

UBS nvestment Bank Raffsen Switzedand

ssuers Name and

registered office

CoGperat eve Censrale Raiffeisen-Boeren eenbank BA Rabobank Nederland Croesolaan 18

3521 CB Utrecht Nmhmands

Governing Law
and Jurisdiction

Bank Sarasn Co Ltd



SELUNG RESTRCflONS

US persons

The Bonds have not been and wifl not be registered under the Secunt cc Act and may not be offered or sold

wrthin the United States or to or for the account or benefit of US persors eccept in cc tam transactions exempt

from the regotration requirements of the Securities Act Terms used in this paragraph have the meanings given to

them by Regulation

Bearer Bonds are subject to U.S tax law requirements and may not be offoed sold er dehvered within the Unhed

States or its nossessions or to United States person except in certain transactions pemitted by U.S tax regula

tions Terms used in this paragraph have the meanings given to them by the U.S Internal Revenue Code and

regulations thereunder

Each Bank has epresented and agreed that and each further hank appointed under The Agreement will reqrnr

ed to agree that it will not offer sell or deliver the Bonds of any identifiable Tranche as part of their dishi su

ton at any me or ii otherwise until 40 days after completion of the distribution of such Tranche as determin

ed and certified to the Issuer by the relevant Agent or in the case of Bonds issued on syndicated basis the

Lead Manager vvithin the United States or to or for the account or benefit of U.S persons and only in accord

ance witn Rule 903 of Regulation Each Bank has further agreed that it will have sent to each Bank to vvh ch it

sells Bonds during the distribution compliance period confirmation or other notice settng forth the restrictions

on offers and sales of the Bonds within the United States or to or for the account or benefit of U.S persons

In addition untl 40 days after the commencement of an offering of Bonds an offer cr sale of Bonds within the

United States by any Bank that is not participating in the offering may violate the registration requirements of the

Securit es Act

Unted Kingdom

Each Bank has represented warranted and agreed and each further bank appointed under the Agreement will

be required to represent warrant and agree that

in relation to any Bonds which have maturity of less than one year it person whose ordinary

activities nvo ye it in acquiring holding managing or disposing of investments as principal or agent

for the purposes of its business and it has not offered or sold and will not offer or sell any Bonds

other than to persons whose ordinary activities involve them in acqrnring noleing managing or thspos

ng
of investments as principal or agent for the purposes of theU businesses or who it reaonahle

to expect will acquire hold naanage or dispose of investments as principal or agent for the purposes

of the.r businesses where the issue of the Bonds would otherwise constitete contraventior of section

19 of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 the FSMA by the Issuer

it has only communicated or caused to be communicated and will only communicate or cause to he

conamunicated any invitation or inducement to engage in investment activity within the meaning of

sectmn 21 of the FSMA received by it in connection with the issue or sale of any Bonds in rcum

stances in which section 211 of the FSMA does not apply to the Issuer and

it has complied and vvill comply with all applicable provisions of the FSMA with respect to anything

done by it in relation to such Bonds in from or otherwise involving the United Kingdom

European Economic Area

In relation to each Member State of the European Econom Area which has implemented the Prospectus Directive

each Relevant Member State each Bank has represented warranted and agreed chat with effect frona and

ncluding the date on which the Prospectus Directive is implemented that Relevant Member State the Pelevan

Implementation Date it has not made and wll not make an offer of Bonds which are Sac subject of the offeung

contemplated by the Prospectus and the Terms of the Bonds in relation thereto to the pubhc in that Relevant

Member State except that it may with effect from and including the Relevant Implementation Date make an offer

of sucn Bonds to the pubLc in that Relevant Member State



if the Terms of the Bonds specify that an offer of those Bonds may be made other than pursuant to

Article 32 of the Prospectus Directive in that Relevant Member State Non-exempt Offer in the

period beginning on the date of publication of prospectus in relation to such Bonds which has been

approved by the competent authority in that Relevant Member State where appropriate approved

in another Relevant Member State and notified to the competent authority in that Relevant Member

State provided that any such prospectus has subsequently been completed by the Terms of the Bonds

contemplating such Non-exempt Offe in accordance with the Prospectus Directive and ending on the

date specified in such prospectus or Terms of the Bonds as applicable

at any time to legal entities which are authorised or regulated to operate in the financial markets or if

not so authorised or regulated whose corporate purpose is solely to invest in securities

at any time to any legal entity which has two or more of an average of at least 250 employees

during the last financial year total balance sheet of more than 43000000 and an annual

net turnover of more than 50000000 as shown in its last annual or consolidated accounts

at any time to fewer than 100 natural or legal persons other than qualified investors as defined in the

Prospectus Directive subject to obtaining the prior consent of the relevant Bank or Banks nominated

by the Issuer for any such offer

at any time if the denomination per Bond being offered amounts to at least 50000 or

at any time in any other circumstances falling within Article 32 of the Prospectus Directive

provided that no such offer of Bonds referred to in to above shall require the Issuer or any Bank to

publish prospectus pursuant to Article of the Prospectus Directive or supplement prospectus pursuant

to Article of the Prospectus Directive

For the purposes of this provision the expression an offer of Bonds to the public in relation to any Bonds in any

Relevant Member State means the communication in any form and by any means of sufficient information on the

terms of the offer and the Bonds to be offered so as to enable an investor to decide to purchase or subscribe the

Bonds as the same may be varied in that Member State by any measure implementing the Prospectus Directive

in that Member State and the expression Prospectus Directive means Directive 2003/71/EC and includes any
relevant implementing measure in each Relevant Member State

Australia

The Prospectus has not and no prospectus or other disclosure document in relation to the Bonds has been lodged

with the Australian Securities and Investments Commission ASIC or the ASX Limited ASX Each Bank

represents and agrees and will be required to represent and agree that it

has not offered or invited applications and will not offer or invite applications for the issue sale or

purchase of the Bonds in Australia including an offer or invitation which is received by person in

Australia and

has not distributed or published and will not distribute or publish the Prospectus the Terms of the

Bonds or any other offering material or advertisement relating to the Bonds in Australia

unless the minimum aggregate consideration payable by each offeree is at least AUD 500000 or its equival

ent in an alternate currency disregarding moneys lent by the offeror or its associates or the offer or invitation

otherwise does not require disclosure to investors in accordance with Part 6D.2 of the Corporations Act 2001 of

Australia ii such action complied with all applicable laws regulations and directives and iii does not require any
document to be lodged with ASIC or the ASX

In addition each Bank agrees that in connection with the primary distribution of the Bonds it will not sell Bonds

to any person who has been notified in writing by Rabobank Australia Branch to be an associate of Rabobank

Australia Branch the acquisition of Bond by whom would cause Rabobank Australia Branch to fail to satisfy the

public offer test in section 28F of the Income Tax Assessment Act 1936 of Australia as result of section 28F5
of the Income Tax Assessment Act 1936 of Australia



Singapore

The Prospectus and the Terms of the Bonds have not been registered as prospectus with the Monetary Authority

of Singapore Accordingly each Bank has represented and agreed and each further bank appointed under the

Agreement will be required to represent and agree that it has not offered or sold any Bonds or caused the Bonds

to be made the subject of an invitation for subscription or purchase nor will it offer or sell the Bonds or cause the

Bonds to be made the subject of an invitation for subscription or purchase nor has it circulated or distributed nor

will it circulate or distribute the Prospectus or any other document or material in connection with the offer or sale

or invitation for subscription or purchase of the Bonds whether directly or indirectly to persons in Singapore

other than to an institutional investor under Section 274 of the Securities and Futures Act Chapter 289 of

Singapore the SFA ii to relevant person pursuant to Section 2751 or any person pursuant to Section

2751A and in accordance with the conditions specified in Section 275 of the SFA or iii otherwise pursuant to

and in accordance with the conditions of any other applicable provision of the SFA

Where the Bonds are subscribed or purchased under Section 275 of the SFA by relevant person which is

corporation which is not an accredited investor as defined in Section 4A of the SFA the sole

business of which is to hold investments and the entire share capital of which is owned by one or more

individuals each of whom is an accredited investor or

trust where the trustee is not an accredited investor whose sole purpose is to hold investments and

each beneficiary of the trust is an individual who is an accredited investor

shares debentures and units of shares and debentures of that corporation or the beneficiaries rights

and interest howsoever described in that trust shall not be transferred within six months after that cor

poration or that trust has acquired the Bonds pursuant to an offer made under Section 275 of the SFA

except

to aninstitutional investor for corporations under Section 274 of the SFA or to relevant person

defined in Section 2752 of the SFA or to any person pursuant to an offer that is made on terms that

such shares debentures and units of shares and debentures of that corporation or such rights and inter

est in that trust are acquired at consideration of not less than S$200000 or its equivalent in foreign

currency for each transaction whether such amount is to be paid for in cash or by exchange of

securities or other assets and further for corporations in accordance with the conditions specified in

Section 275 of the SFA

where no consideration is or will be given for the transfer or

where the transfer is by operation of law

Japan

The Bonds have not been and will not be registered under the Financial instruments and Exchange Act of Japan

the Financial Instruments and Exchange Act Accordingly each of the Banks has represented and agreed and

each further bank appointed under the Agreement will be required to represent and agree that it has not

directly or indirectly offered or sold and will not directly or indirectly offer or sell any Bonds in Japan or to or for

the benefit of any resident of Japan which term as used herein means any person resident in Japan including

any corporation or other entity organised under the laws of Japan or to others for re-offering or re-sale directly

or indirectly in Japan or to or for the benefit of any residents of Japan except pursuant to an exemption from

the registration requirements of and otherwise in compliance with the Financial instruments and Exchange Act

and other relevant laws and regulations of Japan

The Netherlands

Zero Coupon Bonds in definitive bearer form and other Bonds in definitive bearer form on which interest does not

become due and payable during their term savings certificates or spaarbewijzen as defined in the Dutch Savings

Certificates Act or Wet inzake spaarbewijzen the SCA may only be transferred and accepted directly or in

directly within from or into the Netherlands through the mediation of either the Issuer or member of Euronext

Amsterdam N.y with due observance of the provisions of the SCA and its implementing regulations which in



dude registration requirements No such mediation is required however in respect of the initial issue of such

securities to the first holders thereof ii the transfer and acceptance by individuals who do not act in the conduct

of profession or business and iii the issue and trading of such securities if they are physically issued outside

the Netherlands and are not immediately thereafter distributed in the Netherlands

Hong Kong

Each Bank has represented and agreed that

it has not offered or sold and will not offer or sell in Hong Kong by means of any document any Bonds

other than to professional investors as defined in the Securities and Futures Ordinance Cap 571

of Hong Kong and any rules made under that Ordinance or in other circumstances which do not

result in the document being prospectus as defined in the Companies Ordinance Cap 32 of Hong

Kong or which do not constitute an offer to the public within the meaning of that Ordinance and

ii it has not issued or had in its possession for the purposes of issue and will not issue or have in its

possession for the purposes of issue whether in Hong Kong or elsewhere any advertisement invita

tion or document relating to the Bonds which is directed at or the contents of which are likely to be

accessed or read by the public of Hong Kong except if permitted to do so under the securities laws of

Hong Kong other than with respect to Bonds which are or are intended to be disposed of only to per

sons outside Hong Kong or only to professional investors as defined in the Securities and Futures

Ordinance Cap 571 and any rules made under that Ordinance

United Arab Emirates

Each Bank has represented and agreed that the Bonds have not and will not be offered sold or publicly promot

ed or advertised by it in the United Arab Emirates or the Dubai International Financial Centre other than in

compliance with any laws applicable in the United Arab Emirates or the Dubai International Financial Centre as

the case may be governing the issue offering and sale of securities

Qatar

The Bonds have not been and will not be offered sold or delivered at any time directly or indirectly in the State

of Qatar in manner that would constitute public offering

This document has not been and will not be registered with or approved by the Qatar Financial Markets

Authority or Qatar Central Bank and may not be publicly distributed This document is intended for the original

recipient only and must not be provided to any other person It is not for general circulation in the State of Qatar

and may not be reproduced or used for any other purpose

Republic of ltay

Any offer sale or delivery of the Bonds or distribution of copies of the Prospectus or any other document relating

to the Bonds in the Republic of Italy must be

made by an investment firm bank or financial intermediary permitted to conduct such activities in Italy

in accordance with Legislative Decree No 58 of February 24 1998 Legislative Decree No 385 of

September 1993 the Banking Act and CONSOB Regulation No 16190 of October 29 2007 all

as amended

ii in compliance with Article 129 of the Banking Act and the implementing guidelines pursuant to which

the Bank of Italy may request information on the offering or issue of securities in Italy and

iii in compliance with any other applicable laws and regulations including any limitation or requirement

which may be imposed from time to time inter alia by CONSOB or the Bank of Italy



Republic of France

Each Bank has represented warranted and agreed that

it has only made and will only make an offer of Bonds to the public in France in the case of

prospectus in relation to those Bonds having been approved by the AutoritØ des marches financiers

AFM on or after the date of its publication or ii in the case of prospectus having been approv

ed by the competent authority of another Member State of the European Economic Area which has

implemented the Prospectus Directive in the period beginning on the date of notification of such

approval to the AMF all in accordance with articles L.412-1 and L.621-8 of the French Code monØtaire

et financier and the RŁglement general of the AMF and ending at the latest on the date which is 12

months after the date of the approval of the prospectus or

it has only made and will only make an offer of Bonds to the public in France and/or it has only requir

ed and will only require the admission to trading on Euronext Paris in circumstances which do not re

quire the publication by the offeror of prospectus pursuant to articles L.411-2 and L.412-1 of the

French Code monØtaire et financier and

iH it has not offered or sold and will not offer or sell directly or indirectly any Bonds to the public in France

and it has not distributed or caused to be distributed and will not distribute or cause to be distributed

to the public in France the Offering Circular the Listing Prospectus the Terms of the Bonds or any other

offering material relating to the Bonds and such offers sales and distributions have been and will be

made in France only to providers of investment services relating to portfolio management for the

account of third parties and/or qualified investors investisseurs qualifies all as defined in and in

accordance with articles L.41 1-1 L.41 1-2 and D.41 1-1 of the French Code monØtaire et financier

For additional information on the Issuer please refer to the Offering Circular dated May 2009 of the Euro

110 billion Global Medium-Term Note Programme as amended by the supplemental Offering Circulars dated

23 October 2009 and December 2009 both relating to recent development the Annual Report 2008

Rabobank Group the Financial Statements 2008 Rabobank Nederland and the Consolidated Financial

Statements 2008 Rabobank Group which are included in the prospectus dated June 2009 of the 3% Bonds

20092016 of CHF 300000000 of Rabobank Nederland ISIN CHO1 01 589361 the Related Prospectus
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Notice to Investors

The Bonds and all related contractual documentation are governed by and shall be construed in accordance

with Swiss law Place of jurisdiction shall be the competent courts of Zurich The financial institutions involved

in the issuance and offering of these Bonds are banks which directly or indirectly have participated or may

participate in financing transactions and/or banking business with the lssue which are not disclosed herein

Investors are advised to familiarise themselves with the entire content of this Listing Prospectus

Documents Available

Copies of this Listing Prospectus and the Related Prospectus are available at UBS Investment Bank business

division of UBS AG Prospectus Library P.O Box CH-8098 Zurich Switzerland or can be ordered by telephone

41-44-239 47 03 fax 41-44-239 69 14 or by e-mail swiss-prospectus@ubs.com

Prospectus

This Listing Prospectus is available in English language only and provides information about the Issuer and the

Bonds This Listing Prospectus does not constitute an offer of nor an invitation to subscribe for or purchase any

Bonds



INFORMATION ABOUT THE BONDS

Agreement to Issue

Pursuant to the Bond Purchase and Paying Agency Agreement dated April 2010 between the Issuer and

the Managers the Issuer has agreed to increase on April 2010 the CHF 400000000 2.125% Bonds 20052017

by issuing additional bonds in the nominal amount of CHF 150000000 new total nominal amount

CHF 550000000

Authorisation

The Issuer has obtained all necessary consents approvals and authorisations in connection with the issue of and

performance under the Bonds The issue of the Bonds was authorised by resolution of the competent internal

body of the Issuer on 10 March 2010

Third Party Information

Where information in this Listing Prospectus including where such information has been incorporated by refer

ence has been sourced from third parties this information has been accurately reproduced and as far as the Issuer

is aware and is able to ascertain from the information published by such third parties no facts have been omitted

which would render the reproduced information inaccurate or misleading The source of third party information

is identified where used

Use of Net Proceeds

The net proceeds of the Bonds being the amount of CHF 151043041 .67 the Net Proceeds will be used by

the Issuer in connection with its banking business None of the Managers shall have any responsibility for or be

obliged to concern itself with the application of the Net Proceeds of the Bonds

Representation

In accordance with Article 43 of the Listing Rules of the SIX Swiss Exchange UBS AG has been appointed by the

Issuer as representative to lodge the listing application with the SIX Swiss Exchange

Permanent Global Certificate and Constitution of Intermediated Securities

The Bonds and all rights in connection therewith are in bearer form and are represented by Permanent Global

Certificate which will be delivered to SIX 515 Ltd Once the Permanent Global Certificate is deposited with the

Intermediary and entered into the accounts of one or more participants of the Intermediary the Bonds will con

stitute intermediated securities Bucheflekten Intermediated Securities in accordance with the provisions of

the Swiss Federal Intermediated Securities Act Bucheffektengesetz Bondholders do not have the right to request

the printing and delivery of definitive Bonds In particular Bondholders do not have the right to request the print

ing and delivery of definitive Bonds in accordance with Article sub-clause of the Swiss Federal Act on

Intermediated Securities

Notices

All notices in relation to the Covered Bonds will be published in electronic form on the internet site of the SIX

Swiss Exchange under the section headed Official Notices http//www.six-exchange-regulation.com/publica

tions_en.html



ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON THE ISSUER

Litigation

Neither the Issuer nor any member subsidiary or affiliate of the Rabobank Group is or has been during the 12

months preceding the date of this Listing Prospectus involved in any governmental legal or arbitration proceed

ings which may have or have had in the recent past significant effects on the Issuers and/or Rabobank Groups

financial position or profitability nor so far as the Issuer is aware are any such proceedings involving any of them

pending or threatened

Information on Latest Business Developments of the Issuer

Interim report 2009

On 26 August 2009 Rabobank Group presented its interim report for the six months ended 30 June 2009 On

this occasion it was noted that many western countries were still battling with recession including the

Netherlands which is experiencing its most severe economic decline since World War II This has created great

problems for customers which is reflected in the results of Rabobank Group During the first half of 2009 growth

in income levelled off and just as in the second half of 2008 bad debt costs were high Despite these develop

ments Rabobank Group achieved net profit of .3 billion down 18 per cent compared with the same period

last year Rabobank Group continued to have an extremely robust capital position as reflected in its Tier ratio

of 13 per cent The gloomy economic outlook is likely to affect levels of activity at Rabobank Groups clients This

will lead to growth in lending further levelling off Furthermore interest income at local Rabobanks has come

under pressure owing to fierce competition on the Dutch savings market Bad debt costs are also expected to con

tinue to be higher than the long-term average Improved margins and further cost cuts will be necessary to main

tain the sound capital position of Rabobank Group

Preliminary results for the financial year ended 31 December 2009

On March 2010 Rabobank Group announced its preliminary results for the year ended 31 December 2009 Net

profit decreased by per cent to 2.3 billion compared to the prior year The Issuers Tier ratio increased to

13.8 per cent as at 31 December 2009 As at the same date the Issuers Equity Capital Ratio was 12.5 per cent

For further information on the results for the year ended 31 December 2009 see those sections of the 2009

Results Press Release and 2009 Annual Summary which are incorporated by reference herein see Important

Information Documents incorporated by reference

Rabo bank and Rothschild establish global food agri cooperation

As from January 2009 Rabobank International Holding B.V and Rothschild entered into co-operation agree

ment in the field of mergers and acquisitions and equity capital markets advisory in the food agri sectors on

global basis Rothschild and Rabobank both have strong global food agri advisory franchises in mergers and

acquisitions Under the agreement both firms will pool their respective industry knowledge resources and rela

tionships while expanding their respective geographic reach and client base through an enhanced breadth of ser

vices In order to strengthen the relationship between the two parties Rabobank also acquired 7.5 per cent

stake in Rothschild Continuation Holdings AG RCH and Rabobank representative joined the RCH board of

directors

Eureko

On 16 February 2009 Eureko announced that following consultations with its shareholders Rabobank and

Achmea Association it will increase its capital by billion This measure is intended to increase Eurekos solvency

Rabobank is contributing 400 million to the capital injection howeve this will not increase Rabobanks relative

ownership stake in Eureko



Issue of Capital Securities

On 27 February 2009 Rabobank Nederland issued 500 miUion Perpetual Noncumulative Capital Securities and

on 27 May 2009 Rabobank Nederland issued NZ$ 280 million Perpetual Noncumulative Capital Securities On

June 2009 Rabobank Nederland issued U.S.$ 1368297000 Perpetual Noncumulative Capital Securities in

exchange for Rabobank Capital Funding Trust II Trust Preferred Securities and of Rabobank Capital Funding Trust

Ill Trust Preferred Securities On June 2009 Rabobank Nederland issued an additional U.S.$ 500000000

Perpetual Noncumulative Capital Securities forming part of the same series of Capital Securities as issued in con
nection with the exchange effected on the same date On 12 August 2009 Rabobank Nederland issued CHF 750

million Perpetual Noncumulative Capital Securities

Ratings

On 22 October 2009 Moodys Investors Service Moodys affirmed Rabobanks long-term deposit and senior

unsecured Aaa ratings Moodys revised its outlook on these ratings from stable to negative On December 2009
Standard Poors Ratings Services SP affirmed Rabobanks counterparty credit AAA ratings SP revised its

outlook on these ratings from stable to negative

Issue of Rabo Extra Member Bonds

On 29 January 2010 Rabobank Nederland issued 900 million Rabo Extra Member Bonds Rabo Extra

Ledenobligaties due 30 December 2013 At the sole and absolute discretion of Rabobank Nederland twenty-five

per cent of the initial nominal value of 100 per Rabo Extra Member Bond 25 may be exchanged into

one Rabobank Member Certificate Rabobank Ledencertificaat on 30 December in each yea commencing on

30 December 2010 and ending on 30 December 2013

No Material Adverse Change

Except as disclosed in this Listing Prospectus there has been no material adverse change in the financial condi

tion or operations of the Issuer since 31 December 2008 which would materially affect its ability to carry out its

obligations under the Bonds
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Issue of Senior Contingent Notes

On 19 March 2010 Rabobank Nederland issued 1250000000 6.875 per cent Senior

Contingent Notes due 2020 the Senior Contingent Notes Subject to the terms and

conditions and in accordance with the procedures as set out in the prospectus dated March

2010 the principal amount of the Senior Contingent Notes may automatically and permanently

be reduced to 25 per cent of their original principal amount and redeemed at redemption

price of 25 per cent of their original principal amount together with accrued interest in case

the Equity Capital Ratio of the Rabobank Group such term as defined in the aforementioned

prospectus is and remains for certain period of time as set out in the aforementioned

prospectus less than per cent



RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Issuer accepts responsibility for all information contained in this Listing Prospectus and in the Related

Documents and has taken all reasonable care to ensure that the facts stated herein are true and accurate in all

material respects and that there are no other material facts the omission of which would make misleading any
statement herein whether of fact or opinion

Utrecht April 2010

Cooperatieve Centrale Raiffeisen-Boerenleenbank B.A

Rabobank Nederland
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TERMS OF THE BONDS

TERMS OF THE BONDS

The Terms of the 1st increase of CHF 150000000 to be consolidated and form single series with the existing

2.125% Bonds 20052017 of CHF 400000000 new issue size CHF 550000000 issued by Cooperatieve

Centrale Raiffeisen-Boerenleenbank BA Rabobank Nederland the Issuer are as follows

Denomination Form and Reopening

The Bonds are issued in denominations of CHF 5000 and multiples thereof The Bonds entitle the holder

thereof to payment of interest and repayment of the Bonds For the purpose of the interest the Bonds are

furnished with annual interest coupons hereinafter called the Coupons

The Bonds and all rights connected therewith are in bearer form and are represented by Permanent Global

Certificate the Global Permanent Certificate Each Holder retains quotal co-ownership interest

Miteigentumsanteil in the Permanent Global Certificate to the extent of his claim against the Issuer provid

ed that for so long as the Permanent Global Certificate remains deposited with the Intermediary the co

ownership interest shall be suspended and the Bonds may only be transferred or otherwise disposed of in

accordance with the provisions of the Swiss Federal Intermediated Securities Act Bucheffektengesetz i.e

by the entry of the transferred Bonds in securities account of the transferee The Permanent Global

Certificate will be deposited by UBS AG acting through its business division UBS Investment Bank Zurich

UBS AG until final redemption or printing of the Bonds with SIS SIX Ltd in Olten Switzerland SIS or

any such other intermediary in Switzerland recognized for such purposes by SIX Swiss Exchange Ltd SIX
SIS or any such other intermediary the Intermediary

Holders do not have the right to effect or demand the conversion of the Permanent Global Certificate into

or the delivery of uncertificated securities Wertrechte or the printing and delivery of definitive Bonds and

Coupons Wertpapiere The records of the Intermediary will determine the number of Bonds held through

each participant in that Intermediary In respect of the Bonds held in the form of Intermediated Securities

the holders of the Bonds the Holders will be the persons holding the Bonds in securities account in

their own name and for their own account If UBS AG deems the printing of definitive Bonds to be neces

sary or if under Swiss or foreign law the enforcement of obligations of the Issuer can only be ensured by

means of definitive Coupons e.g in the case of bankruptcy relief of debtors or reorganization of the lssuer

UBS AG shall provide without any costs to Bondholders for the printing and delivery of definitive Bonds and

Coupons in whole but not in part

The Issuer reserves the right to reopen this issue without the consent of the Bondholders by the issue of addi

tional Bonds which will be fungible with the Bonds i.e identical especially in respect of the Terms of the

Bonds security number final maturity and interest rate The term Bonds shall in the case of such issue

also comprise such additionally issued Bonds

Interest

The Bonds bear interest from 11 October 2009 to 11 October 2017 at the rate of 2.125% per annum pay
able annually in arrears on 11 October of each year the Interest Payment Date For this purpose each

Bond is furnished with annual Coupons the first of which will become due and payable on 11 October

2010

Interest is computed on the basis of twelve 30-day months of 360-day year

Bonds repaid as per Subsection 3.1 or redeemed as per Subsection 3.2 shall cease to carry interest from

the beginning of the day on which they become due for redemption or repayment

If an Interest Payment Date other than the Maturity Date as defined in Section below would otherwise

be day that is not Business Day as defined below such Interest Payment Date will be the next succeed

ing day that is Business Day If the Maturity Date falls on day that is not Business Day the payment of

principal and interest will be made on the next succeeding Business Day and no interest shall accrue for the

period from and after such Maturity Date
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Business Day means any day on which SIS is open for business and on which commercial banks

are open for domestic business and foreign exchange including dealings in Swiss francs during the entire

day in Zurich Switzerland

Redemption Repurchase and Cancellation

31 Final Repayment

Unless previously redeemed as per Subsection 3.2 the Issuer shall repay all outstanding Bonds at

100% of their principal amount hereinafter called Final Redemption Value without further notice

on 11 October 2017 the Maturity Date

3.2 Redemption for Tax Reasons

The Bonds may be redeemed for tax reasons prior to the Maturity Date as provided in Section here

of

3.3 Purchase and Cancellation

The Issuer and any of its subsidiaries may at any time purchase Bonds in the open market or other

wise Any purchase shall be made in accordance with applicable laws or regulations including without

limitation applicable stock exchange regulations The Bonds so purchased while held by or on behalf

of the Issuer or any of its subsidiaries shall not entitle their Holder to vote at any meetings of the

Bondholders and shall not be deemed to be outstanding for the purposes of calculating quorums at

meetings of the Bondholders pursuant to Section 17

Any Bonds purchased by the Issuer or any of its subsidiaries may be held resold or surrendered to UBS

AG for cancellation

Transfer of Funds by the Issuer

The amounts required for the servicing of the Bonds or Coupons will be made available in good time for

each due date in Swiss francs which will be placed at the free disposal of UBS AG as Principal Paying Agent

on behalf of the Bondholders and/or Couponholders

The Issuer shall pay without costs for the Bondholders and Couponholders under all circumstances and not

withstanding any future transfer restrictions irrespective of nationality or domicile of the Bondholders or

Couponholders and without requiring any affidavit or the fulfillment of any other formality except as requir

ed by law any sums due pursuant to the Terms of the Bonds in freely disposable Swiss francs outside of any

bilateral or multilateral payment or clearing agreement which may exist on the due dates between the

Netherlands and Switzerland to UBS AG which shall act for this purpose as representative of the

Bondholders and Couponholders

The receipt by UBS AG of the funds from the Issuer shall release the Issuer from its obligations under the

Bonds and Coupons for the payment of interest and principal plus premium if any to the extent of receipt

of such payment Upon receipt of the funds and under the same conditions as received UBS AG will arrange

payment to the Bondholders and Couponholders

Payments of Funds to the Bondholders and Couponholders

Interest and principal will be paid against surrender of the Bonds and Coupons as the case may be in the

lawful money of the Confederation of Switzerland without any charges at all offices in Switzerland of any

of the following banks the Paying Agents
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UBS AG

Bank Julius Baer Co Ltd

Bank Sarasin Co Ltd

Bank Vontobel Ltd

Basler Kantonalbank

Bayerische Hypo- und Vereinsbank Corporation Munich Zurich Branch

BNP Paribas Suisse SA

Credit Suisse AG
Pictet et Cie

Raiffeisen Switzerland Cooperative

The Royal Bank of Scotland NV Amsterdam Zurich Branch

If printed definitive Bonds must be presented and surrendered for payment at one of the above offices with

all unmatured Coupons attached if any The total value of missing Coupons shall be deducted from the prin

cipal amount of the Bonds payable but such Coupons shall be paid on presentation until such time as they

become time-barred by virtue of the Statute of Limitations in accordance with Swiss law

If at any time during the life of the Bonds UBS AG shall resign or become incapable of acting as Principal

Paying Agent or shall be adjudged bankrupt or insolvent UBS AG may be substituted as Principal Paying

Agent by duly licensed major Swiss bank or Swiss branch of major foreign bank chosen by the Issuer In

the event of any replacement of UBS AG as Principal Paying Agent all references to UBS AG shall be deem
ed to refer to such replacement Notice of appointment of any substitute Principal Paying Agent shall be

published in accordance with Section 14 of the Terms of the Bonds

If the due date of any amount of principal or interest of any Bond or Coupon to be physically surrendered

or presented for payment is not Business Day as defined in Section in the place where the relevant Bond

or Coupon as the case may be is physically surrendered or presented then the holder of such Bond or

Coupon who physically surrenders or presents the Bond or Coupon on the next following Business Day in

such place will not be entitled to any further interest or other payment in respect of any such delay

Taxation

6.1 Payment of Additional Amounts

All payments of principal and interest on the Bonds by the Issuer to the Principal Paying Agent will be

made without deduction or withholding for or on account of any present or future taxes duties or

governmental charges of any nature whatsoever imposed levied or collected by or in or on behalf ot

the Netherlands or by or on behalf of any political subdivision or authority therein having power to tax

hereinafter together called Withholding Taxes unless such deduction or withholding is required by

law

In the event that any Withholding Taxes on any such payments to the Principal Paying Agent must be

withheld at source by the Issuer the Issuer shall pay such additional amounts Additional Amounts
as may be necessary in order that the net amounts received by the Bondholders after such deduction

or withholding shall equal the respective amounts of principal and interest which would have been

receivable in respect of the relevant Bonds and/or Coupons in the absence of such deduction or with

holding No such Additional Amounts shall however be payable on account of any taxes duties or

governmental charges which

are payable otherwise than by deduction or withholding from payments of principal or interest

under these Terms of the Bonds or

are payable by reason of the Bondholder having or having had some personal or business

connection with the Netherlands and not merely by reason of the holding of the Bond or Coupon
or

are payable by reason of change in law that becomes effective more than 30 days after the relev

ant payment of principal or interest becomes due or is duly provided for and notice thereof is

published in accordance with Section 14 whichever occurs later
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no such additional amounts are payable where such deduction or withholding is imposed on

payment to an individual and is required to be made pursuant to the Council Directive on taxa

tion of savings income in the form of interest payments or the equivalent measures that

Switzerland and/or Liechtenstein have agreed upon their negotiations with the EU Council be
cause of this Directive or any law implementing or complying with or introduced in order to con
form to that Directive

6.2 Early Redemption for Tax Reasons

If as result of any change in or amendment to the laws or regulations prevailing in the Netherlands

which change or amendment becomes effective on or after 11 October 2005 or as result of any

application or official interpretation of such laws or regulations not generally known before that date

Withholding Taxes are or will be liable on payments by the Issuer to the Principal Paying Agent of prin

cipal or interest in respect of the Bonds which cannot be avoided and by reason of the obligation to

pay Additional Amounts as provided in paragraph hereof such Withholding Taxes are to be borne by

the Issuer the Issuer may redeem the Bonds in whole but not in part at any time on giving not less

than 60 days notice at the Final Redemption Value together with interest accrued to the date fixed for

redemption No such notice of redemption shall be given earlier than 90 days prior to the earliest date

on which the Issuer would be obliged to withhold or pay Withholding Taxes were payment in respect

of the Bonds or Coupons then made

Any such notice shall be given by publication in accordance with Section 14 It shall be irrevocable must

specify the date fixed for redemption and must set forth statement in summary form of the facts con

stituting the basis for the right of the Issuer so to redeem

Status and Negative Pledge Clause

7.1 Status

The Bonds constitute unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of the Issuer ranking pan passu

among themselves and with all other present or future unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of

the lssue save for those preferred by mandatory provisions of law

7.2 Negative Pledge Clause

So long as any of the Bonds remain outstanding the Issuer undertakes not to secure any of its other

indebtedness whether present or future which is both represented by bonds notes or other secur

ities which have an initial life exceeding two years and which are for the time being or are intended to

be quoted listed ordinarily dealt in or traded on any stock exchange or over-the-counter or other simi

lar securities market and not Domestic Indebtedness

In this Condition 7.2 Domestic Indebtedness means the indebtedness as referred to under above

of the Issuer which is denominated or payable at the option of any party in euro unless 50 per cent

or more thereof in aggregate principal amount is
initially

offered or sold outside the Netherlands

Events of Default

UBS AG has the right but not the obligation on behalf of the Bondholders to declare all the outstanding

Bonds plus accrued interest to the date of such payment to be immediately repayable at their par value in

case of

non-payment of the principal of any of the Bonds as and when the same shall become due and pay
able and such default continues for period of 30 days or

non-payment of interest on or additional amounts payable under Section on any of the Bonds as and

when the same become due and payable and such default continues for period of 30 days or

failure on the part of the Issuer duly to observe or perform any other covenants or obligations under

the Agreement or the Terms for period of days after the date on which written notice by UBS AG
of such failure requiring the Issuer to remedy the same shall have been sent to the Issuer or
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any other indebtedness of the Issuer or any Material Subsidiary as defined in the Section either

becomes due and payable exceeding Euro 35000000 or its counter-value prior to the due date for

payment thereof by reason of default by the Issuer or Material Subsidiary or ii is not repaid at matur

ity as extended by the period of grace if any applicable thereto or any guarantee or indemnity given

by the Issuer or any Material Subsidiary in respect of indebtedness of any person is not honoured when

due or

the Issuer or any Material Subsidiary shall generally not pay its debts as they become due or shall admit

in writing its inability to pay its debts or shall make general assignment for the benefit of creditors or

the Issuer or any Material Subsidiary shall commence any case proceeding or other action or any case

proceeding or other action shall be commenced against the Issuer or any Material Subsidiary which

results in the entering of an order for relief against one of them which is not fully stayed within 30 days

after the entering thereof or remains undismissed for period of 30 days seeking arrangement adjust

ment bankruptcy dissolution or composition of any one of them or of the debts of any one of them

under any law relating to bankruptcy insolvency or relief of debtors or seeking appointment of

receiver trustee custodian or other similar official for any one of them or for all or any substantial part

of the property of any one of them or

the Issuer or any Material Subsidiary respectively shall take any corporate action to authorise any of the

actions set forth above in paragraphs and

Sate or Transfer of Assets Reorganisation Liquidation or Merger

In case of

sale or transfer of all or substantial part of the assets of the Issuer or of Material Subsidiary or

liquidation or merger of Material Subsidiary for this purpose part of the assets shall be deemed to

be substantial if when aggregated with all previous disposals after the Payment Date of this Issue taken

into account under the subparagraph the value thereof amounts to 10 per cent or more of the gross

assets of such entity determined by reference to the latest available audited unconsolidated balance

sheet of such entity or

reorganization or the Issuer or Material Subsidiary unless in the opinion of UBS AG such reorganiza

tion includes adequate protection of the Bondholders or

liquidation or merger of the Issuer unless the successor company if any assumes all obligations of

the Issuer and ii the ratio of Consolidated Equity of the successor company to consolidated total

assets shall not be less than that before such liquidation or merger

UBS AG has the right but not the obligation to declare on behalf of the Bondholders all outstanding Bonds

plus accrued interest to be immediately payable at par 30 days after receipt of written notice addressed

to the Issuer by UBS AG

Subsidiary means corporation majority of the outstanding voting stock of which is owned directly or

indirectly by the lssuer or by one or more other Subsidiaries

Material Subsidiary means any Subsidiary of the Issuer whose net profits after tax but before extraordin

ary items or whose net assets in each case attributable to the shareholders of the Issuer represent 10 per

cent or more of the consolidated net profits after tax but before extraordinary items or consolidated net

assets in each case attributable to the shareholders of the Issuer of the Issuer and its Subsidiaries report

of the auditors of the Issuer that in their opinion Subsidiary of the Issuer is or is not Material Subsidiary

shall in the absence of manifest error be conclusive and binding on all parties

Consolidated Equity means the sum of

the par value of the outstanding capital stock of all classes plus

the amount of the consolidated surplus whether capital or earned plus
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that minority portion of consolidated subsidiaries if any which for accounting purposes is consolidat

able pursuant to general accepted accounting principles and practices in the relevant jurisdiction

10 Replacement of Issuer

The Issuer may without the consent of the Holders at any time substitute for itself in respect of all rights

and obligations arising under or in connection with the Bonds any non-Swiss issuer of which 90% or more

of the shares carrying voting rights are directly or indirectly held by the Issuer the New Issuer provided

that

the New Issuer is in the opinion of UBS AG in position to fulfil all payment obligations arising from

or in connection with the Bonds and Coupons in freely convertible and transferable legal tender of

Switzerland without any need to deduct or withhold any taxes or duties at source and to transfer with

out restriction all amounts required to be paid under the Bonds and Coupons to UBS AG and the inter

ests of the holders of Bonds and/or Coupons are adequately protected in the opinion of UBS AG

the New Issuer has obtained to this effect all necessary authorisations of the country of its domicile or

its deemed residence for tax purposes and

the Issuer has issued its irrevocable and unconditional guarantee as per Art 111 of the Swiss Federal

Code of Obligations in respect to the obligations of the New Issuer under the Bonds and Coupons in

form and content satisfactory to UBS AG

Any substitution shall be published in accordance with Section 14

In the event of such substitution any reference in the Agreement and Annexes and Terms of the Bonds to

the Issuer shall be deemed to refer to the New Issuer and any reference to the Netherlands as far as made

in connection with the Issuer shall be deemed to refer to the country in which the New Issuer has its domi

cile or is deemed resident for tax purposes

11 Replacement of Bonds Couponssheets and Coupons

If printed Bonds Couponssheets or Coupons which are mutilated lost or destroyed may be replaced at the

office of UBS AG in Zurich against payment by the holder of the respective Bonds Couponssheets or

Coupons at such costs as may be incurred in connection therewith and on such terms as to evidence and

guarantee as the Issuer and UBS AG may require and in the case of mutilation upon surrender of the mutil

ated Bonds Couponssheets or Coupons

12 Listing

Application will be made for the admission and listing of the Bonds on the Standard for Bonds of SIX

The Issuer will use reasonable endeavours to have the Bonds listed on SIX and to maintain such listing during

the whole life of the Bonds

13 Prescription

Claims for payment of principal and interest respectively cease to be enforceable by legal action in accord

ance with the applicable Statute of Limitations presently after 10 years in the case of principal and years

in the case of interest from their relevant due dates

14 Notices

All notices regarding the Bonds and/or the Coupons shall be published by UBS AG electronically on the web-

site httpI/ww.six-swiss-exchange.com in accordance with the rules and regulations of SIX
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All notices to the Issuer by any Bondholder or Couponholder shall be transimitted through UBS AG exclus

ively

15 Applicable Law and Jurisdiction

The Bonds and Coupons are governed by Swiss law

Any dispute which might arise between the Bondholders and Couponholders on the one hand and the Issuer

on the other hand regarding the Bonds or the Coupons shall fall within the jurisdiction of the ordinary courts

of justice of the Canton of Zurich place of venue being the City of Zurich

Solely for that purpose and for the purpose of the performance and enforcement of its obligations under

these Terms of the Bonds the Bonds and Coupons in Switzerland the Issuer elects legal and special domic

ile including pursuant to Article 50 of the Swiss Federal Act on Debt Enforcement and Bankruptcy at the

offices of UBS AG Zurich and appoints UBS AG as its agent for service of process UBS AG shall forthwith

notify the Issuer of any communication received under this Section

The Bondholders and Couponholders are also at liberty to enforce their rights and to take legal action against

the Issuer before the competent courts of the Netherlands in which case Swiss law shall be applicable with

respect to the Bonds or Coupons

16 Currency Indemnity

If any payment obligation of the Issuer in favor of the Bondholders or Couponholders has to be changed

from Swiss francs into currency other than Swiss francs to obtain judgment execution or for any other

reason the Issuer undertakes as separate and independent obligation to indemnify the Bondholders or

Couponholders for any shortfall caused by fluctuation of the exchange rates applied for such conversions

17 Bondholders Meeting

17.1 UBS AG or the Issuer may at any time convene meeting of the Bondholders Bondholders

Meeting

In case of any event mentioned in Section above holders of Bonds who wish that Bondholders

Meeting should be convened and who represent Bonds in the aggregate principal amount of at least

10% ten percent of the aggregate principal amount then outstanding and who are entitled to vote

in accordance with Subsections 17.5 and 17.7 below may at any time require UBS AG to convene

Bondholders Meeting which shall convene such meeting as soon as practicably possible upon

receipt of such request

17.2 Bondholders Meeting may consider any matter affecting the interests of the Bondholders other

than matters on which UBS AG has previously exercised its rights contained in Section 18 below

including any modification of or arrangement in respect of the terms and conditions of the Bonds

and Coupons

17.3 Notice convening Bondholders Meeting shall be given at least 20 days prior to the proposed date

thereof Such notice shall be given by way of one announcement in accordance with Section 14

above at the expense of the Issuer It shall state generally the nature of the business to be transac

ted at such meeting If an Extraordinary Resolution as defined below is being proposed the wor
ding of the proposed resolution or resolutions shall be indicated The notice shall specify the day
hour and place of the meeting and also the formal requirements referred to in Subsection 17.5

below The Issuer and the Paying Agents will each make copy of such notice available for inspec
tion of the Bondholders during normal business hours at each of their respective head offices

Notice of any resolution passed at Bondholders Meeting will be published by UBS AG on behalf

and at the expense of the Issuer in compliance with Section 14 above not less than 10 days after the

date of the meeting Non-publication of such notice shall not invalidate such resolution
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17.4 All Bondholders Meetings shall be held in Zurich chairman the Chairman shall be nominated

by UBS AG in writing If no person has been so nominated or if the nominated
person shall not be

present at the Bondholders Meeting within 30 minutes after the time fixed for holding the meeting
the Bondholders present shall choose one of their number to be the Chairman

The Chairman shall lead and preside over the Bondholders Meeting Among others it shall be his

duty to determine the presence of persons entitled to vote and to inquire if the necessary quorum
as set forth below is present He shall instruct the Bondholders as to the procedure of the

Bondholders Meeting and the resolutions to be considered

In the case of any equality of votes the Chairman shall have casting vote

declaration by the Chairman that resolution has been carried or carried by particular majority

or rejected or not carried by particular majority shall be conclusive evidence of the fact without

proof of the number or proportion of the votes recorded in favor of or against such resolution

17.5 Each person who produces Bond or certificate by Manager in respect of such Bond relating to

that Bondholders Meeting is entitled to attend and to vote on the resolutions proposed at such

Bondholders Meeting Couponholders are not entitled to attend or vote at Bondholders meetings
Said certificate shall be dated before the date of the Bondholders Meeting and confirm that the

Bond is deposited with the Manager and will remain deposited with it until and including the date

of the Bondholders Meeting and that it has not issued any other such certificate with respect to such

Bond

17.6 The quorum necessary in order to vote on resolutions proposed at Bondholders Meeting shall be

persons entitled under Subsections 17.5 above and 17.7 below holding or representing in the

aggregate percentages or more of the aggregate principal amount of all outstanding Bonds

each Ordinary Resolution 25%
each Extraordinary Resolution 66%

The terms Ordinary Resolution and Extraordinary Resolution are defined in Subsections 17.9

and 17.10 below

If within thirty minutes after the time appointed for
any Bondholders Meeting sufficient quorum

is not present the Meeting shall be dissolved

17.7 Voting rights shall be determined according to the principal amount of outstanding Bonds held Each

CHF 5000 principal amount gives right to one vote

Bonds held by or on behalf of the Issuer or any other natural person or legal entity aa which direct

ly or indirectly owns or controls more than 50% of the equity share capital of the Issuer or bb of

which in the case of legal entity more than 50% of the equity share capital is controlled by the

Issuer directly or indirectly or cc where the Issuer is in position to exercise directly or indirectly

control over the decisions or actions of such natural person or legal entity or representative thereof

irrespective of whether or not the latter is affiliated to the Issuer shall not be entitled to vote at such

Bondholders Meeting

17.8 resolution shall be validly passed if approved by the following percentages or more of votes cast

at duly convened Bondholders Meeting held in accordance with this Section 17

each Ordinary Resolution 51

each Extraordinary Resolution 66%

Every proposal submitted to Bondholders Meeting shall be decided upon by poll

17.9 Any resolution which is not an Extraordinary Resolution as defined in the following Subsection shall

be deemed to be an Ordinary Resolution an Ordinary Resolution
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17.10 An Extraordinary Resolution an Extraordinary Resolution shall be necessary to decide on the

following matters at Bondholders Meeting

to postpone the maturity beyond the stated maturity of the principal of any Bond or

to reduce the amount of principal or premium if any payable on any Bond or

to change the date of interest payment of any Bond or

to change the rate of interest or the method of computation of interest of any Bond or

to change any provision for payment contained in the Terms of the Bonds or the place or the

currency
of repayment of the principal or payment of premium if any of any Bond or interest

on any Bond or

to amend or modify or waive the whole or any parts of Sections or above or

Subsections 17.7 through 17.10 or

to create unequal treatment between holders of Bonds of the same class of an issue or

to convert the Bonds into equity or

to change the choice of law and the jurisdiction clause contained in Section 17.4 above

The above-mentioned list of issues for which an Extraordinary Resolution shall be necessary is exclus

ive

17.11 Any resolution approved at Bondholders Meeting held in accordance with this Section 17 shall be

conclusive and binding on all present or future Bondholders whether present or not and on all

Coupon holders

Minutes of all resolutions and proceedings at Bondholders Meeting shall be prepared and signed

by the Chairman pursuant to Section 17.4 above

17.12 If no Bondholder or an insufficient number of Bondholders shall attend Bondholders Meeting the

right to decide on an early repayment of the Bonds or any other measures to protect the interests

of the Bondholders shall revert to the absolute discretion of UBS AG Any such decision of UBS AG

shall be final and binding upon the Issuer and the Bondholders and Couponholders Notice of any

such decision shall be published in accordance with Section 14 above

18 Amendment to the Terms of the Bonds

The Terms of the Bonds may be amended from time to time by the agreement between the Issuer and UBS

AG on behalf of the Bondholders and Couponholders provided that in the sole opinion of UBS AG such

amendment is of formal minor or technical nature is made to correct manifest error or is not materially

prejudicial to the interests of the Bondholders and Couponholders

Notice of any such amendment shall be transmitted as per Section 14 above

Any such amendment shall be binding on the Bondholders and Couponholders in accordance with its terms

19 Separability

If at any time any one or more of the provisions of the Terms of the Bonds is or becomes unlawful invalid

illegal or unenforceable in any respect under any law the validity legality and enforceability of the remain

ing provisions shall not be in any way affected or impaired thereby
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OFFERING CIRCULAR SUPPLEMENT

Rabo bank Nederland

Cooperatieve Centrale Raiffeisen-Boerenleenbank B.A

cooperatie formed under the law of the Netherlands with its statutory seat in Amsterdam

Cooperatieve Centrale Raiffeisen-Boerenleenbank B.A Rabobank Nederland Australia Branch

Australian Business Number 70 003 917 655

cooperatie formed under the law of the Netherlands with its statutory seat in Amsterdam

Cooperatieve Centrale Raiffeisen-Boerenleenbank BA Rabobank Nederland Singapore Branch

Singapore Company Registration Number F03634W

cooperatie formed under the law of the Netherlands with its statutory seat in Amsterdam

Euro 110000000000

Global Medium-Term Note Programme

Due from seven days to perpetuity

This offering circular supplement the Offering Circular Supplement constitutes base prospectus supplement for the purposes of

Directive 2003/71/EC the Prospectus Directive and the Dutch Financial Supervision Act Wet op her financieel toeEcht and
regulations

thereunder together Dutch securities laws and is prepared in connection with the Global Medium-Term Note Programme the Programme

under which Cooperatieve Centrale Raiffeisen-Boerenleenbank BA Rabobank Nederland Rabobank Nederland the Bank or the Issuer

may through its head office or through its branches listed above subject to compliance with all relevant laws regulations and directives from

time to time issue Global Medium-Term Notes the Notes References herein to the Issuer shall mean Rabobank Nederland whether
issuing

Notes through its head office or through its branches listed above

The branches through which Rabobank Nederland may issue Notes are CoOperatieve Centrale Raiffeisen-Boerenleenbank BA
Rabobank Nederland Australia Branch and CoOperatieve Centrale Raiffeisen-Boerenleenbank BA Rabobank Nederland Singapore Branch

This Offering Circular Supplement is supplemental to and should be read in conjunction with the offering circular dated May 2009

the Offering Circular Capitalised terms used but not otherwise defined in this Offering Circular Supplement shall have the meanings ascribed

thereto in the Offering Circular To the extent that there is any inconsistency between any statement in this Offering Circular Supplement or

any statement incorporated by reference into the Offering Circular by this Offering Circular Supplement and any other statement in or

incorporated by reference into the Offering Circular the statements in will prevail

Save as disclosed in this Offering Circular Supplement no other significant new factor material mistake or inaccuracy relating to

information included in the Offering Circular has arisen or been noted as the case may be since the publication of the Offering Circular

This Offering Circular Supplement has been submitted to and approved by the Netherlands Authority for the Financial Markets Autoriteit

Financiele Markten in its capacity as competent authority under the Prospectus Directive and Dutch securities laws

In accordance with Article 5236 of the Financial Supervision Act Wet op het Jlnancieel toezicht investors who have agreed to

purchase or subscribe for Notes issued under the Euro 110000000000 Global Medium-Term Programme before the Offering Circular

Supplement is published have the right exercisable before the end of the period of two business days beginning with the business day after the

date on which this Offering Circular Supplement was published to withdraw their acceptances

The date of this Offering Circular Supplement is October 23 2009

Arranger for the Programme

Credit Suisse

Dealers

Rabobank International Barclays Capital

BNP PARIBAS Citi

Credit Suisse Daiwa Securities SMBC Europe

Goldman Sachs International J.P Morgan

Merrill Lynch International Mizuho International plc

Morgan Stanley Nomura International

UBS Investment Bank



IMPORTANT INFORMATION

Rabobank Nederland having taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case confirms that to the best of

its knowledge the information contained in this Offering Circular Supplement with respect to itself as well as with

respect to itself and its members subsidiaries and affiliates taken as whole the Group or the Rabobank

Group and the Notes or otherwise is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the

import of such information Rabobank Nederland accepts responsibility accordingly

No person has been authorised to give any information or to make any representation other than those contained in

this Offering Circular Supplement and the Offering Circular in connection with the issue or sale of the Notes and if

given or made such information or representation must not be relied upon as having been authorised by the Issuer

or any of the Dealers or the Arranger Neither the delivery of this Offering Circular Supplement or the Offering

Circular nor any sale made in connection herewith shall under any circumstances create any implication that there

has been no change in the affairs of the Issuer since the date hereof or the date upon which the Offering Circular

has been most recently amended or supplemented or that there has been no adverse change in the financial position

of the Issuer since the date hereof or the date upon which the Offering Circular has been most recently amended or

supplemented or that any other information supplied in connection with the Programme is correct as of any time

subsequent to the date on which it is supplied or if different the date indicated in the document containing the

same

Neither this Offering Circular Supplement nor the Offering Circular constitute an offer of or an invitation by or on

behalf of the Issuer or the Dealers to subscribe for or purchase any Notes

The Arranger and the Dealers excluding Rabobank International have not separately verified the information

contained in this Offering Circular Supplement or the Offering Circular None of the Dealers excluding Rabobank

international or the Arranger makes any representation express or implied or accepts any responsibility with

respect to the accuracy or completeness of any of the information in this Offering Circular Supplement or the

Offering Circular Neither this Offering Circular Supplement or the Offering Circular nor any financial statements

are intended to provide the basis of any credit or other evaluation and should not be considered as

recommendation by the Issuer the Dealers or the Arranger that any recipient of this Offering Circular Supplement

or the Offering Circular or any financial statements should purchase the Notes Prospective investors should have

regard to the factors described under the section headed Risk Factors in the Offering Circular This Offering

Circular Supplement and the Offering Circular do not describe all of the risks of an investment in the Notes Each

potential purchaser of Notes should determine for itself the relevance of the information contained in this Offering

Circular Supplement and the Offering Circular and its purchase of Notes should be based upon such investigation

as it deems necessary None of the Dealers excluding Rabobank International nor the Arranger undertakes to

review the financial condition or affairs of the Issuer during the life of the arrangements contemplated by this

Offering Circular Supplement and the Offering Circular nor to advise any investor or potential investor in the

Notes of any information coming to the attention of any of the Dealers excluding Rabobank International or the

Arranger



Addition to Recent Developments

The Offering Circular shall be supplemented by the insertion of the following paragraph at the end of the sub

section Recent Developments on page 83 of the chapter Description of Business of the Rabobank Group

Ratings

On 22 October 2009 Moodys Investors Service Moodys affirmed Rabobanks long-term deposit and senior

unsecured Aaa ratings Moodys revised its outlook on these ratings from stable to negative
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OFFERING CIRCULAR SUPPLEMENT

Rabo bank Nederland

Coöperatieve Centrale Raiffeisen-Boerenleenbank B.A

cooperatie formed under the law of the Netherlands with its statutoly seat in Amsterdam

Coöperatieve Centrale Raiffeisen-Boerenleenbank B.A Rabobank Nederland Australia Branch

Australian Business Number 70 003 917 655

cooperatie formed under the law of the Netherlands with its statutoly seat in Amsterdam

Cooperatieve Centrale Raiffeisen-Boerenleenbank BA Rabobank Nederland Singapore Branch

Singapore Company Registration Number F03634W

coöperatie formed under the law of the Netherlands with its statutoly seat in Amsterdam

Euro 110000000000

Global Medium-Term Note Programme

Due from seven days to perpetuity

This offering circular supplement the Offering Circular Supplement constitutes base prospectus supplement for the purposes of

Directive 2003/7ILEC the Prospectus Directive and the Dutch Financial Supervision Act Wet op he Jmnancleel toezichi and regulations

thereunder together Dutch securities laws and is prepared in connection with the Global Medium-Term Note Programme the Programme

under which Cooperatieve Centrale Raiffeisen-Boerenleenbank BA Rabobank Nederland Rabobank Nederland the Bank or the Issuer

may through its head office or through its branches listed above subject to compliance with all relevant laws regulations
and directives from

time to time issue Global Medium-Term Notes the Notes References herein to the Issuer shall mean Rabobank Nederland whether issuing

Notes through its head office or through its branches listed above

The branches through which Rabobank Nederland may issue Notes are CoOperatieve Centrale Raiffeisen-Boerenleenbank B.A

Rabobank Nederland Australia Branch and Cooperatieve Centrale Raiffeisen-Boerenleenbank B.A Rabobank Nederland Singapore Branch

This Offering Circular Supplement is supplemental to and should be read in conjunction with the offering circular dated May 2009 and

the supplemental Offering Circular dated October 23 2009 together the Offering Circular Capitalised terms used but not otherwise defined in

this Offering Circular Supplement shall have the meanings ascribed thereto in the Offering Circular To the extent that there is any inconsistency

between any statement in this Offering Circular Supplement or any statement incorporated by reference into the Offering Circular by this

Offering Circular Supplement and any other statement in or incorporated by reference into the Offering Circular the statements in will

prevail

Save as disclosed in this Offering Circular Supplement no other significant new factor material mistake or inaccuracy relating to

information included in the Offering Circular has arisen or been noted as the case may be since the publication of the Offering Circular

This Offering Circular Supplement has been submitted to and approved by the Netherlands Authority for the Financial Markets Autoriteit

Financiºle Markten in its capacity as competent authority under the Prospectus Directive and Dutch securities laws

In accordance with Article 5236 of the Financial Supervision Act Wet op her financieel toezicht investors who have agreed to

purchase or subscribe for Notes issued under the Euro 110000000000 Global Medium-Term Note Programme before the Offering Circular

Supplement is published have the right exercisable before the end of the period of two business days beginning with the business day after the

date on which this Offering Circular Supplement was published to withdraw their acceptances

The date of this Offering Circular Supplement is December 82009

Arranger for the Programme

Credit Suisse

Dealers

Rabobank International Barclays Capital

BNP PARIBAS Citi

Credit Suisse Daiwa Securities SMBC Europe

Goldman Sachs International J.P Morgan

Merrill Lynch International Mizuho International plc

Morgan Stanley Nomura International

UBS Investment Bank



IMPORTANT INFORMATION

Rabobank Nederland having taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case confirms that to the best of

its knowledge the information contained in this Offering Circular Supplement with respect to itself as well as with

respect to itself and its members subsidiaries and affiliates taken as whole the Group or the Rabobank

Group and the Notes or otherwise is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the

import of such information Rabobank Nederland accepts responsibility accordingly

No person has been authorised to give any information or to make any representation other than those contained in

this Offering Circular Supplement and the Offering Circular in connection with the issue or sale of the Notes and if

given or made such information or representation must not be relied upon as having been authorised by the Issuer

or any of the Dealers or the Arranger Neither the delivery of this Offering Circular Supplement or the Offering

Circular nor any sale made in connection herewith shall under any circumstances create any implication that there

has been no change in the affairs of the Issuer since the date hereof or the date upon which the Offering Circular

has been most recently amended or supplemented or that there has been no adverse change in the financial position

of the Issuer since the date hereof or the date upon which the Offering Circular has been most recently amended or

supplemented or that any other information supplied in connection with the Programme is correct as of any time

subsequent to the date on which it is supplied or if different the date indicated in the document containing the

same

Neither this Offering Circular Supplement nor the Offering Circular constitute an offer of or an invitation by or on

behalf of the issuer or the Dealers to subscribe for or purchase any Notes

The Arranger and the Dealers excluding Rabobank international have not separately verified the information

contained in this Offering Circular Supplement or the Offering Circular None of the Dealers excluding Rabobank

International or the Arranger makes any representation express or implied or accepts any responsibility with

respect to the accuracy or completeness of any of the information in this Offering Circular Supplement or the

Offering Circular Neither this Offering Circular Supplement or the Offering Circular nor any financial statements

are intended to provide the basis of any credit or other evaluation and should not be considered as

recommendation by the Issuer the Dealers or the Arranger that any recipient of this Offering Circular Supplement

or the Offering Circular or any financial statements should purchase the Notes Prospective investors should have

regard to the factors described under the section headed Risk Factors in the Offering Circular This Offering

Circular Supplement and the Offering Circular do not describe all of the risks of an investment in the Notes Each

potential purchaser of Notes should determine for itself the relevance of the information contained in this Offering

Circular Supplement and the Offering Circular and its purchase of Notes should be based upon such investigation

as it deems necessary None of the Dealers excluding Rabobank International nor the Arranger undertakes to

review the financial condition or affairs of the Issuer during the life of the arrangements contemplated by this

Offering Circular Supplement and the Offering Circular nor to advise any investor or potential investor in the

Notes of any information coming to the attention of any of the Dealers excluding Rabobank International or the

Arranger



Addition to Recent Developments

The Offering Circular shall be supplemented by the insertion of the following sentence at the end of the sub

section Ratings which sub-section has been inserted following the publication of the supplemental Offering

Circular dated 23 October 2009 on page
83 of the chapter Recent Developments forming part of the chapter

Description of Business of the Rabobank Group

On December 2009 Standard Poors Ratings Services SP affirmed Rabobanks AAA counterparty

credit rating SP revised its outlook on this rating from stable to negative
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RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Issuer accepts responsibility for all information contained in this Listing Prospectus and in the Related

Documents and has taken all reasonable care to ensure that the facts stated herein are true and accurate in all

material respects and that there are no other material facts the omission of which would make misleading any

statement herein whether of fact or opinion

Utrecht April 2010

Coäpeatieve Centrale Raiffeisen-Boerenleenbank B.A

Rabobank Nederland
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FINAL TERMS

Date April 2010 4i.ol9

RABOBANK STRUCTURED PRODUCTS

Issue of EUR 5000000 Index Linked Notes 2010 due 20 April 2016

linked to the SGI Ivory 7% the Notes
pursuant to the EUR 10000000000 Structured Medium Term Note Programme

NO CIRCUMSTANCES MAY THE NOTES BE REDEEMED BY THE ISSUER AT THE MATURITY
DATE FOR LESS THAN THE PROTECTION AMOUNT EXCEPT THAT TUE EVENT OF

INSOLVENCY OF THE ISSUER OR IN THE EVENT OF AN EARLY REDEMPTION PURSUANT TO
TERMS AND CONDITIONS 5b 5e 5h 7b OR 14 THE NOTES MAY BE REDEEMED AT LESS

THAN THE PROTECTION AMOUNT

THE ISSUER HAS MADE NO INVESTIGATION INTO THE TREATMENT OF THE NOTES BY THE TAX AUTHORITIES

OF ANY COUNTRY INCLUDING THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA INVESTORS ARE STRONGLY ADVISED TO

TAKE THEIR OWN TAX ADVICE

PART CONTRACTUAL TERMS

Terms used herein shall be deemed to be defined as such for the purposes of the Terms and Conditions set forth in the

Offering Circular dated 21 December 2009 which constitutes base prospectus for the purposes of the Prospectus

Directive Directive 2003/71/EC the Prospectus Directive This document constitutes the Final Terms of the Notes

described herein for the purposes of Article 5.4 of the Prospectus Directive and must be read in conjunction with the

Offering Circular Full information on the Issuer and the offer of the Notes is only available on the basis of the combination

of these Final Terms and the Offering Circular The Offering Circular is available for viewing during normal business hours

and may be obtained at Rabobank International Croeselaan 18 3521 CB Utrecht The Netherlands and www.rabobank.nI

References herein to numbered conditions are to the Terms and Conditions of the Notes

These Final Terms do not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy any Notes other than the Notes to

which they relate or an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy Notes by any person in any circumstances in which

such offer or solicitation is unlawful

The distribution of these Final Terms and the offering sale and delivery of the Notes in certain jurisdictions may be

restricted by law Persons into whose possession these Final Terms come are required by the Issuer to inform themselves

about and to observe any such restrictions For further description of certain restrictions on the offering and sale of the

Series see Subscription and Sale in the Offering Circular as supplemented or amended by these Final Terms

The information contained in these Final Ternis does not constitute an investment recommendation

The purchase of Notes may involve substantial risks and is suitable only for investors who have the knowledge and

experience in financial and business matters necessary to enable them to evaluate the risks and the merits of an

investment in the Notes Before making an investment decision prospective purchasers of Notes should consider



carefully in the light of their own financial circumstances and investment objectives all the information set forth in these

Final Tenns and the Offenng Circular as supplemented ævm time to time

Issuer

Series Number

Tranche Number

Specified Currency or Currencies

Aggregate nominal amount

Series

Tranche

Issue Price of Tranche

Specified Denominations

Calculation Amount

Issue Date

Interest Commencement Date

Maturity Date or Redemption Month

Euro EUR

EtJR 5000000

EUR 5000000

100 per cent of the aggregate nominal amount

EUR 50000

EUR 50000

April2010

Not Applicable

20 April 2016 provided that if the scheduled Final Valuation

Date is postponed in accordance with the Terms and

Conditions the Maturity Date shall be such date being at

least five Business Days after the rescheduled Final

Valuation Date resulting from such postponement as the

Calculation Agent may determine

Not Applicable

Index Linked Redemption

70 per cent of the Specified Denomination

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Senior and unsecured

No

Cobperatieve Centrale Raiffeisen-Boerenleenbank B.A

Rabobank Structured Products

4084

Interest Basis

10 Redemption/Payment Basis

Protection Amount

11 Change of Interest Basis or

Redemption/Payment Basis

12 Investor Put/Issuer Call/Obligatory

Redemption

13 Status of the Notes

Domestic Note

if Domestic Note there will be no

gmss-up for withholding tax



Date of approval for issuance of

Notes Not Applicable

14 Method of distribution Non-Syndicated

PROVISIONS RELATING TO INTEREST IF ANY PAYABLE

FIXED RATE NOTE PROVISIONS

15 Fixed Rate Note Provisions Not Applicable

FLOATING RATE NOTE PROVISIONS

16 Floating Rate Note Provisions Not Applicable

ZERO COUPON NOTE PROVISIONS

17 Zero Coupon Note Provisions Not Applicable

CURRENCY LINKED INTEREST NOTE PROVISIONS

18 Currency Linked Interest Note Provisions Not Applicable

COMMODITY LINKED INTEREST NOTE PROVISIONS

19 Commodity Linked interest Note Provisions Not Applicable

INDEX LINKED INTEREST NOTE PROVISIONS

20 Index Linked Interest Note Provisions Not Applicable

EQUITY LINKED INTEREST NOTE PROVISIONS

21 Equity Linked interest Note Provisions Not Applicable

CREDiT LINKED INTEREST NOTE PROVISIONS

22 Credit Linked Interest Note Provisions Not Applicable

FUND LINKED INTEREST NOTE PROVISIONS

23 Fund Linked Interest Note Provisions Not Applicable

DUAL CURRENCY INTEREST NOTE PROVISIONS

24 Dual Currency Interest Note Provisions Not Applicable

PROVISIONS RELATING TO OPTIONAL REDEMPTION AND FiNAL REDEMPTION AMOUNT

25 Issuer Call

Condition 5c Not Applicable

26 Investor Put Not Applicable



Condition 5d

27 Obligatory Redemption

Condition 50 Not Applicable

28 Final Redemption Amount of each Note See item 31 below

CURRENCY LINKED REDEMPTION NOTE PROVISIONS

29 Currency Linked Redemption Notes Not Applicable

COMMODITY LINKED REDEMPTION NOTE PROVISIONS

30 Commodity Linked Redemption Notes Not Applicable

INDEX LINKED REDEMPTION NOTE PROVISIONS

31 Index Linked Redemption Notes Applicable

Whetherthe Notes relate toa single

Index or Basket of Indices the

identity of the relevant Index/Indices

and whether such Index/Indices is/are

Multi-Exchange Index

Single Index

Index SGI Ivory 7% Bloomberg Code SGIXIV

Name of Index Sponsors Standard Poors division of the McGraw-Hill Companies

Inc

Relevant provisions for detemiining

the Final Redemption Amount

Unless previously redeemed purchased and/or cancelled in

accordance with the applicable Terms and Conditions the

Issuer shall redeem each Note on the Maturity Date in

accordance with the following provisions

Specified Denomination Max 70% 100% Final

Performance

For the Purpose of these Final Terms

Final Performance means
1/9 Sum from Ito Si S0

5i means the Reference Level of the Index on the

Valuation Date from to

SO means the Reference Level of the Index on Valuation

date



Valuation Date means April 2010

Valuation Date from to means each of

9Apr11 2014 itl

July 2014 i2
October 2014 i3
January 2015 i4

9Apr11 2015 15
July2015 16
October 2015 17

11 January 2016 i8
11 April2018 19 the Final Valuation Date

Observation Periods Not Applicable

Observation Dates Not Applicable

Valuation DatesIAveraging Dates As specified in section 31c above each of such dates is

deemed to be Scheduled Valuation Date in accordance with

the Terms and Conditions

Valuation Time As set out in Condition 7c

Disrupted Day Applicable

Multiplier for each Index comprising

the basket Not Applicable

Additional Disruption Events Applicable subject to the following

Hedging Disruption means in respect of the Notes and the

underlying Index that the Issuer or one of its affiliates or

SociØtØ GØnØrale or one of its affiliates acting as the case may

be in its capacity of hedging counterparty under the Notes is

unable after using commercially reasonable efforts to either

acquire establish re-establish substitute maintain unwind

or dispose of any transactions or assets it deems necessary

to hedge the equity price risk or any other relevant price risk

including but not limited to the currency risk of entering into

and performing its obligations with respect to the Notes or

freely realize recover receive repatriate remit or transfer the

proceeds of Hedge Positions as the case may be between

accounts within the jurisdiction of the Hedge Positions the

Affected Jurisdiction or from accounts within the Affected

Jurisdiction to accounts outside of the Affected Jurisdiction

Hedge Positions means any purchase sale entry into or

maintenance of one or more positions or contracts in

securities options futures derivatives or foreign exchange ii

stock loan transactions or iii other instruments or

arrangements howsoever described by Societe Generale or

one of its affiliates in order to hedge individually or on

portfolio basis the Notes

Change in Law means that during the period from an

including the Valuation Date0 to but excluding the Valuation

Date1 due to the adoption of any change in any applicable



law or regulation including without limitation any tax law or

due to the promulgation of or any change in the

interpretation by any court tribunal or regulatory authority with

competent jurisdiction of any applicable law or regulation

including any action taken by taxing authority Rabobank or

one of its affiliates or the Calculation Agent determines in good

faith that it has become illegal for Societe GØnØrale or one

of its affiliates to hold acquire or dispose of Hedge Positions

relating to the Underlying of the Notes or Rabobank or one

of its affiliates will incur materially increased cost in performing

its obligations under the Notes including without limitation

due to any increase in tax liability decrease in tax benefits or

other adverse effect on its tax position the Affected

Underlying

Upon the occurrence in the determination of the Calculation

Agent on or prior to the Final Valuation Date or the last

Averaging Date of Change in Law the Calculation Agent may
decide in consultation with the Issuer with regard to the

Affected Underlying by such Change in Law to replace the

Affected Underlying by new underlying which is

representative of the same economic or geographic sector

Moreover Condition 7b and 7b ii Adjustment to an

Index are amended by the following

If on or prior to the Valuation Date the relevant Index

Sponsor makes or announces that it will make material

change in the formula for or the method of calculating

relevant Index or in any other way materially modifies that

Index other than modification prescribed in that formula or

method to maintain that Index in the event of changes in

constituent stock and capitalisation contracts or commodities

and other routine events an Index Modification then the

Calculation Agent may

determine if such Index Modification has material

effect on the Notes and if so to calculate the

Reference Level using in lieu of published level for

that Index the level for that Index as at the Valuation

Time on the Valuation Date as determined by the

Calculation Agent in accordance with the formula for

and method of calculating that Index last in effect prior

to the change failure or cancellation but using only

those securities/commodities that comprised that

Index immediately prior to that Index Adjustment

Event

or replace the Index by new index provided that

such index is in the sole and absolute opinion of the

Calculation Agent representative of the same

economic or geographic sector as the case may be
and to the extent possible representative of

shares listed on one or more Exchanges of one or

more OECD countries

If the Index ceased to be calculated and assumed by

the Calculation Agent or if the Index ceased to exist then

the Issuer shall redeem the Notes at their Early Redemption
Amount in accordance with condition 7h Market Va/tie unless

the Issuer appoints new calculation agent or in the second

case the initial Index is replaced by an alternative index

proposed by the new Calculation Agent



Provided that the eventual replacement similar index should be

defined as

An index whose main characteristics are similar to those of the

Index in the determination of the new Calculation Agent The

main characteristics of an index comprise without limitation its

strategy its currency the asset class geographical and

economical sectors reflected in the index and if relevant

representative of shares listed on one or more exchanges of

one or more OECD countries

For the purpose of these Final Terms OECD means

Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development

Trade Date

Exchanges

Related Exchanges

Other terms or special conditions

EQUITY LINKED REDEMPTION NOTE PROVISIONS

32 Equity Linked Redemption Notes

CREDIT LINKED REDEMPTION NOTE PROVIS1ONS

33 Credit Linked Redemption Notes

FUND LINKED REDEMPTION NOTE PROVISIONS

34 Fund Linked Redemption Notes

DUAL CURRENCY REDEMPTION NOTE PROVISIONS

35 Dual Currency Redemption Notes

GENERAL PROVISIONS RELAT1NG TO REDEMPTION

36 Partly Paid Notes

37 Instalment Notes

38 Early Redemption Amount

17 March 2010

Each exchange on which components comprised in the Index

are traded from time to time as determined by the Index

Sponsor

Not Applicable

None

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Such amounts determined by the Calculation Agent in its

sole and absolute discretion which on the early redemption

date of the Notes shall represent the fair market value of the



Notes and which shall have the effect after taking into

account the cost of unwinding any hedging arrangements

entered into in respect of the Notes of preserving for the

Noteholders the economic equivalent of the obligations of the

Issuer to make the payments in respect of the Notes which

would but for such early redemption for taxation reasons or on

Event of Default have fallen due after the relevant early

redemption date

39 Adjustment for Early Redemption Unwind

Costs Not Applicable

GENERAL PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO THE NOTES

40 Form of Notes Bearer Notes

Temporary Global Note exchangeable for Permanent Global

Note which is exchangeable for Definitive Notes in the limited

circumstances set out in the Permanent Global Note

41 Additional Financial Centres or other special

provisions relating to Payment Days in

Condition 110 Not Applicable

42 Talons for future Coupons or Receipts to be

attached to Definitive Notes and dates on

which such Talons mature No

43 Other final terms Not Applicable

44 Further Issues provision Condition 18 applies

DISTRIBUTION

45 If syndicated names and addresses

of Dealers and underwriting

commitments Not Applicable

Date of Subscripton Agreement Not Applicable

Stabilising Managers Not Applicable

If non-syndicated name and address

of relevant Dealer SociØtØ Generale

17 cours Valniy

92987 Paris La Defense Cedex

France

Total commission and concession Not Applicable

U.S Selling Restrictions Reg Category TEFRA

46 Additional selling restrictions Not Applicable



47 Additional United States Tax Considerations Not Applicable

PURPOSE OF FINAL TERMS

These Final Terms comprise the final terms required for issue and admission to trading on the regulated market of the

Luxembourg Stock Exchange of the Notes described herein pursuant to the Structured Medium Term Note Programme of

Rabobank Structured Products

RESPONSIBILITY

The Issuer accepts responsibility for the information contained in these Final Terms and to the best knowledge and belief

of the Issuer the information contained in these Final Terms is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything

likely to affect the import of such information Information on the Index the Reference Information has been extracted

from annual reports Bloomberg Reuters official websites relating to the Index and/or other publicly available information

The Issuer confirms that the Reference Information has been accurately reproduced and that so far as it is aware and is

able to ascertain
from/iIiformation published by the sponsor of the Index Bloomberg Reuters and/or on official websites

relating to the lndxfad/or in other publicly available information no facts have been omitted which would render the

reproduced inforntir1inaccurate or misleading

Signed If of the Issuer

Duly



PART OTHER INFORMATION

LISTING AND ADMISS1ON TO TRADING

Listing and Admission to trading Application has been made by the Issuer or on its behalO

for the Notes to be admitted to the official list and traded

on the regulated market of the Luxembourg Stock

Exchange with effect from at the earliest the Issue Date

ii Estimate of total expenses related to

admission to trading EUR 2290

RATINGS

Ratings Not Applicable

NOTIFICATION

The Netherlands Authority for the Financial Markets Autoriteit Financiele Markten has provided the Commission

de Surveillance du Secteur Financier CSSF Luxembourg with certificate of approval attesting that the

Offering Circular dated 21 December 2009 has been drawn up in accordance with the Prospectus Directive

INTERESTS OF NATURAL AND LEGAL PERSONS INVOLVED IN THE ISSUE

Save for any fees payable to the Dealers so far as the Issuer is aware no person involved in the issue of the

Notes has an interest material to the offer

REASONS FOR THE OFFER ESTIMATED NET PROCEEDS AND TOTAL EXPENSES

Reasons for the offer other than general

corporate purposes See Use of Proceeds wording in Offering Circular

Estimated net proceeds Not Applicable

Estimated total expenses Not Applicable

YIELD Fixed Rate Notes only

Indication of yield Not Applicable

HISTORIC INTEREST RATES Floating Rate Notes only

Not Applicable

PERFORMANCE OF INDEX/INDICES EXPLANATION OF EFFECT ON VALUE OF INVESTMENT AND

ASSOCIATED RISKS AND OTHER INFORMATION CONCERNING THE INDEX/INDICES Index Linked Notes

only

Under these Notes the Noteholders will not receive any coupons during the term of the Notes At maturity the

Noteholders are entitled to receive at least 70% of the Specified Denomination the Minimum Redemption

Amount .The return under these Notes is totally linked to the performance of the Underlyings the higher the

performance the higher the return The return of these Notes is linked to the performances of the Underlyings

as calculated on pre-determined Valuation Dates and regardless of the level of such Underlyings between

10



these dates As result the Reference Level of the Underlyings on these dates will affect the value of the Notes

more than any other single factor

PERFORMANCE OF RATES OF EXCHANGE/FORMULA/CURRENCIES EXPLANATION OF EFFECT ON

VALUE OF INVESTMENT AND ASSOCIATED RISKS AND OTHER INFORMATION CONCERNING THE

RATES OF EXCHANGE/FORMULA/CURRENCIES Currency Linked Notes only

Not Applicable

10 PERFORMANCE OF THE COMMODITY/COMMODITIES EXPLANATION OF EFFECT ON VALUE OF

INVESTMENT AND ASSOCIATED RISKS AND OTHER INFORMATION CONCERNING THE

COMMODITY/COMMODITIES Commodity Linked Notes only

Not Applicable

it PERFORMANCE OF RATES OF EXCHANGE AND EXPLANATION OF EFFECT ON VALUE OF

INVESTMENT AND OTHER INFORMATION CONCERNING THE UNDERLYING Dual Currency Notes only

Not Applicable

12 PERFORMANCE OF EQUITY/EQUITIES/REFERENCE FUND/FUNDS EXPLANATION OF EFFECT ON

VALUE OF INVESTMENT AND ASSOCIATED RISKS AND OTHER INFORMATION CONCERNING THE

EQUITY/EQUITIES/REFERENCE FUND/FUNDS Equity Linked Notes and Fund Linked Notes only

Not Applicable

13 INFORMATION IN RELATION TO THE REFERENCE ENTITY EXPLANATION OF EFFECT ON VALUE OF

INVESTMENT AND ASSOCIATED RISKS AND OTHER INFORMATION CONCERNING THE REFERENCE

ENTITY Credit Linked Notes only

Not Applicable

14 OPERATIONAL INFORMATION

SIN XS0497560465

Common Code 49756046

The Depository Trust Company Not Applicable

Any clearing systems other than DTC
Euroclear Bank S.A./N.V and Clearstream

Banking soclØtØ anonyme and the relevant

identification numbers
Not Applicable

Delivery Delivery against payment

Names and addresses of additional

Paying/Delivery Agents if any Not Applicable

ii



Names and addresses of Calculation

Agents if different from CoOperatieve

Centrale Raiffeisen-Boerenleenbank BA
trading as Rabobank International

SociØtØ GØnØrale

17 cours Valmy

92987 Paris La Defense Cedex

France

Disclaimer

The SGI ivory 7% is the exclusive property of SG SQ has contracted with SP to maintain and calculate the

index SP shall have no liability for errors or omissions in calculating the index The annual fee and the

performance fee as mentioned in the Index Rules shall benefit to any party replicating the Index including

SociØtØ QØnØrale and any of its affiliates

12



Final Terms

COOPERATIEVE CENTRALE RAIFFEISEN-BOERENLEENBANK B.A

RABOBANK NEDERLAND

cooperatie formed under the laws of the Netherlands with its statutory seat in Amsterdam

COOPERATIEVE CENTRALE RAIFFEISEN-BOERENLEENBANK B.A

RABOBANKNEDERLAND AUSTRAUA BRANCH

Australian Business Number 70 003 917 655

coperatie formed under the laws of the Netherlands with its statutory seat in Amsterdam

COOPERATIEVE CENTRALE RAIFFEISENBOERENLEENBANK BA
RABOBANK NEDERLAND SINGAPORE BRANCH

Singapore Company Registration Number F03634W

coOperatie formed under the laws of the Netherlands with its statutory seat in Amsterdam

Euro 110000000000

Global Medium-Term Note Programme

Due from seven days to perpetuity

SERIES NO 2118A

TRANCHE NO

TRY 50000000 9.50 per cent Fixed Rate Notes 2010 due 22 January 2014 the Notes

to be consolidated and form single series with the TRY 50000000 9.50 per cent Fixed

Rate Notes 2009 and the TRY 25000000 9.50 per cent Fixed Rate Notes 2009 due 22

January 2014 issued on 22 October 2009 the TRY 50000000 9.50 per cent Fixed Rate

Notes 2009 due 22 January 2014 issued on 16 November 2009 the TRY 50000000 9.50 per

cent Fixed Rate Notes 2009 due 22 January 2014 issued on 16 December 2009 the TRY

50000000 9.50 per cent Fixed Rate Notes 2010 due 22 January 2014 issued on 22 January

2010 the TRY 50000000 9.50 per cent Fixed Rate Notes 2010 due 22 January 2014 issued

on 11 February 2010 the TRY 75000000 9.50 per cent Fixed Rate Notes 2010 due 22

January 2014 issued on March 2010 and the TRY 50000000 9.50 per cent Fixed Rate

Notes 2010 due 22 January 2014 issued on 24 March 2010 together the Existing Notes

Issue Price of the Notes 99.076 per cent plus 82 days accrued interest from and including 22

January 2010 to but excluding the Issue Date

RBC Capital Markets

The date of these Final Terms is 12Apr11 2010



PART CONTRACTUAL TERMS

Terms used herein shall be deemed to be defined as such for the purposes of the Conditions set

forth in the Offering Circular the Offering Circular dated May 2009 and the supplemental

Offering Circulars dated 23 October 2009 and December 2009 both relating to recent

development which constitute base prospectus for the purposes of the Prospectus Directive

Directive 20031711EC the Prospectus Directive This document constitutes the Final Terms of

the Notes described herein for the purposes of Article 5.4 of the Prospectus Directive and must be

read in conjunction with the Offering Circular as so supplemented Full information on the Issuer

and the offer of the Notes is only available on the basis of the combination of these Final Terms

and the Offering Circular The Notes will be issued on the terms of these Final Terms read together

with the Offering Circular Each Issuer accepts responsibility for the information contained in these

Final Terms which when read together with the Offering Circular contains all information that is

material in the context of the issue of the Notes The Offering Circular is available for viewing at

and copies may be obtained from Rabobank Nederland at Croeselaan 18 3521 CB Utrecht the

Netherands and the principal office in England of the Arranger and of the Paying Agent in

Luxembourg Amsterdam and Paris and www.bourse.Iu

Each potential investor in the Notes must determine the suitability of that investment in

light of its own circumstances potential investor should not invest in Notes which are

complex financial instruments unless it has the expertise either alone or with financial

adviser to evaluate how the Notes will perform under changing conditions the resulting

effects on the value of the notes and the impact this investment will have on the potential

investors overall investment portfolio

Issuer CoOperatieve Centrale Raiffeisen-Boerenleenbank B.A

Rabobank Nederland

Series Number 2118A

ii Tranche Number

Specified Currency or New Turkish Lira TRY
Currencies

Aggregate Nominal Amount

Series TRY 450000000

ii Tranche TRY 50000000

On the Issue Date the Notes will be consolidated and

form single series with the Existing Notes

Issue Price 99.076 per cent of the Aggregate Nominal Amount

plus 82 days accrued interest from and including 22

January 2010 to but excluding the Issue Date

Specified

Denominations TRY 1000

ii Calculation Amount TRY 1000

Issue Date 14 April 2010

A11562384/OA/06 Nov 2009



ii Interest 22 January 2010

Commencement

Date

if different from the

Issue Date

Maturity Date 22 January 2014

Domestic Note if Domestic No

Note there will be no gross-

up for withholding tax

10 Interest Basis 9.50 per cent Fixed Rate

11 Redemption/Payment Basis Redemption at par

12 Change of Interest or Not Applicable

Redemption/ Payment Basis

13 Put/Call Options Not Applicable

14 Status of the Notes Senior

ii Date approval for Not Applicable

issuance of Notes

obtained

15 Method of dLstribution Non-Syndicated

PROVISIONS RELATING TO INTEREST IF ANY PAYABLE

16 Fixed Rate Note Provisions Applicable

Rate of Interest 9-50 per cent per annum payable annually in

arrear

ii Interest Payment Dates 22 January in each year commencing

22 January 2011 and ending on the Maturity

Date

iii Fixed Coupon Amount TRY 95 per Calculation Amount

iv Broken Amount Not Applicable

Day Count Fraction Condition Actual/Actual ICMA unadjusted

1a
vi Determination Dates Not Applicable

Condition 1a
vii Other terms relating to the Not Applicable

method of calculating interest

for Fixed Rate Notes

17 Floating Rate Note Provisions Not Applicable

18 Zero Coupon Note Provisions Not Applicable

19 Index Linked Interest Note Not Applicable

Provisions

All 362384/0.4106 Nov 2009



20 Equity Linked Interest Note Not Applicable

Provisions

21 Dual Currency Note Provisions Not Applicable

PROVISIONS RELATING TO REDEMPTION

22 Call Option Not Applicable

23 Put Option Not Applicable

24 Final Redemption Amount all TRY 1000 per Calculation Amount

Notes except Equity Linked

Redemption Notes and Index

Linked Redemption Notes of

each Note

25 Final Redemption Amount Equity Not Applicable

Linked Redemption Notes of

each Note

26 Final Redemption Amount Index Not Applicable

Linked Redemption Notes of

each Note

27 Early Redemption Amount

Early Redemption As set out in the Conditions

Amounts payable per

Calculation Amount and/or

the method of calculating

the same if required or if

different from that set out in

the Conditions on

redemption on the

occurrence of an event of

default Condition 13 or

for illegality Condition 7j
or for taxation reasons

Condition 7c or in the

case of Equity Linked

Redemption Notes

following certain corporate

events in accordance with

Condition 7g or in the

case of Index Linked

Redemption Notes

following an Index

Modification Index

Cancellation or Index

Disruption Event Condition

7h or in the case of

Equity Linked Redemption

Notes or Index Linked

A11362384/D.4/O6 Nov 2009



Redemption Notes

following an Additional

Disruption Event if

applicable Condition 7i

ii Redemption for taxation Yes

reasons permitted on days

other than Interest Payment

Dates Condition 7c
iii Unniatured Coupons to No

become void upon early

redemption Bearer Notes

only Condition 101

GENERAL PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO THE NOTES

28 Form of Notes Bearer Notes

Temporary Global Note exchangeable for permanent

Global Note not less than 40 days after the Issue Date

which is exchangeable for Definitive Notes in the

limited circumstances specified in the permanent

Global Note

New Global Notes No

29 Financial Centres Istanbul and London

Condition 10h or other

special provisions relating to

payment dates

30 Talons for future Coupons or No

Receipts to be attached to

Definitive Notes and dates

on which such Talons

mature

31 Details relating to Partly Paid Not Applicable

Notes amount of each

payment comprising the

Issue Price and date on

which each payment is to be

made and consequences if

any of failure to pay

including any right of the

Issuer to forfeit the Notes and

interest due on late payment

32 Details relating to Instalment Not Applicable

Notes Amount of each

instalment date on which

each payment is to be made
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33 Redenomination Not Applicable

renominalisation and

reconventioning provisions

34 Consolidation provisions Not Applicable

35 Other terms or special So long as Bearer Notes are represented by

conditions temporary and/or permanent Global Note and the

temporary and/or permanent Global Note is held on

behalf of Euroclear Clearstream Luxembourg or any

other clearing system notwithstanding Condition 17

notices to Noteholders may be given by delivery of the

relevant notice to that clearing system for

communication by it to entitled accountholders Any

notice thus delivered to that clearing system shall be

deemed to have been given to the Noteholders on the

day on which that notice is delivered to the clearing

system

DISTRIBUTION

36 If syndicated names Not Applicable

and addresses of

Managers

ii Stabilising
Not Applicable

Managers if any

iii Dealers Commission 1.400 percent selling commission

0.225 per cent management and underwriting

commission

37 If non-syndicated name and Royal Bank of Canada Europe Limited

dd as of Dealer
71 Queen Victoria Street

re
London EC4V 4DE
United Kingdom

38 Applicable TEFRA Rules

exemption

39 Additional selling restrictions Turkey

Each Manager has acknowledged that the Notes have

not been and will not be registered with the Turkish

Capital Markets Board CMB under the provisions of

Law no 2499 of the Republic of Turkey relating to

capital markets the Capital Markets Law The

Managers have represented and agreed that no

disclosure document nor any other offering material

related to the offering will be utilised in connection with

any general offering to the public within the Republic of

Turkey for the purpose of the sale of the Notes or

beneficial interests therein without the prior approval

of the CMB

In addition the Managers have represented and

agreed that they have not sold or caused to be sold

A1136238410AI06 Nov 2009



40 Subscription period

GENERAL

41 Additional steps that may

only be taken following

approval by an Extraordinary

Resolution in accordance

with Condition 14a

42 The aggregate principal

amount of Notes issued has

been translated into Euro at

the rate of 05 producing

sum of for Notes not

denominated in Euro

43 In the case of Notes listed on

Euronext Amsterdam

and will not sell or cause to be sold outside Turkey the

Notes or beneficial interests therein to residents of

Turkey unless such sale is authorised pursuant to

Article 5dii of Decree 32 as amended from time to

time and the CMB regulations

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Euro 25000000

Not Applicable

LISTING AND ADMISSION TO TRADING APPLICATION

These Final Terms comprise the final terms required to list and have admitted to trading the issue

of Notes described herein pursuant to the Euro 110000000000 Global Medium Term Note

Programme of Rabobank Nederland

RESPONSIBILITY

contained in these Final Terms

All 362384104/06 Nov 2009

The Issuer accepts

Signed on

By

Duly



PART OTHER INFORMATION

Listing

Listing Luxembourg Stock Exchange

ii Admission to Trading Application has been made fcr the Notes to be admitted to

trading on the Luxembourg Stock Exchanges Regulated

Market with effect from the Issue Date

The Notes are to be consolidated and form single series

with the Existing Notes on the Issue Date

iii Estimate of total expenses EUR 600

related to admission to

trading

Ratings

Rating
The Notes to be issued have been rated

SP AAA

Moodys Ma

Fitch Ratings Ltd

As defined by Standard Poors an AAA rating means that

the Notes have the highest rating assigned by Standard

Poors and that the Issuers capacity to meet its financial

commitment on the obligation is extremely strong As defined

by Moodys an Aaa rating means that the Notes are judged to

be of the highest quality with minimal credit risk As defined

by Fitch an AM rating means that the Notes are judged to be

of very high.credit quality and denote expectations of low

credit risk lt indicates very strong capacity for payment of

financial commitments and is not significantly vulnerable to

foreseeable events

Notification

The Netherlands Authority for the Financial Markets Autoriteit Financiele Markten has provided each of

the Financial Market Authority FMA in Austria Commission bancaire financiŁre et des assurances

CBFA in Belgium Finanstllsynet in Denmark Finanssivalvonta Fiva in Finland AutontØ des marches

financiers AMF in France Bundesanstalt für Finanzdienstleistungsaufsicht BaFin in Germany Epitroph

Kefala/agoras in Greece Irish Financial Services Regulatory Authority in Ireland Commissione Nazionale

per le SocietÆ Ia Borsa CONSOB in Italy Commission de surveillance du secteur financier CSSF in

Luxembourg kredittllsynet in Norway Comissao do Mercado de Va/ores Mobiiarios CMVM in Portugal

Romanian National Securities Commission Comisia Nationa/ª Va/on/or Mob/hare in Romania

ComisiOn Nacional del Mercado de Va/ores CNMV in Spain Finansinspektionen in Sweden and

Financial Services Authority FSA in the United Kingdom with certificate of approval attesting that the

Offering Circular has been drawn up in accordance with the Prospectus Directive
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Notwithstanding the foregoing no offer of Notes to the public may be made in any Relevant Member

State which requires the Issuer to undertake any action in addition to the filing of the Final Terms with the

Netherlands Authority for the Financial Markets unless and until the Issuer advises such action has been

taken

Interests of natural and legal persons involved in the issue

Save as disclosed in the Offering Circular so far as the Issuer is aware no person involved in the offer of

the Notes has an interest material to the offer

Reasons for the offer estimated net proceeds and total expenses

Reasons for the offer Banking business

ii Estimated net proceeds TRY 4979262329

iii Estimated total expenses TRY 812500.00 being the combined management and

underwriting commission and selling concession

Yield Fixed Rate Notes Only

Indication of yield The yield of the Notes is 9779 per ceni per annum

The yield is calculated at the Issue Date on the basis of the

Issue Price It is NOT an indication of future yield

Historic interest rates Floating Rate Notes only

Not Applicable

Performance of index/formula explanation of effect on value of

investment and associated risks and other information concerning the

underlying Index-Linked Notes only

Not Applicable

Performance of rateEsi of exchange and explanation of effect on value of investment Dual

Currency Notes only

Not Applicable

10 Performance of underlying explanation of effect on value of investment and associated

risks and information concerning the underlying Equity-Linked Notes only

Not Applicable

11 Operational information

Intended to be held in manner which

would allow Eurosystem eligibility No

ii lSlN Code XS0458474383

iii Common Code 045847438

iv German WKN-code Not Applicable

Private Placement number Not Applicable

vi Any clearing systems other than Not Applicable

Euroclear and Clearstream Luxembourg

and the relevant numbers
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vii Delivery Delivery against payment

viii Names and addresses of additional NotApplicable

Paying Delivery Agents if any

ix Names and addresses of Calculation Not Applicable

Agents if different from Deutsche Bank

AG London Branch

12 General

Not Applicable
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Final Terms

COOPERATJEVE CENTRALE RAIFFEISEN-BOERENLEENBANK B.A

RABOBANK NEDERLAND

cooperatie formed under the laws of the Netherlands with its statutory seat in Amsterdam

COOPERATIEVE CENTRALE RAIFFEISEN-BOERENLEENBANK B.A

RABOBANK NEDERLAND AUSTRALIA BRANCH

Australian Business Number 70 003 917 655

cooperatie formed under the laws of the Netherlands with its statutory seat in Amsterdam

COOPERATIEVE CENTRALE RAIFFEISEN-BOERENLEENBANK B.A

RABOBANK NEDERLAND SINGAPORE BRANCH

Singapore Company Registration Number F03634W

coOperatie formed under the laws of the Netherlands with its statutory seat in Amsterdam

Euro 110000000000

Global Medium-Term Note Programme

Due from seven days to perpetuity

SERIES NO 2193A

TRANCHE NO

TRY 50000000 1000 per cent Fixed Rate Notes 2010 due 25 July 2013 the Notes

to be consolidated and form single series with the TRY 50000000 1000 per cent Fixed

Rate Notes 2010 due 25 July 2013 issued on March 2010

Issue Price 101.355 per cent plus 39 days accrued interest from and including March 2010 to

but excluding 16 April 2010

TD Securities

The date of these Final Terms is 14 April2010



PART CONTRACTUAL TERMS

Terms used herein shall be deemed to be defined as such for the purposes of the Conditions set

forth in the Offering Circular dated May 2009 and the supplemental Offering Circulars dated 23

October 2009 and December 2009 both relating to recent development together the Offering

Circular which together constitute base prospectus for the purposes of the Prospectus

Directive Directive 2003/71/EC the Prospectus Directive This document constitutes the Final

Terms of the Notes described herein for the purposes of Article 5.4 of the Prospectus Directive and

must be read in conjunction with the Offering Circular as so supplemented Full information on the

Issuer and the offer of the Notes is only available on the basis of the combination of these Final

Terms and the Offering Circular The Notes will be issued on the terms of these Final Terms read

together with the Offering Circular Each Issuer accepts responsibility for the information contained

in these Final Terms which when read together with the Offering Circular contains all information

that is material in the context of the issue of the Notes The Offering Circular is available for

viewing at and copies may be obtained from Rabobank Nederland at Croeselaan 18 3521 CB

Utrecht the Netherlands and the principal office in England of the Arranger and of the Paying

Agent in Luxembourg Amsterdam and Paris and wwwbcurse.lu

Each potential investor in the Notes must determine the suitability of that investment in

light of its own circumstances potential investor should not invest in Notes which are

complex financial instruments unless it has the expertise either alone or with financial

adviser to evaluate how the Notes will perform under changing conditions the resulting

effects on the value of the notes and the impact this investment will have on the potential

investors overall investment portfolio

Issuer Cooperatieve Centrale Raiffeisen-Boerenleenbank

B.A Rabobank Nederland

Series Number 2193A

ii Tranche Number

Specified Currency or Currencies Turkish Lira TRY

Aggregate Nominal Amount

Series TRY 100000000

ii Tranche TRY 50000000

If fungible with an existing to be consolidated and form single series with the

Series details of that TRY 50000000 10.00 per cent Fixed Rate Notes

Series including the date 2010 due 25 July 2013 issued on March 2010

on which the Notes

become fungible

Issue Price 101.355 per cent of the Aggregate Nominal Amount

plus 39 days accrued interest from and including

March 2010 to but excluding 16 April 2010

Specified Denominations TRY 1000

ii Calculation Amount TRY 1000

Issue Date 16 April2010
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March 2010ii Interest Commencement

Date

if different from the Issue

Date

Maturity Date

Domestic Note

10 Interest Basis

Day Count Fraction

Condition 1a
vi Determination Dates

Condition 1a
vii Other terms relating to

the method of calculating

interest for Fixed Rate

Notes

17 Floating Rate Note Provisions

18 Zero Coupon Note Provisions

19 Index Linked Interest Note

Provisions

20 Equity Linked Interest Note

No

25 July 2013

1000 per cent Fixed Rate

further particulars specified below

Redemption at par

Not Applicable

11 Redemption/Payment Basis

12 Change of Interest or Redemption

Payment Basis

13 PutiCall Options Not Applicable

14 Status of the Notes Senior

ii Date approval for issuance Not Applicable

of Notes obtained

15 Method of distribution Non-syndicated

PROVISiONS RELATING TO INTEREST IF ANY PAYABLE

16 Fixed Rate Note Provisions Applicable

Rate of Interest 1000 per Cent per annum payable annually in arrear

ii Interest Payment 25 July in each year commencing on 25 July 2011 up to

Dates and including the Maturity Date

iii Fixed Coupon Amount TRY 100.00 per Calculation Amount

iv Broken Amount TRY 138.08 per Calculation Amount in respect of the

period from and including March 2010 to but

excluding 25 July 2011 Long First Coupon

Actual/Actual ICMA unadjusted

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable
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Provisions

21 Dual Currency Note Not Applicable

Provisions

PROVISIONS RELATING TO REDEMPTION

22 Call Option Not Applicable

23 Put Option Not AppI icable

24 Final Redemption Amount TRY 1000 per Calculation Amount

all Notes except Equity

Linked Redemption Notes

and Index Linked

Redemption Notes of each

Note

25 Final Redemption Amount Not Applicable

Equity Linked Redemption

Notes of each Note

26 Final Redemption Amount Not Applicable

Index Linked Redemption

Notes of each Note

27 Early Redemption Amount

Early Redemption As set out in the Conditions

Amounts payable per

Calculation Amount

and/or the method of

calculating the same if

required or if different

from that set out in the

Conditions on

redemption on the

occurrence of an event

of default Condition

13 or for illegality

Condition 7j or

for taxation reasons

Condition 7c or ci

in the case of Equity

Linked Redemption

Notes following certain

corporate events in

accordance with

Condition 7g or in

the case of Index

Linked Redemption

Notes following an

Index Modification

Index Cancellation or
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Index Disruption Event

Condition 7h or in

the case of Equity

Linked Redemption

Notes or Index Linked

Redemption Notes

following an Additional

Disruption Event if

applicable Condition

7i

ii Redemption for Yes

taxation reasons

permitted on days other

than Interest Payment

Dates Condition 7c
iii llnmatured Coupons to No

become void upon

early redemption

Bearer Notes only

Condition 0f

GENERAL PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO THE NOTES

25 Form of Notes Bearer Notes

Temporary Global Note exchangeable for permanent

Global Note which is exchangeable for Definitive Notes

in the limited circumstances specified in the permanent

Global Note

29 Financial Centres Condition London Istanbul TARGET

10h or other special

provisions relating to payment

dates

30 Talons for future Coupons or No

Receipts to be attached to

Definitive Notes and dates on

which such Talons mature

31 Details relating to Partly Paid Not Applicable

Notes amount of each

payment comprising the Issue

Price and date on which each

payment is to be made and

consequences if any of failure

to pay including any right of the

Issuer to forfeit the Notes and

interest due on late payment
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32 Details relating to Instalment Not Applicable

Notes Amount of each

instalment date on which each

payment is to be made

33 Redenomination Not Applicable

renominalisation and

reconventioning provisions

34 Consolidation provisions Not Applicable

36 Other terms or special So long as Bearer Notes are represented by

conditions temporary and/or permanent Global Note and the

temporary and/or permanent Global Note is held on

behalf of Euroclea Clearstream Luxembourg or any

other clearing system notwithstanding Condition 17

notices to Noteholders may be given by delivery of the

relevant notice to that clearing system for

communication by it to entitled accountholders Any

notice thus delivered to that clearing system shall be

deemed to have been given to the Noteholders on the

day on which that notice is delivered to the clearing

system

DISTRIBUTION

36 If syndicated names Not Applicable

and addresses of

Managers

ii Stabilising Managers The Toronto-Dominion Bank

if any

iii Managers A00 per cent selling commission and 0.225 per cent

Commission combined management and underwriting commission

37 If non-syndicated name and The Toronto-Dominion Bank

address of Dealer Triton Court

14/18 Finsbury Square

London EC2A 1DB

United Kingdom

38 Applicable TEFRA exemption Rules
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39 Additional selling restrictions Turkey

40 Subscription period

GENERAL

41 Additional steps that may only

be taken following approval by

an Extraordinary Resolution in

accordance with Condition

14a

42 The aggregate principal

amount of Notes issued has

been translated into Euro at the

rate of 0.497817 producing

sum of for Notes not

denominated in Euro

43 In the case of Notes listed on

Euronext Amsterdam

The Dealer has acknowledged that the Notes have not

been and will not be registered with the Turkish

Capital Markets Board CM under the provisions of

Law no 2499 of the Republic of Turkey relating to

capital markets The Dealer has represented and

agreed that neither the Prospectus nor any other

offering material related to the offering will be utilised in

connection with any general offering to the public

within the Republic of Turkey for the purpose of the

sale of the Notes or beneficial interests therein

without the prior approval of the CMB

In addition the Dealer has represented and agreed

that it has not sold or caused to be sold and will not

sell or cause to be sold outside Turkey the Notes or

beneficial interests therein to residents of Turkey

unless such sale is authorised pursuant to Article

5dii of Decree 32 as amended from time to time

and the CMB regulations

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Euro 24890850

Not Applicable

LISTING AND ADMISSION TO TRADING APPLICATION

These Final Terms comprise the final terms required to list and have admitted to trading the issue

of Notes described herein pursuant to the Euro 110000000000 Global Medium Term Note

Programme of Rabobank Nederland

Signed on behalf of the Issuer

By

Duly authorised

All



PART OTHER INFORMATION

Listing

Listing Luxembourg Stock Exchange

ii Admission to Trading Application has been made for the Notes to be admitted to

trading on the Luxembourg Stock Exchanges Regulated

Market with effect from 16 April 2010

The Notes are to be consolidated and form single series

with the TRY 50000000 10.00 per cent Fixed Rate Notes

2010 due 25 July 2013 issued on March 2010 which is

listed and admitted to trading on the Luxembourg Stock

Exchange

iii Estimate of total expenses EUR 400

related to admission to

trading

Ratings

Rating
The Notes to be issued have been rated

SP AAA

Moodys Aaa

Fitch Ratings Ltd

As defined by Standard Poors an AAA rating means that

the Notes have the highest rating assigned by Standard

Poors and that the Issuers capacity to meet its financial

commitment on the obligation is extremely strong As defined

by Moodys an Aaa rating means that the Notes are judged to

be of the highest quality with minimal credit risk As defined

by Fitch an AAi- rating means that the Notes are judged to be

of very high credit quality and denote expectations of low

credit risk It indicates very strong capacity for payment of

financial commitments and is not significantly vulnerable to

foreseeable events

Notification
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The Netherlands Authority for the Financial Markets Autoriteit Financiele Markten has provided each of

the Commission bancaire financiers et des assurances CBFA in Belgium Epitroph Kefalaiagoms in

Greece ComisiOn Nacional del Mercado de Va/ores CNMV in Spain AutoritO des marches financiers

AMF in France Irish Financial Regulatory Authority in Ireland Commissione Nazionale perle Societe

Ia Borsa CONSOB in Italy Kredittilsynet in Norway Finanzmarktaufsicht FMA in Austria

Rahoitustarkastus in Finland Finansinspektionen in Sweden Financial Services Authority FSA in United

Kingdom Commission de surveillance du secteur financier in Luxembourg the Bundesanstalt für

Finanzdienstleistungsaufsicht BaFin in Germany the Comisia NationalØ Valorilor Mobiliare in

Romania Finanstilsynet in Denmark and çomissao do Mercado de va/ores Mobi/iarios in Portugal with

certificate of approval attesting that the Offering Circular has been drawn up in accordance with the

Prospectus Directive

Notwithstanding the foregoing no offer of Notes to the public may be made in any Relevant Member

State which requires the Issuer to undertake any action in addition to the filing of the Final Terms with the

Netherlands Authority for the Financial Markets unless and until the Issuer advises such action has been

taken

Interests of natural and legal persons involved in the issue

Save as disclosed in the Offering Circular so far as the Issuer is aware no person involved in the offer of

the Notes has an interest material to the offer

Reasons for the offer estimated net proceeds and total expenses

Reasons for the offer Banking Business

ii Estimated net proceeds TRY 50369246.58 including 39 days accrued interest

iii Estimated totaL expenses TRY 842500 comprising combined management selling

and underwriting commission of TRY 812500 and Dealers

expenses of TRY 30000

Yield

Indication of yield 9.405 per cent per annum

The yield is calculated at the Issue Date on the basis of the

issue Price It is NOT an indication of future yield

Historic interest rates Floating Rate Notes only

Not Applicable

Performance of index/formula explanation of effect on value of investment and associated

risks and other information concerning the underlying Index-Linked Notes only

Not Applicable

Performance of rate of exchange and explanation of effect on value of investment Dual

Currency Notes only

Not Applicable
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10 Performance of underlying explanation of effect on value of investment and associated

risks and information concerning the underlying Equity-Linked Notes only

Not Applicable

11 Operational information

Intended to be held in manner which No

would allow Eurosystem eligibility

ii lSlN Code XS0491763842

iii Common Code 049176384

iv German WKN-code A1AT7A

Valoren Code CH11073239

vi Private Placement number Not Applicable

vii Any clearing systems other than Not Applicable

Euroclear and Clearstream Luxembourg

and the relevant numbers

viii Delivery Delivery against payment

ix Names and addresses of additional NotApplicable

Paying Delivery Agents if any

Names and addresses of Calculation Not Applicable

Agents if different from Deutsche Bank

AG London Branch

12 General

Time period during which the offer is
Not Applicable

open

ii Description of the application process Not Applicable

iii Description of possibility to reduce Not Applicable

subscriptions

iv Manner for refunding excess amount Not Applicable

paid by applicants

Minimum andor maximum amount of Not Applicable

application

vi Method and time limit for paying up the Not Applicable

securities and for delivery of the

securities

vii Manner and date in which results of the Not Applicable

offer are to be made public

viii Procedure for exercise of any right of Not Applicable

pre-emption the negotiability of

subscription rights and the treatment of

subscription rights not exercised
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ix Process for notification to applicants of Not Applicable

the amount allotted and the indication

whether dealing may begin before

notification is made

Al 1765775
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Final Terms

COOPERATIEVE CENTRALE RAIFFEISEN-BOERENLEENBANK BA
RABOBANK NEDERLAND

cooperatie formed under the laws of the Netherlands with its statutory seat in Amsterdam

COOPERATIEVE CENTRALE RAIFFEISEN-BOERENLEENBANK B.A

RABOBANK NEDERLAND AUSTRALIA BRANCH

Australian Business Number 70 003 917 655

coOperatie formed under the laws of the Netherlands with its statutory seat in Amsterdam

COOPERATIEVE CENTRALE RAIFFEISEN-BOERENLEENBANK B.A

RABOBANK NEDERLAND SINGAPORE BRANCH

Singapore Company Registration Number F03634W

cooperatie formed under the laws of the Netherlands with its statutory seat in Amsterdam

Euro 110000000000

Global Medium-Term Note Programme

Due from seven days to perpetuity

SERIES NO 2192A

TRANCHE NO

ZAR 200000000 8.750 per cent Fixed Rate Notes 2010 due 11 March 2014 the Notes

to be consolidated and form single series with the ZAR 300000000 8.750 per cent Fixed

Rate Notes 2010 due 11 March 2014 issued on 11 March 2010 the Existing Notes

Issue Price 102.3750 per cent plus 36 days accrued interest from and including 11 March 2010

to but excluding the Issue Date

RBC Capital Markets

The date of these Final Terms is 14 April2010



PART CONTRACTUAL TERMS

Tern-is used herein shall be deemed to be defined as such for the purposes of the Conditions set

forth in the Offering Circular dated May 2009 the supplemental Offering Circular dated October

23 2009 and December 2009 both relating to recent development the Offering Circular

which together constitute base prospectus for the purposes of the Prospectus Directive

Directive 2003171/EC the Prospectus Directive This document constitutes the Final Terms

of the Notes described herein for the purposes of Article 5.4 of the Prospectus Directive and must

be read in conjunction with the Offering Circular as so supplemented Full information on the

Issuer and the offer of the Notes is only available on the basis of the combination of these Final

Terms and the Offering Circular The Notes will be issued on the terms of these Final Terms read

together with the Offering Circular The Issuer accepts responsibility for the information contained

in these Final Terms which when read together with the Offering Circular contains all information

that is material in the context of the issue of the Notes The Offering Circular is available for

viewing at and copies may be obtained from Rabobank Nederland at Croeselaan 18 3521 CB

Utrecht the Netherlands and the principal office in England of the Arranger and of the Paying

Agent in Luxembourg Amsterdam and Paris and www.bourse.lu

Each potential investor in the Notes must determine the suitability of that investment in

light of its own circumstances potential investor should not invest in Notes which are

complex financial instruments unless it has the expertise either alone or with financial

adviser to evaluate how the Notes will perform under changing conditions the resulting

effects on the value of the notes and the impact this investment will have on the potential

investors overall investment portfolio

Issuer Coöperatieve Centrale Raiffeisen-Boerenleenbank B.A

Rabobank Nederland

Series Number 2192A

ii Tranche Number

Specified Currency or South African Rand ZAR
Currencies

Aggregate Nominal Amount

Series ZAR 500000000

ii Tranche ZAR 200000000

On the Issue Date the Notes will be consolidated and

form single series with the Existing Notes

Issue Price 102.3750 per cent of the Aggregate Nominal Amount

plus 36 days accrued interest from and including 11

March 2010 to but excluding the Issue Date

Specified ZAR 5000

Denominations

ii Calculation Amount ZAR 5000

Issue Date 16 April 2010



ii Interest 11 March 2010

Commencement Date

if different from the

Issue Date

Maturity Date 11 March 2014

Domestic Note if Domestic No

Note there will be no gross-up

for withholding tax

10 Interest Basis 8.750 per cent Fixed Rate

Further particulars specified below

11 Redemption/Payment Basis Redemption at par

12 Change of Interest or Not applicable

Redemption/ Payment Basis

13 Put/Call Options Not Applicable

14 Status of the Notes Senior

ii Date approval for Not Applicable

issuance of Notes

obtained

15 Method of distribution Non-Syndicated

PROVISIONS RELATING TO INTEREST IF ANY PAYABLE

16 Fixed Rate Note Provisions Applicable

Rate of Interest 8.750 per cent per annum payable annually in arrear

ii Interest Payment 11 March in each year commencing on 11 March 2011

Dates and ending on the Maturity Date

iii Fixed Coupon ZAR 437.50 per Calculation Amount

Amounts

iv Broken Amount Not Applicable

Day Count Fraction Actual/Actual-CMA unadjusted

Condition 1a
vi Determination Dates Not Applicable

Condition

vii Other terms relating to Not Applicable

the method of

calculating interest for

Fixed Rate Notes

17 Floating Rate Note NotApplicable

Provisions

18 Zero Coupon Note Not Applicable

Provisions



19 Index Linked Interest Note Not Applicable

Provisions

20 Equity Linked Interest Note Not Applicable

Provisions

21 Dual Currency Note Not Applicable

Provisions

PROVISIONS RELATING TO REDEMPTION

22 Call Option Not Applicable

23 Put Option Not Applicable

24 Final Redemption Amount ZAR 5000 per Calculation Amount

all Notes except Equity

Linked Redemption Notes

and Index Linked

Redemption Notes of each

Note

25 Final Redemption Amount Not Applicable

Equity Linked Redemption

Notes of each Note

26 Final Redemption Amount Not Applicable

Index Linked Redemption

Notes of each Note

27 Early Redemption Amount

Early Redemption Amounts As set out in the Conditions

payable per Calculation

Amount and/or the method of

calculating the same if

required or if different from

that set out in the Conditions

on redemption on the

occurrence of an event of

default Condition 13 or

for illegality Condition 7j or

for taxation reasons

Condition 7c or in the

case of Equity Linked

Redemption Notes following

certain corporate events in

accordance with Condition

7g or in the case of Index

Linked Redemption Notes

following an Index

Modification Index

Cancellation or Index

Disruption Event Condition

7h or in the case of



Equity Linked Redemption

Notes or Index Linked

Redemption Notes following

an Add itional Disruption Event

if applicable Condition 70

ii Redemption for taxation Yes

reasons permitted on days

other than Interest Payment

Dates Condition 7c
iii Unmatured Coupons to No

become void upon early

redemption Bearer Notes

only Condition 10t

GENERAL PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO THE NOTES

28 Form of Notes Bearer Notes

Temporary Global Note for permanent Global Note

which is exchangeable for Definitive Notes in the limited

circumstances specified in the permanent Global Note

New Global Notes No

29 Financial Centres Condition London and Johannesburg

10h or other special

provisions relating to payment

dates

30 Talons for future Coupons or No

Receipts to be attached to

Definitive Notes and dates on

which such Talons mature

31 Details relating to Partly Paid Not Applicable

Notes amount of each

payment comprising the Issue

Price and date on which each

payment is to be made and

consequences if any of failure

to pay including any right of the

Issuer to forfeit the Notes and

interest due on late payment

32 Details relating to Instalment Not Applicable

Notes Amount of each

instalment date on which each

payment is to be made

33 Redenomination Not Applicable

renominalisation and

reconventioning provisions

34 Consolidation provisions Not Applicable



35 Other terms or special So long as Bearer Notes are represented by temporary

conditions and/or permanent Global Note and the temporary and/or

permanent Global Note is held on behalf of Euroclear

Clearstream Luxembourg or any other clearing system

notwithstanding Condition 17 notices to Noteholders may
be given by delivery of the relevant notice to that clearing

system for communication by it to entitled

accountholders Any notice thus delivered to that clearing

system shall be deemed to have been given to the

Noteholders on the day on which that notice is delivered

to the clearing system

DISTRIBUTION

36 If syndicated names NotApplicable

and addresses of

Managers

ii Stabilising Managers Not Applicable

if any

iii Managers 1.400 percent selling commission

Commission 0.225 per cent combined management and underwriting

commission

37 II non-syndicated name and Royal Bank of Canada Europe Limited

address of Dealer 71 Queen Victoria Street

London EC4V 4DE

United Kingdom

38 Applicable TEFRA exemption Rules

39 Additional selling restrictions Republic of South Africa

Each Manager will be required to represent and agree

that it has not and will not offer for sale or subscription or

sell any Notes directly or indirectly within the Republic of

South Africa or to any person corporate or other entity

resident in the Republic of South Africa except in

accordance with South African exchange control

regulations and in circumstances which would not

constitute an offer to the public within the meaning of the

South African Companies Act 1973 as amended

40 Subscription period Not Applicable

GENERAL

41 Additional steps that may only Not Applicable

be taken following approval by

an Extraordinary Resolution in

accordance with Condition

14a

42 The aggregate principal Euro 20410000

amount of Notes issued has



been translated into Euro at the

rate of 0.102059 producing

sum of for Notes not

denominated in Euro

43 In the case of Notes listed on Not Applicable

Euronext Amsterdam

LISTING AND ADMISSION TO TRADING APPLICATION

These Final Terms comprise the final terms required to list and have admitted to trading the issue

of Notes described herein pursuant to the Euro 110000000000 Global Medium Term Note

Programme of Rabobank Nederland

RESPONSIBILITY

The Issuer accepts responsibility for the information contained in these Final Terms

Signed on behalf of the Issuer

By

Duly



PART OTHER INFORMATION

Listing

Listing Luxembourg Stock Exchange

ii Admission to Trading Application has been made for the Notes to be admitted to

trading on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange with effect from

11 March2010

iii Estimate of total expenses EUR 400

related to admission to

trading

Ratings

Rating
The Notes to be issued have been rated

SP AAA

Moodys Aaa

Fitch Ratings Ltd AA

As defined by Moodys an Aaa rating means that the Notes

are judged to be of the highest quality with minimal credit

risk

As defined by SP an AAA rating means that the Notes has

the highest rating assigned by SP and that the Issuers

capacity to meet its financial commitment on the obligation is

extremely strong

As defined by Fitch rating means that the Notes are

judged to be of very high credit quality and denote

expectations of low credit risk It indicates very strong

capacity for payment of financial commitments and is not

significantly vulnerable to foreseeable events

Notification



The Netherlands Authority for the Financial Markets Autoriteit Financiele Markten has provided each of

the Commission bancaire financiOre et des assurances CBFA in Belgium Epitroph Kefalaiagoras in

Greece ComisiOn Nacionai del Mercado Va/ores CNMV in Spain AutoritO des marches financiers

AMF in France Irish Financial Regulatory Authority in Ireland Commissione Nazionale per le Società

ía Borsa CONSOB in Italy Kredittilsynet in Norway Finanzmarktaufsicht FMA in Austria

Rahoitustarkasf us in Finland Finansinspektionen in Sweden Financial Services Authority FSA in United

Kingdom Commission de surve i/lance dv secteur financier in Luxembourg the Bundesanstalt für

Finanzdienstleistungsaufsicht BaFin in Germany the Comisia Nationalâ Valor//or Mobil fare in

Rornania Finanstilsynet in Denmark and çomissao do Mercado de va/ores MobiliÆrios in Portugal with

certificate of approval attesting that the Offering Circular has been drawn up in accordance with the

Prospectus Directive

Notwithstanding the foregoing no offer of Notes to the public may be made in any Relevant Member

State which requires the Issuer to undertake any action in addition to the filing of the Final Terms with the

Netherlands Authority for the Financial Markets unless and until the Issuer advises such action has been

taken

Interests of natural and legal persons involved in the issue

Save as disclosed in the Offering Circular so far as the Issuer is aware no person involved in the offer of

the Notes has an interest material to the offer

Reasons for the offer estimated net proceeds and total expenses

Reasons for the offer Banking business

ii Estimated net proceeds ZAP 203226027.40

iii Estimated total expenses ZAP 3250000 selling concession and combined

management and underwriting commission

Yield Fixed Rate Notes Only

Indication of yield 8.506 percent per annum

The yield is calculated at the Issue Date on the basis of the

Issue Price It is NOT an indication of future yield

Historic interest rates Floating Rate Notes only

Not Applicable

Performance of index/formula explanation of effect on value of investment and associated

risks and other information concerning the underlying Index-Linked Notes only

Not Applicable

Performance of rate of exchange and explanation of effect on value of investment Dual

Currency Notes on/y

Not Applicable

10 Performance of underlying explanation of effect on value of investment and associated

risks and information concerning the underlying Equity-Linked Notes only

Not Applicable

11 Operational information

Intended to be held in manner which No



would allow Eurosystem eligibility

ii 181W Code X80491174347

iii Common Code 049117434

iv German WKN-code Not Applicable

Private Placement number Not Applicable

vi Any clearing systems other than Not Applicable

Euroclear and Clearstream Luxembourg

and the relevant numbers

vii Delivery Delivery against payment

viii Names and addresses of additional Not Applicable

Paying/ Delivery Agents if any

ix Names and addresses of Calculation Not Applicable

Agents if different from Deutsche Bank

AG London Branch

12 General

Time period during which the offer is 30 days from 12 March 2010 provided that the

open offer period

in Austria will not commence until the
filing

required by the competent authority of

Austria has been duly made and

ii in Germany will not commence until the Final

Terms have been published in accordance

with Article 14 of the Prospectus Directive

ii Description of the application process Not Applicable

iii Description of possibility to reduce Not Applicable

subscriptions

iv Manner for refunding excess amount Not Applicable

paid by applicants

Minimum and/or maximum amount of Investors will be notified of their allocations of

application Notes and the settlement arrangements in

respect thereof The Notes will be issued on the

Issue Date against payment to the Issuer of the

net subscription moneys

vi Method and time limit for paying up the Not Applicable

securities and for delivery of the

securities

vii Manner and date in which results of the Not Applicable

offer are to be made public

viii Procedure for exercise of any right of Not Applicable



pre-emption the negotiability of

subscription rights and the treatment Of

subscription rights not exercised

ix Process for notification to applicants of Not Applicable

the amount allotted and the indication

whether dealing may begin before

notification is made

10



Final Terms

COOPERATIEVE CENTRALE RAIFFEISENBOERENLEENBANK BA
RABOBANK NEDERLAND

coOperatie formed under the laws of the Netherlands with its statutory seat in Amsterdam

COOPERATIEVE CENTRALE RNFFEISEN-BOERENLEENBANK BA
RABOBANK NEDERLAND AUSTRAUA BRANCH

Australian Business Number 70003 917 655

coOperatie formed under the laws of the Netherlands with its statutory seat in Amsterdam

COOPERATI EVE CENTRALE RA1FFEISEN.BOEREP4LEENBAPIK BA
RABOBANK NEDERLAND SINGAPORE BRANCH

Singapore Company Registration Number F03634W

coOperatie formed under the laws of the Netherlands with Its statutory seat in Amsterdam

Euro II 0000000000

Global Medium-Term Note Programme

Due from seven days to parpetuity

SERIES NO 2207A

TRANCHE NO
Euro 2000000000 3.375 per cent Fixed Rate Notes 2010 due 21 April 2017

the Notes

Issue Price 99.559 per cent

BofA Merrill Lynch Credit Suisse J.P Morgan Rabobank

International

The date of these Final Terms is 19 April 2010



PART CONTRACTUAL TERMS

Terms used herein shalt be deemed to be defined as such for the purposes of the Conditions set

forth in the Offering Circular the Offering Circular dated May 2009 and the supplemental

Offering Circulars dated 23 October 2009 and December20091 which together constitute base

prospectus for the purposes of the Prospectus Directive Directive 2003/71/EC the Prospectus

Directive This document constitutes the Final Terms of the Notes described herein for the

purposes of Article 5.4 of the Prospectus Directive and must be read in conjunction with the

Offering Circular as so supplemented Full information on the Issuer and the offer of the Notes is

only available on the basis of the combination of these Final Terms and the Offering Circular The

Notes will be issued on the terms of these Final Terms read togetherwith the Offering Circular The

Issuer accepts responsibility for the information contained in these Final Terms which when read

together with the Offering Circular1 contains all information that is material in the context of the

issue of the Notes The Offering Circular is available for viewing at and copies may be obtained

from Rabobank Nederiand at Croeselaan 18 3521 CS Utrecht the Netherlands and the principal

office in England of the Arranger and of the Paying Agent in Luxembourg Amsterdam and Paris

and www.bourse.lu

Each potential Investor in the Notes must determine the suitability of that investment in

light of its own circumstances potential Investor should not Invest in Notes which are

complex financial Instruments unless it has the expertise either alone or with financial

adviser to evaluate how the Notes will perform under changing conditions the resulting

effects on the value of the notes and the impact this investment will have on the potential

investors overall investment portfolio

Issuer Cooperatieve Centraie Raiffeisen

Boerenieenbank BA Rabobank

Nederland

Series Number 220Th

ii Tranche Number

Specified Currency or Currencies Euro

Aggregate Nominal Amount

Series Euro 2000000000

ii Tranche Euro 2000000000

Issue Price 99 559 per cent of the Aggregate Nominal

Amount of the Tranche

Specified Denominations Euro 1000

ii Calculation Amount Euro 11000

issue Date 21 April 2010

ii Interest Commencement Date Not Applicable

if different from the Issue Date

Maturity Date 21 April2017

Domestic Note if Domestic Note there will No

be no gross-up for withholding tax

A11938716



3.375 per cent Fixed Rate

ft.uther particulars specified below

Redemption at par

Not Applicable

14 Status of the Notes

ii Date approval for issuance of Notes

obtained

15 Method of distribution Syndicated

PROVISIONS RELATING TO INTEREST IF ANY PAYABLE

16 Fixed Rate Note Provisions Applicable

Rate of Interest 3.375 per cent per annum payable annually

in arrear

Ii Interest Payment Dates 21 April in each year commencing on 21

April 2011 and ending on the Maturity Date

Fixed Coupon Amount Euro 33.75 per Calculation Amount

Broken Amount Not Applicable

Day Count Fraction Condition Actual/Actual ICMA

1a
vi Determination Dates Condition

1a
vii Other terms relating to the method

of calculating interest for Fixed Rate

Notes

17 Floating Rate Note Provisions

18 Zero Coupon Note Provisions

19 Index Linked Interest Note Provisions

20 Equity Linked interest Note Provisions

21 Dual Currency Note Provisions

PROVISIONS RELATING TO REDEMPTION

22 Call Option

23 Put Option

24 Final Redemption Amount all Notes

except Equity Linked Redemption

Notes and Index Linked Redemption

Notes of Each Note

A11938718

10 Interest Basis

11 RedemptionlPayment Basis

12 Change of Interest or Redemption/

Payment Basis

13 Put/Call Options Not Applicable

Senior

Not Applicable

iii

iv

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

NotApplicable

NotApplicable

NotApplicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Euro 11000 per Calculation Amount



25 Final Redemption Amount Equity Not Applicable

Linked Redemption Notes of Each

Note

26 Final Redemption Amount Index Not Applicable

Linked Redemption Notes

27 Early Redemption Amount

Early Redemption Amounts As set out in the Conditions

payable per Calculation Amount

and/or the method of calculating

the same if required or if different

from that set out in the Conditions

on redemption on the

occurrence of an event of default

Condition 13 or for illegality

Condition 7j or for taxation

reasons Condition 7c or in

the case of Equity Linked

Redemption Notes following

certain corporate events in

accordance with Condition 7g or

in the case of Index Linked

Redemption Notes following an

Index Modification1 Index

Canceilation or Index Diuption

Event Condition 7h or in the

case of Equity Linked Redemption

Notes or Index Linked

Redemption Notes following an

Additional Disruption Event if

applicable Condition 7s

ii Redemption for taxation reasons Yes

permitted on days other than

Interest Payment Dates Condition

7c
iii Unmatured Coupons to become No

void upon early redemption

Bearer Notes only Condition

101

GENERAL PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO THE NOTES

28 Form of Notes Bearer Notes

Temporary Global Note exchangeable for permanent

Global Note which is exchangeable for Definitive Notes

in the limited circumstances specified in the permanent

Global Note

New Global Notes Yes

A11$36716



29 Financial Centres Condition TARGET

10h or other special

provisions relating to payment

dates

30 Talons for future Coupons or No

Receipts to be attached to

Definitive Notes and dates on

which such Talons mature

31 Details relating to Partly Paid Not Applicable

Notes amount of each

payment comprising the Issue

Price and date on which each

payment is to be made and

consequences if any of failure

to pay including any right of the

Issuer to forfeit the Notes and

interest due on late payment

32 Details relating to Instalment Not Applicable

Notes Amount of each

instalment date on which each

payment is to be made

33 Redenomination Not Applicable

renominalisation and

reconventioning provisions

34 Consolidation provisions Not Applicable

35 Other terms or special So long as Rearer Notes are represented by

conditions temporary and/or permanent Global Note and the

temporary and/or permanent Global Note is held on

behalf of Euroclear Clearstrearn Luxembourg or any

other clearing system notwithstanding Condition 17

notices to Noteholders may be given by delivery of the

relevant notice to that clearing system for

communication by it to entitled accountholders Any
notice thus delivered to that clearing system shall be

deemed to have been giver to the Noteholders on the

day on which that notice is delivered to the clearing

system

DISTRIBUTION

36 If syndicated names Credit Suisse Securities Europe Limited

and addresses of
One Cabot Square

Managers London E14 4QJ

United Kingdom

Coöperatieve Centrale Raiffeisen-Boerenleenbank

BA Rabobank International

Thames Court

Al 1936716



One Queenhithe

London EC4V 3RL

United Kingdom

J.P Morgan Securities Ltd

125 London VVall

London EC2Y 5AJ

United Kingdom

Merrill Lynch International

King Edward Street

London ECIA 1I-IQ

United Kingdom

ii Stabilising Managers NotApplicable

if any

iii Managers 0.30 per cent of the Aggregate Nominal Amount

Commission combined management underwriting and selling

commission

37 If non-syndicated name and Not Applicable

address of Dealer

38 Applicable TEFRA exemption Rules

39 Additional selling restrictions The Prospectus as well as any other material relating

to the Notes does not constitute an issue prospectus

pursuant to Articles 652a or 1156 of the Swiss Code of

Obligations The Notes will not be listed on the SIX

Swiss Exchange and therefore the documents

relating to the Notes including but not limited to the

Prospectus do not claim to comply with the disclosure

standards of the listing rules of SIX Swiss Exchange

and corresponding prospectus schemes annexed to

the listing rules of the SIX Swiss Exchange

The Notes are being offered by way of private

placement to limited and selected circle of investors

in Switzerland without any public offering and only to

investors who do not subscribe for the Notes with the

intention to distribute them to the public The investors

will be individually approached by the Issuer from time

to lime

The Prospectus as well as any other material relating

to the Notes is personal and confidential to each

offeree and do not constitute an offer to any other

person The Prospectus may only be used by those

investors to whom it has been handed out in

connection with the offer described herein and may

neither directly nor indirectly be distributed or made

available to other persons without the express consent
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One Qusenhithe

London EC4V 3RL

United Kingdom

J.P Morgan Securities Ltd

125 London VtIl

London ECZY 5AJ

United Kingdom

Merrill Lynch International

KIng Edward Street

London ECIA HO

United Kingdom

ii Stabilising Managers Not Applicable

If any

iii Managers 0.30 per cent of the Aggregate Nominal Amount

Commission combined management underwriting and selling

commission

37 If non-syndicated name and Not Applicable

address of Dealer

38 Applicable TEFRA exemption Rules

39 Additional selling restrictions The Prospectus as well as any other material relating

to the Notes does not constitute an issue prospectus

pursuant to Articles 652a or 1156 of the Swiss Code of

Obligations The Notes will not be fisted on the SiX

Swiss Exchange and therefore the documents

relating to the Notes including but not limited to the

Prospectus do not claim to comply with the disclosure

standards of the listing rules of SIX Swiss Exchange

and corresponding prospectus schemes annexed to

the listing rules of the SIX Swiss Exchange

The Notes are being offered by way of private

placement to limited and selected circle of investors

in Switzerland without any public offering and only to

investors who do not subscribe for the Notes with the

intention to distribute them to the public The investors

will be individually approached by the Issuer from time

to time

The Prospectus as well as any other material relating

to the Notes is personal and confidential to each

offeree and do not constitute an offer to any other

person The Prospectus may only be used by those

investors to whom it has been handed out in

connection with the offer described herein arid may
neither directly nor indirectly be distributed or made

available to other persons without the express consent
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of the Issuer It may not be used in connection with any

other offer and shall in particular not be copied and/or

distributed to the public in Switzerland or from

Switzerland

40 Subscription period Not Applicable

GENERAL

41 Additional steps that may only Not Applicable

be taken following approval by

an Extraordinary Resolution in

accordance with Condition

14a

42 The aggregate principal Not Applicable

amount of Notes issued has

been translated into Euro at the

rate of producing sum of

for Notes not denominated in

Euro

43 In the case of Notes listed on

EuronextAmsterdam

Numbering and letters
Not Applicable

ii Amsterdam Listing
bobank Nederland or Cooperatieve Centrale

Agent Rafleisen-Boerenleenbank BA Rabo Securities

iii Amsterdam Paying CoOperatieve Centrale Raffeisen-Boerenleenbank BA
Agent Rabo Securities

LISTING AND ADMISSION TO TRADING APPLICATION

These Final Terms comprise the final terms required to list and have admitted to trading the issue

of Notes described herein pursuant to the Euro 110000000000 Global Medium Term Note

Programme of Rabobank Nederland

RESPONSIBILITY

The Issuer accepts resp sibility for the information contained in these Final Terms

behalf oft Issuer

Duly authorised

P11938716



PART OTHER INFORMATION

Listing

Listing Euronext Amsterdam

ii Admission to Trading Application has been made for the Notes to be admitted to

trading on Euronext Amsterdam with effect from 21 April

2010

iii Estimate of total expenses Euro 4600

related to admission to

trading

Ratings

Rating
The Notes to be issued have been rated

SP AM

Moodys Ma

Fitch Ratings Ltd

As defined by Standard Poors an AAA rating means that

the Notes have the highest rating assigned by Standard

Poors and that the Issuers capacity to meet its financial

commitment on the obligation is extremely strong As defined

by Moodys an Aaa rating means that the Notes are judged to

be of the highest quality with minimal credit risk As defined

by Fitch an rating means that the Notes are judged to be

of very high credit quality and denote expectations of low

credit risk It indicates very strong capacity for payment of

financial commitments and is not significantly vulnerable to

foreseeable events

Notification

The Netherlands Authority for the Financial Markets Autoriteit Financiele Markten has provided each of

the Finanzmarktaufsiclt FMA in Austria the Commission bancaire financiere et des assurances OSFA
in Belgium Finanstilsynet in Denmark Finanssivalvonta Fiva in Finland AutoætO des marches financiers

AMF in France Bundesanstaft für Finanzdienstleistungsaufsicht BaFin in Germany Epitroph

Kefaaiagoras in Greece Irish Financial Regulatory Authority in Ireland Commissione Nazionale per le

Societe ía Aorsa CONSOB in Italy Commission de SwveiIance c/u Secteur Financier CSSF in

Luxembourg Krediltilsynet in Norway Comissio do Meicado do Va/ores Mobiliârios CMVM in Portugal

Comisia Ivationala Valorilor Mobiliare in Romania ComisiOn Nacional del Mercado c/a Valores CNMV
in ain Finansinspektionen in Sweden and the Financial Services Authority FSA in the United Kingdom

with certificate of approval attesting that the Offering Circular has been drawn up in accordance with the

Prospectus Directive

Notwithstanding the foregoing no offer of Notes to the public may be made in any ReJevant Member

State which requires the Issuer to undertake any action in addition to the
filing

of the Final Terms with the

Netherlands Authority for the Financial Markets unless and until the Issuer advises such action has been

taken

A11938716



As regards the offer to the public in Italy the Offering Circular as supplemented by the supplemental

Offering Circulars dated 23 October 2009 and December 2009 has been duty passported pursuant to

Artide 17 and 18 of the Prospectus Directive Article 98 of the Legislative Decree No 58 of 24

February 1998 as amended and CONSOB Regulation No 11971/1999 as amended by providing

CONSOB the Italian competent authority through the Netherlands Authority for the Financial Markets

Autoriteit Financiºie Mar/den with the certificate copy of the duly approved Offering Circular and the

supplemental Offering Circulars dated 23 October 2009 and December 2009 and translation into

Italian language of the summary note included in the Offering Circular

Interests of natural and legal persons Involved in the issue

Save as disclosed in the Offering Circular so far as the Issuer is aware no person involved in the offer of

the Notes has an interest material to the offer

Reasons for the offer estimated net proceeds and total expenses

Reasons for the offer Banking Business

ii Estimated net proceeds Euro 1985180000

iii Estimated total expenses Euro 6000000 comprising combined management

underwriting and selling commission

Yield Fbred Rate Notes Only

Indication of yield 3.447per cent per annum

The yield is calculated at the Issue Date on the basis of the

Issue Price It is NOT an indication of future yield

Historic interest rates Floating Rate Notes only

Not Applicable

Performance of Index/formula explanation of effect on value of

investment and assocIated risks and other information concerning the

underlying index-Linked Notes only

Not Applicable

Performance of rates of exchange and explanation of effect on value of investment Dual

Currency Notes only

Not Applicable

10 Performance of underlying explanation of effect on value of Investment and associated

risks and Information concernIng the underlying Equity-Linked Notes only

Not Applicable

11 Operational information

Intended to be held in manner which Yes

would allow Eurosystem eligibility Note that the designation yes simply means

that the Notes are intended upon issue to be

deposited with one of the ICSDs as common

safekeeper and does not necessarily mean that

the Notes will be recognised as eligible collateral

for Eurosystem monetary policy and intra-day
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credit operations by the Eurosysterrt either upon

issue or at any or all times during their life Such

recognition will depend upon satisfaction of the

European eligibility criteria

ii l$lN Code XS0503734672

iii Common Code 050373437

iv German WKN-code Not Applicable

Private Placement number Not Applicable

vi Any clearing systems other than Not Applicable

Euroclear and Clearstteam Luxembourg

and the relevant numbers

vii Delivery Delivery against payment

viii Names and addresses of additional Not Applicable

Paying Delivery Agents if any

ix Names and addresses of Calculation Not Applicable

Agents if different from Deutsche Bank

AG London Branch

12 General Applicable

Time period during which the offer is 30 days from 21 April 2010 provided that the

open offer period in Austria will not commence until

the filing required by the competent authority of

Austria has been duly made

ii Description of the application process Not Applicable

iii Description of possibility to reduce Not Applicable

subscriptions

iv Manner for refunding excess amount Not Applicable

paid by applicants

Minimum and/or maximum amount of Not Applicable

application

vi Method and time limit for paying up the Investors will be notified of their allocations of

securities and for delivery of the Notes and the settlement arrangements in

securities respect thereof The Notes will be issued on the

Issue Date against payment to the Issuer of the

net subscription moneys

vii Manner and date in which results of the Not Applicable

offer are to be made public

vi ii Procedure for exercise of any right of Not Applicable

pre-emption the negotiability of

subscription rights and the treatment of

subscription rights not exercised
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Final Terms

COOPERATIVE CENTRALE RAIFFEISEN-BOERENLEENBANK B.A

RABOBANK NEDERLAND
coOperatie formed under the laws of the Netherlands with its statutory seat in Amsterdam

CObPERATIEVE CENTRALE RAIFFEISEN-BOERENLEENBANK BA
RABOBANK NEDERLAND AUSTRALIA BRANCH

Australian Business Number 70 003 917 655

cooperatie formed under the laws of the Netherlands with its statutory seat in Amsterdam

COOPERATIEVE CENTRALE RAIFFEISEN-BOERENLEENBANK BA
RABOBANK NEDERLAND SINGAPORE BRANCH

Singapore Company Registration Number F03634W

cooperatie formed under the laws of the Netherlands with its statutory seat in Amsterdam

Euro 110000000000

Global Medium-Term Note Programme

Due from seven days to perpetuity

SERIES NO 2206A

TRANCHE NO
USD 90000000 Callable Zero Coupon Notes 2010 due 26 April 2030 the Notes

Issue Price 31 8949070 per cent

Citi

The date of these Final Terms is 22 April2010



PART CONTRACTUAL TERMS

Terms used herein shall be deemed to be defined as such for the purposes of the Conditions set

forth in the Offering Circular dated May 2009 and the supplemental Offering Circulars dated

October 23 2009 and December 2009 both relating to recent development together the

Offering Circular which together constitute base prospectus for the purposes of the

Prospectus Directive Directive 2003/71/EC the Prospectus Directive This document

constitutes the Final Terms of the Notes described herein for the purposes of Article 5.4 of the

Prospectus Directive and must be read in conjunction with the Offering Circular as so

supplemented Full information on the Issuer and the offer of the Notes is only available on the

basis of the combination of these Final Terms and the Offering Circular The Notes will be issued

on the terms of these Final Terms read together with the Offering Circular Each Issuer accepts

responsibility for the information contained in these Final Terms which when read together with

the Offering Circular contains all information that is material in the context of the issue of the

Notes The Offering Circular is available for viewing at and copies may be obtained from

Fabobank Nederland at Croeselaan 18 3521 CB Utrecht the Netherlands and the principal office

in England of the Arranger and of the Paying Agent in Luxembourg Amsterdam and Paris and

www.bourse lu

Each potential investor in the Notes must determine the suitability of that investment in

light of its own circumstances potential investor should not invest in Notes which are

complex financial instruments unless it has the expertise either alone or with financial

adviser to evaluate how the Notes will perform under changing conditions the resulting

effects on the value of the notes and the impact this investment will have on the potential

investors overall investment portfolio

Issuer CoOperatieve Centrale Raiffeisen-Boerenleenbank BA
Rabobank Nederland

Series Number 2206A

ii Tranche Number

Specified Currency or United States Dollars USD
Currencies

Aggregate Nominal Amount

Series IJSD 90000000

ii Tranche USD 90000000

Issue Price 31.8949070 percent of the Aggregate Nominal Amount

Specified USD 1000000

Denominations

ii Calculation Amount USD 1000000

Issue Date 26 April2010

ii Interest Commencement Not Applicable

Date if different from the

Issue Date



Maturity Date 26 April 2030

Domestic Note if Domestic No

Note there wilF be no gross-up

for withholding tax

10 Interest Basis Zero Coupon

further particulars specified below

11 Redemption/Payment Basis
Redemption at par

12 Change of Interest or

Redemptiori/ Payment Basis Not Applicable

13 Put/Call Options Issuer Call

further particulars specified below

14 Status of the Notes Senior

ii Date approval for Not Applicable

issuance of Notes

obtained

15 Method of distribution Non-syndicated

PROVISIONS RELATING TO INTEREST IF ANY PAYABLE

16 Fixed Rate Note Provisions Not Applicable

17 Floating Rate Note Provisions Not Applicable

18 Zero Coupon Note Provisions Applicable

Amortisation Yield 5.88
per cent per annum

Condition 7b
ii Day Count Fraction 301360 unadjusted

Condition 1a
iii Any other formula/basis of Not Applicable

determining amount

payable

19 Index Linked Interest Note Not Applicable

Provisions

20 Equity Linked Interest Note Not Applicable

Provisions

21 Dual Currency Note Provisions Not Applicable



PROVISIONS RELATING TO REDEMPTION

Optional Redemption

Dates

ii Optional Redemption

Amounts of each Note and

method if any of calculation

of such amounts

Applicable

The Issuer has the right to call the Notes in

whole but not in part on 26 April in every fifth

year from and including 26Apr11 2011 to and

including 26 April 2026

The relevant Optional Redemption Amount shall

be pro rated by the Calculation Agent taking

into account the holding of each Noteholder and

shall be paid as follows

Optional Redemption Date Optional Redemption
Optional Redemption

Amount expresses as Amount per Calculation

Percentage of the

Calculation Amount
Amount USD

26 April 2011 33.77032800% 337703.28

26 April 2016 44.93708900% 449370.89

26 April 2021 59.79634000% 597963.40

26 April 2026 79.56906800% 795690.68

iii If redeemable in part

Minimum Redemption Amount

Maximum Redemption

Amount

iv Notice period

23 Put Option

24 Final Redemption Amount all

Notes except Equity Linked

Redemption Notes and Index

Linked Redemption Notes of each

Note

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

The Issuer shall give notice of its intention to

redeem the Notes not less than Business

Days prior to the relevant Optional Redemption

Date

Not Applicable

USD 1000000 per Calculation Amount

22 Call Option



25 Final Redemption Amount Equity Not Applicable

Linked Redemption Notes of each

Note

26 Final Redemption Amount Index Not Applicable

Linked Redemption Notes of each

Note

27 Early Redemption Amount

Early Redemption As set out in Conditions

Amounts payable per

Calculation Amount and/or

the method of calculating

the same if required or if

different from that set out in

the Conditions on

redemption on the

occurrence of an event of

default Condition 13 01b
for illegality Condition 7j
or for taxation reasons

Condition 7c or in the

case of Equity Linked

Redemption Notes following

certain corporate events in

accordance with Condition

7g or in the case of

Index Linked Redemption

Notes following an Index

Modification Index

Cancellation or Index

Disruption Event Condition

7h or in the case of

Equity Linked Redemption

Notes or Index Linked

Redemption Notes following

an Additional Disruption

Event if applicable

Condition 7e

ii Redemption for taxation Yes

reasons permitted on days

other than Interest Payment

Dates Condition 7c
iii Unmatured Coupons to Not Applicable

become void upon early

redemption Bearer Notes

only Condition 101



GENERAL PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO THE NOTES

28 Form of Notes Bearer Notes

temporary Global Note exchangeable for permanent

Global Note which is exchangeable for Definitive Notes

in the limited circumstances specified in the permanent

Global Note

New Global Notes No

29 Financial Centres Condition London and New York

10h or other special

provisions relating to payment

dates

30 Talons for future Coupons or No

Receipts to be attached to

Definitive Notes and dates on

which such Talons mature

31 Details relating to Partly Paid Not Applicable

Notes amount of each

payment comprising the Issue

Price and date on which each

payment is to be made and

consequences if any of failure

to pay including any right of the

Issuer to forfeit the Notes and

interest due on late payment

32 Details relating to Instalment Not Applicable

Notes Amount of each

instalment date on which each

payment is to be made

33 Redenomination Not Applicable

renominalisation and

reconventioning provisions

34 Consolidation provisions Not Applicable



35 Other terms or special So long as Bearer Notes are represented by

conditions
temporary and/or permanent Global Note and the

temporary and/or permanent Global Note is held on

behalf of Euroclear Clearstream Luxembourg or any

other clearing system notwithstanding Condition 17

notices to Noteholders may be given by delivery of the

relevant notice to that clearing system for

communication by it to entitled accountholders Any

notice thus delivered to that clearing system shall be

deemed to have been given to the Noteholders on the

day on which that notice is delivered to the clearing

system

DISTRIBUTION

36 If syndicated names Not Applicable

and addresses of

Managers

ii Stabilising Not Applicable

Managers if any

iii Managers Not Applicable

Commission

37 If non-syndicated name and Citigroup Global Markets Limited

address of Dealer Citigroup Centre

33 Canada Square

Canary Wharf

London E14 5LB

United Kingdom

38 Applicable TEFRA exemption TEFRA

39 Additional selling restrictions Not Applicable

40 Subscription period Not Applicable

GENERAL

41 Additional steps that may only Not Applicable

be taken following approval by

an Extraordinary Resolution in

accordance with Condition

14a

42 The aggregate principal amount Euro 66623400

of Notes issued has been

translated into Euro at the rate

of 0140260 producing sum

of for Notes not denominated

in Euro

43 In the case of Notes listed on Not Applicable

Euronext Amsterdam



LISTING AND ADMISSION TO TRADING APPLICATION

These Final Terms comprise the final terms required to list and have admitted to trading the issue

of Notes described herein pursuant to the Euro 11UOOOOOOOOO Global Medium Term Note

Programme of Rabobank Nederland

RESPONSIBILITY

By

iation contained in these Final TermsThe Issuer accepts responsibility for

Signed on behalf

Duly authorised



PART OTHER INFORMATION

Listing

Listing Luxembourg Stock Exchange

ii Admission to Trading Application has been made for the Notes to be admitted to

trading on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange with effect from

26Apr11 2010

iii Estimate of total EUR 8.700

expenses related to

admission to trading

Ratings

Rating
The Notes to be issued have been rated

SP AAA

Moodys Aaa

Fitch Ratings Ltd

As defined by SP an AAA rating means that the Notes has

the highest rating assigned by SP and that the Issuers

capacity to meet its financial commitment on the obligation is

extremely strong As defined by Moodys an Aaa rating means

that the Notes are judged to be of the highest quality with

minimal credit risk As defined by Fitch an AM rating means

that the Notes are judged to be of very high credit quality

and denote expectations of low credit risk It indicates very

strong capacity for payment of financial commitments and is

not significantly vulnerable to foreseeable events

Notification

The Netherlands Authority for the Financial Markets Autoriteit Financiete Mar/den has provided

each of the Commission bancaire financiØre et des assurances CBFA in Belgium Epitroph

Kefaaiagoras in Greece ComisiOn Nacional del Mercado de Valores CNMV in Spain Autorite des

marches financiers AMF in France Irish Financial Regulatory Authority in Ireland Commissione

Nazionale per le Società ía Borsa CONSOB in Italy kredittilsynet in Norway Financial Market

Authority FMA in Austria Finanssivalvonta in Finland Finansinspektionen in Sweden Financial

Services Authority FSA in United Kingdom Commission de surveillance dv secteur financier in

Luxembourg the Bundesanstalt für Finanzdienstleistungsaufsicht BaFin in Germany the Comisia

Nationala Va/on/or Mobiliare in Romania Finanstilsynet in Denmark and çomissao do Mercado

de va/ores Mobilianios in Portugal with certificate of approval attesting that the Offering Circular

has been drawn up in accordance with the Prospectus Directive

Notwithstanding the foregoing no offer of Notes to the public may be made in any Relevant

Member State which requires the Issuer to undertake any action in addition to the filing of the Final

Terms with the Netherlands Authority for the Financial Markets unless and until the Issuer advises

such action has been taken



Interests of natural and legal persons involved in the issue

Save as disclosed in the Offering Circulsr so far as the Issuer is aware no person involved in the offer of

the Notes has an interest material to the offer

Reasons for the offers estimated net proceeds and total expenses

iv Reasons for the offer Banking business

Estimated net proceeds USD 28705416.30

vi Estimated total expenses Not Applicable

Operational information

Intended to be held in manner which No

would allow Eurosystem eligibility

ii ISIN Code XS0502956567

iii Common Code 050295656

iv German WKN-code Not Applicable

Private Placement number Not Applicable

vi Any clearing systems other than Not Applicable

Euroclear and Clearstream

Luxembourg and the relevant

numbers

The Depository Trust Company Not Applicable

vii Delivery Delivery against payment

viii Names and addresses of additional Not Applicable

Paying Delivery Agents if any

ix Names and addresses of Calculation Not Applicable

Agents if different from Deutsche

Bank AG London Branch

General

Time period during which the offer is Not Applicable

open

ii Description of the application process Not Applicable

iii Description of possibility to reduce Not Applicable

subscriptions

iv Manner for refunding excess amount Not Applicable

paid by applicants

Minimum and/or maximum amount of Not Applicable

application

vi Method and time limit for paying up the Not Applicable



securities and for delivery of the

securities

vii Manner and date in which results of Not Applicable

the offer are to be made public

viii Procedure for exercise of any right of Not Applicable

pre-emption the negotiability of

subscription rights and the treatment of

subscription rights not exercised
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Final Terms

COUPERATIEVE CENTRALE RAIFFEISEN-BOERENLEENBANK B.A

RABOBANK NEDERLAND

cooperatie formed under the laws of the Netherlands with its statutory seat in Amsterdam

COOPERATIEVE CENTRALE RAIFFEISEN-BOERENLEENBANK B.A

RABOBANK NEDERLAND AUSTRALiA BRANCH

Australian Business Number 70 003 917 655

coöperatie formed under the laws of the Netherlands with its statutory seat in Amsterdam

COOPERATIEVE CENTRALE RAIFFEISEN-BOERENLEENBANK BA
RABOBANK NEDERLAND SINGAPORE BRANCH

Singapore Company Registration Number F03634W

coOperatie formed under the laws of the Netherlands with its statutory seat in Amsterdam

Euro I0000000000

Global Medium-Term Note Programme

Due from seven days to perpetuity

SERIES NO 2209A

TRANCHE NO
EUR 654000000 Floating Rate Notes 2010 due 26 April 2011 the Notes

Issue Price 100 percent

Rabobank International

The date of these Final Terms is 23 April 2010



PART CONTRACTUAL TERMS

Terms used herein shall be deemed to be defined as such for the purposes of the Conditions set forth in

the Offering Circular dated May 2009 and the supplemental Offering Circulars dated 23 October 2009

and December 2009 the Offering Circular both relating to recent development which together

constitute base prospectus for the purposes of the Prospectus Directive Directive 2003171/EC the

Prospectus Directive This document constitutes the Final Terms of the Notes described herein for the

purposes of Article 5.4 of the Prospectus Directive and must be read in conjunction with the Offering

Circular as so supplemented Full information on the Issuer and the offer of the Notes is only available

on the basis of the combination of these Final Terms and the Offering Circular The Notes will be issued

on the terms of these Final Terms read together with the Offering Circular Each Issuer accepts

responsibility for the information contained in these Final Terms which when read together with the

Offering Circular contains all information that is material in the context of the issue of the Notes The

Offering Circular is available for viewing at and copies may be obtained from Rabobank Nederland at

Croeselaan 18 3521 CB Utrecht the Netherlands and the principal office in England of the Arranger and

of the Paying Agent in Luxembourg Amsterdam and Paris and www.bourse.lu

Each potential investor in the Notes must determine the suitability of that investment in light of

its own circumstances potential investor should not invest in Notes which are complex

financial instruments unless it has the expertise either alone or with financial adviser to

evaluate how the Notes will perform under changing conditions the resulting effects on the value

of the notes and the impact this investment will have on the potential investors overall

investment portfolio

Issuer CoOperatieve Centrale Raiffeisen-Boerenleenbank

BA Rabobank Nederland

Series Number 2209A

ii Tranche Number

Specified Currency or Currencies Euro EUR
Aggregate Nominal Amount

Series EUR 654000000

ii Tranche EUR 654000000

Issue Price 100 per cent of the Aggregate Nominal Amount

Specified Denominations EUR 50000

ii Calculation Amount EUR 50000

Issue Date 26 April 2010

ii Interest Commencement Not Applicable

Date if different from the

Issue Date

Maturity Date Specified Interest Payment Date falling on or nearest

to 26 April 2011

Domestic Note if Domestic Note No

there will be no gross-up for

withholding tax



10 Interest Basis month EUR-EURIBOR Floating Rate

further particulars specified below

11 Redemption/Payment Basis Redemption at par

further particulars specified below

12 Change of Interest or Redemptioni Not Applicable

Payment Basis

13 Put/Call Options Not Applicable

14 Status of the Notes Senior

ii Date approval for issuance Not Applicable

of Notes obtained

15 Method of distribution Non-syndicated

PROVISIONS RELATING TO INTEREST IF ANY PAYABLE

16 Fixed Rate Note Provisions Not Applicable

17 Floating Rate Note Provisions Applicable

Interest Periods The period commencing on and including the Issue

Date and ending on but excluding the first Specified

Interest Payment Date and each successive period

commencing on and including Specified Interest

Payment Date and ending on but excluding the next

succeeding Specified Interest Payment Data

ii Specified Interest Payment 26 January 26 April 26 July and 26 October in each

Dates year subject to adjustment in accordance with the

Business Day convention specified below

commencing on 26 July 2010 and ending on the

Maturity Date

iii Business Day Convention Modified Following Business Day Convention

iv Business Centres TARGET

Condition 1a
Manner in which the Rates Screen Rate Determination

of Interest is/are to be

determined

vi interest Period Dates Not Applicable

vii Party responsible for
Not Applicable

calculating the Rates of

Interest and Interest

Amounts if not the

Calculation Agent

viii Screen Rate Determination Applicable

Condition 1a

Reference Rate month EURIBOR



Interest Determination The second TARGET Business Day prior to the first

Date day in each Interest Accrual Period

Relevant Screen Page Reuters page EURIBOROl

ix ISDA Determination Not Applicable

Condition 1a
Margins Not Applicable

xO Minimum Rate of Interest Not Applicable

xii Maximum Rate of Interest Not Applicable

xiii Day Count Fraction ActuaII36O adjusted

Condition 1a
xiv Fall baok provisions rounding Not Applicable

provisions denominator and

any other terms relating to the

method of calculating interest

on Floating Rate Notes if

different from those set out in

the Conditions

18 Zero Coupon Note Provisions Not Applicable

19 Index Linked Interest Note Not Applicable

Provisions

20 Equity Linked Interest Note Not Applicable

Provisions

21 Dual Currency Note Provisions NotApplicable

PROVISIONS RELATING TO REDEMPTiON

22 CalL Option Not Applicable

23 Put Option Not Applicable

24 Final Redemption Amount all Notes EUR 50000 per Calculation Amount

except Equity Linked Redemption Notes

and Index Linked Redemption Notes of

each Note

25 Final Redemption Amount Equity Linked Not Applicable

Redemption Notes of each Note

26 Final Redemption Amount Index Linked Not Applicable

Redemption Notes of each Note

27 Early Redemption Amount

Early Redemption Amounts payable As set out in the Conditions

per Calculation Amount and/or the

method of calculating the same if

required or if different from that set out

in the Conditions on redemption

on the occurrence of an event of

default Condition 13 or for

illegality Condition 7j or for



taxation reasons Condition 7c or

in the case of Equity Linked

Redemption Notes following certain

corporate events in accordance with

Condition 7g or in the case of

Index Linked Redemption Notes

following an Index Modification Index

Cancellation or Index Disruption Event

Condition 7h or in the case of

Equity Linked Redemption Notes or

Index Linked Redemption Notes

following an Additional Disruption

Event if applicable Condition 7i

ii Redemption for taxation reasons No

permitted on days other than Interest

Payment Dates Condition 7c
iii Unmatured Coupons to become void Yes

upon early redemption Bearer Notes

only Condition 10t

GENERAL PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO THE NOTES

28 Form of Notes Bearer Notes

Temporary Global Note exchangeable for

permanent Global Note which is exchangeable for

Definitive Notes in the limted circumstances

specified in the permanent Global Note

New Global Notes Yes

29 Financial Centres Condition TARGET

10h or other special provisions

relating to payment dates

30 Talons for future Coupons or No

Receipts to be attached to

Definitive Notes and dates on

which such Talons mature

31 Details relating to Partly Paid Not Applicable

Notes amount of each payment

comprising the Issue Price and

date on which each payment is

to be made and consequences

if any of failure to pay including

any right of the Issuer to forfeit

the Notes and interest due on

late payment

32 Details relating to Instalment Not Applicable

Notes Amount of each

instalment date on which each

payment is to be made



33 Redenomination Not Applicable

renominalisation and

reconveritioning provisions

34 Consolidation provisions Not Applicable

35 Other terms or special So long as Bearer Notes are represented by

conditions temporary and/or permanent Global Note and the

temporary and/or permanent Global Note is held on

behalf of Euroclear Clearstream Luxembourg or

any other clearing system notwithstanding

Condition 17 notices to Noteholders may be given

by delivery of the relevant notice to that clearing

system for communication by it to entitled

accountholders Any notice thus delivered to that

clearing system shall be deemed to have been

given to the Noteholders on the day on which that

notice is delivered to the clearing system

DISTRIBUTION

36 If syndicated names and Not Applicable

addresses of Managers

ii Stabilising Managers if Not Applicable

any

iii Managers/Dealers Not Applicable

Commission

37 If non-syndicated name and Rabobank International Thames Court One

address of Dealer Queenhithe London EC4V 3RL United Kingdom

If the sole Dealer in respect of Notes issued by

Rabobank Nederland is Rabobank International

Rabobank International will not subscribe for the

Notes but will act as agent for the placement of

Notes Such Notes will be deemed to be issued at

the time when the Notes are transferred from

Rabobank International to the subscriber and

Rabobank International receives funds from the

subscriber on behalf of Rabobank Nederland

38 Applicable TEERA exemption Rules

39 Additional selling restrictions Not Applicable

40 Subscription period Not Applicable



GENERAL

41 Additional steps that may only be Not Applicable

taken following approval by an

Extraordinary Resolution in

accordance with Condition 14a

42 The aggregate principal amount Not Applicable

of Notes issued has been

translated into Euro at the rate of

producing sum of for

Notes not denominated in Euro

43 In the case of Notes listed on Not Applicable

Euronext Amsterdam

LISTING AND ADMISSION TO TRADING APPLICATION

These Final Terms comprise the final terms required to list and have admitted to trading the issue of

Notes described herein pursuant to the Euro 11OOOOOOOOOO Global Medium-Term Note Programme of

Rabobank Nederland

RESPONi4kITY

The Issue ddoepts responsibility for the information contained in these Final Terms

Signed on of the Issuer

By

Duly
ah

II



PART OTHER INFORMATION

Listing

Listing Luxembourg Stock Exchange

ii Admission to Trading Application has been made for the Notes to be admitted to

trading on Luxembourg Stock Exchange with effect from the

Issue Date

iii Estimate of total expenses EUR 970

related to admission to

trading

Ratings

Rating
The Notes to be issued have been rated

SP AM

Moodys Aaa

Fitch Ratings Ltd AA

As defined by SF an AAA rating means that the Notes has

the highest rating assigned by SP and that the Issuers

capacity to meet its financial commitment on the obligation

is extremely strong As defined by Moodys an Aaa rating

means that the Notes are judged to be of the highest quality

with minimal credit risk As defined by Fitch an AA rating

means that the Notes are judged to be of very high credit

quality and denote expectations of low credit risk It

indicates very strong capacity for payment of financial

commitments and is not significantly vulnerable to

fcreseeable events

Interests of natural and legal persons involved in the issue/offer

Save as disclosed in the Offering Circular so far as the Issuer is aware no person involved in the offer of

the Notes has an interest material to the offer

Operational information

Intended to be held in manner which Yes

would allow Eurosystem eligibility
Note that the designation yes simply means

that the Notes are intended upon issue to be

deposited with one of the ICSDs as common

safekeeper and does not necessarily mean that

the Notes will be recognised as eligible collateral

for Eurosystem monetary policy and intra-day

credit operations by the Eurosystem either upon

issue or at any or all times during their life Such

recognition will depend upon satisfaction of the

Eurosystem eligibility criteria

ii SIN Code X50505410026

iii Common Code 050541002



iv German WKN-code Not Applicable

Private Placement number Not Applicable

vi Any clearing systems other than Not Apphcable

Euroclear and Clearstream Luxembourg

and the relevant numbers

The Depository Trust Company Not Applicable

vii Delivery Delivery against payment

viii Names and addresses of additional Not Applicable

Paying/ Delivery Agents if any

ix Names and addresses of Calculation Not Applicable

Agents if different from Deutsche Bank

AG London Branch

General Not Applicable



Final Terms

COÔPERATIEVE CENTRALE RAIFFEISEN.BOERENLEENBANK BA
RABOBANK NEDERLAND

coOperabe formed under the laws of the Netherlands with its statutory seat in Amsterdam

COOPERATIEVE CENTRALE RAIFFEISEN-BOERENLEENBANK B.A

RABOBANK NEDERLANO AUSTRALiA BRANCH

Australian Business Number 70003 917 855
coperatie formed under the laws of the Netherlands with its statutory seat in Amsterdam

COOPERATIEVE CENTRALE RAIFFEISENBOERENLEENBANK BA
RABOBANK NEDERLAND SINGAPORE BRANCH

Singapore Company Registration Number F03634V
cooperatie formed under the laws of the Netherlands with its statutory seat in Amsterdam

Euro 110000000000

Global Medium-Term Note Programme

Due from seven days to perpetuity

SERiES NO 2208A

TRANCHE NO

AUD 100000000 6.00 per cent Fixed Rate Notes 2010 due 16 July 2013 the Notes

Issue Price 100.714 per cent

RBC Capital Markets

KBC International Group Zurich Cantonaibank

Bank Vontobel AG BNP PARIBAS Fortis

Daiwa Capital Markets Europe Deutsche Bank

Dexia Capital Markets ING Commercial Banking

Ti Securities

The date of these Final Terms is 27 Apnl 2010



PART CONTRACTUAL TERMS

Terms used herein shall be deemed to be defined as such for the purposes of the Conditions set

forth in the Offering Circular dated May 2009 which together with the supplemental Offering

Circulars dated October 23 2009 and December 2009 both relating to recent development

which together constitutes base prospectus the Offering Circular for the purposes of the

Prospectus Directive Directive 2003/7I1EC the Prospectus Directive This document

constitutes the Final Terms of the Notes described herein for the purposes of Article 5.4 of the

Prospectus Directive and must be read in conjunction with the Offering Circular as so

supplemented Fufl information on the Issuer and the offer of the Notes is only available on the

basis of the combination of these Final Terms and the Offering Circular The Notes will be issued

on the terms of these Final Terms read together with the Offering Circular The Issuer accepts

responsibility for the information contained in these Final Terms which when read together with

the Offering Circular contains all information that is material in the context of the issue of the

Notes The Offering Circular is available for viewing at and copies may be obtained from

Rabobank Nederland at Croeselaan 18 3521 CB IJtrecht the Netherlands and the principal office

in England of the Arranger and of the Paying Agent in Luxembourg Amsterdam and Paris and

www.bourse.lu

Each potential investor in the Notes must determine the suitability of that investment in

light of its own circumstances potential Investor should not invest In Notes which are

complex financial instruments unless it has the expertise either alone or with financial

adviser to evaluate how the Notes will perform under changing conditions the resulting

effects on the value of the notes and the impact this investment will have on the potential

investors overall investment portfolio

Issuer Cooperatieve Centrale Raiffeisen-Boerenleenbank B.A

Rabobank Nederland Australia Branch

Series Number 2208A

ii Tranche Number

Specified Currency or Australian Dollars AUD
Currencies

Aggregate Nominal Amount

Series AtJD 100000000

ii Tranche AUD 100000000

Issue Price 100.714 per cent of the Aggregate Nominal Amount

Specified Denominations AUD 1000 and integral multiples thereof

ii Calculation Amount AUD 1000

Issue Date May 2010

ii Interest Commencement Not Applicable

Date

if different from the

Issue Date

Alt 961450/3.0/26 Apr 2010



Day Count Fraction Condition 1a
Determination Dates Condition

1a
vii Other terms relating to the method of

calculating interest for Fixed Rate

Notes

17 Floating Rate Provisions

18 Zero Coupon Note Provisions

19 Index Linked Interest Note Provisions

20 Equity Linked Interest Note Provisions

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Maturity Date 16 July 2013

Domestic Note if Domestic No

Note there will be no gross-up

for withholding tax

10 Interest Basis 6.00 per cent Fixed Rate

Further particulars specified below

11 Redemption/Payment Basis Redemption at par

12 Change of Interest or Not Applicable

Redemption/Payment Basis

13 Put/Call Options Not Applicable

14 Status of the Notes Senior

ii Date approval for Not Applicable

issuance of Notes

obtained

15 Method of distribution Syndicated

PROVISIONS RELATING TO INTEREST IF ANY PAYABLE

16 Fixed Rate Note Provisions Applicable

Rate of Interest 6.00 per cent per annum payable annually in

arrear

ii Interest Payment Dates 16 July in each year commencing on 16 July

2010 short first coupon and ending on the

Maturity Date

iii Fixed Coupon Amounts AUD 60.00 per Calculation Amount save as

set out in Broken Amount hereunder

iv Broken Amount AUD 11.84 per Calculation Amount in

respect of the period from and including the

Issue Date to but excluding 16 July 2010

short first coupon

Actual/Actual-I CMA unadjusted

vi Interest Payment Dates

A11961450/30/26 Apr 2010



21 Dual Currency Note Provisions Not Applicable

PROVISIONS RELATING TO REDEMPTiON

22 Call Option Not Applicable

23 Put Option Not Applicable

24 Final Redemption Amount all Notes AUD 1000 per Calculation Amount

except Equity Linked Redemption Notes

and Index Linked Redemption Notes of

each Note

25 Final Redemption Amount Equity Linked Not Applicable

Redemption Notes of each Note

26 Final Redemption Amount Index Linked Not Applicable

Redemption Notes of each Note

27 Early Redemption Amount

Early Redemption Amounts As set out in the Conditions

payable per Calculation Amount

and/or the method of calculating the

same if required or if different from

that set out in the Conditions on

redemption on the occurrence of

an event of default Condition 13 or

for illegality Condition 70 or

for taxation reasons Condition 7c
or in the case of Equity Linked

Redemption Notes following certain

corporate events in accordance with

Condition 7g or in the case of

Index Linked Redemption Notes

following an Index Modification

Index Cancellation or Index

Disruption Event Condition 7h or

in the case of Equity Linked

Redemption Notes or Index Linked

Redemption Notes following an

Additional Disruption Event if

applicable Condition 7i

ii Redemption for taxation reasons Yes

permitted on days other than interest

Payment Dates Condition 7c
iii Unmatured Coupons to become void No

upon early redemption Bearer Notes

only Condition 10a

GENERAL PROVISIONS APPLiCABLE TO THE NOTES

28 Form of Notes Bearer Notes

A11961450/3.O/26 Apr 2010



Temporary Global Note exchangeable 40 days after the

Issue Date for permanent Global Note which is

exchangeable for Definitive Notes in the limited

circumstances specified in the permanent Global Note

New Global Notes No

29 Financial Centres Condition Sydney and TARGET

10h or other special

provisions relating to payment

dates

30 Talons for future Coupons or No

Receipts to be attached to

Definitive Notes and dates on

which such Talons mature

31 Details relating to Partly Paid Not Applicable

Notes amount of each

payment comprising the Issue

Price and date on which each

payment is to be made and

consequences if any of failure

to pay including any right of the

Issuer to forfeit the Notes and

interest due on late payment

32 Details relating to Instalment Not Applicable

Notes Amount of each

instalment date on which each

payment is to be made

33 Redenomination Not Applicable

renominalisation and

reconventioning provisions

34 Consolidation provisions Not Applicable

35 Other terms or special So long as Bearer Notes are represented by temporary

conditions and/or permanent Global Note and the temporary and/or

permanent Global Note is held on behalf of Euroclear

Clearstream Luxembourg or any other clearing system

notwithstanding Condition 17 notices to Noteholders may
be given by delivery of the relevant notice to that clearing

system for communication by it to entitled

accountholders Any notice thus delivered to that clearing

system shall be deemed to have been given to the

Noteholders on the day on which that notice is delivered

to the clearing system

DISTRIBUTION

36 If syndicated names Royal Bank of Canada Europe Limited

and addresses of 71 Queen Victoria Street

London EC4V 4DE

All 96145013.0126 Apr 2010



Managers United Kingdom

KBCBankNV

Havenlaari 12

GKL/8742

B-i 080 Brussels

Belgium

Zurich Cantonalbank

Bahnhofstrasse

CH-8001 Zurich

Switzertand

Bank Vontobel AG

Bahnhofstrasse

Cl-l-8022 Zurich

Switzerland

Daiwa Capital Markets Europe Limited

King William Street

London EC4N 7AX

United Kingdom

Deutsche Bank AG London Branch

Wnchester House

Great Winchester Street

London EC2N 2DB

United Kingdom

Dexia Banque Internationale Luxembourg sociØtØ

anonynie acting under the name of Dexia Capital

Markets

69 route dEsch

L-2953 Luxembourg

Luxembourg

Fortls Bank NVJSA

Montagne du Parc

B-I 000 Brussels

Belgium

ING Belgium SA/NV

Avenue Marnix 24

8-1000 Brussels

Belgium

The Toronto-Dominion Bank

Triton Court

14118 Finsbury Square

A1196145013.0126 Apr 2010



London EC2A 1DB

United Kingdom

ii Stabilising Managers Not Applicable

if any

iii Managers
1.1875 per cent selling commission

Commission 0.1875 per cent combined management and

underwriting commission

37 If non-syndicated name and Not Applicable

address of Dealer

38 Applicable TEFRA exemption Rules

39 Additional selling restrictions Not Applicable

4Q Subscription period Not Applicable

GENERAL

41 Additional steps that may only Not Applicable

be taken following approval by

an Extraordinary Resolution in

accordance with Condition

14a

42 The aggregate principal Euro 68674000

amount of Notes issued has

been translated into Euro at the

rate of 0.686747 producing

sum of for Notes not

denominated in Euro

43 In the case of Notes listed on Not Applicable

Euronext Amsterdam

LISTING AND ADMISSION TO TRADING APPLICATION

These Final Terms comprise the final terms required to list and have admitted to trading the issue

of Notes described herein pursuant to the Euro 110000000000 Global Medium-Term Note

Programme of Rabobank Nederland

RESPONSIBILITY

The Issuer accepts responsibility for the information contained in these Final Terms

Signed on behalf of the Issuer

By

Duly authorised

A11961450/30126 Apr 2010



PART OTHER iNFORMATION

Listing

Listing Luxembourg Stock Exchange

ii Admission to Trading Application has been made for the Notes to be admitted to

trading on the Luxembourg Stock Exchanges Regulated

Market with effect from the Issue Date

iii Estimate of total expenses Euro 1345

related to admission to

trading

Ratings

Rating
The Notes to be issued have been rated

SP MA

Moodys Aaa

Fitch Ratings Ltd 4A

As defined by SP an AAA rating means that the Notes have

the highest rating assigned by SP and that the Issuers

capacity to meet its financial commitment on the obligation is

extremely strong

As defined by Moodys an Aaa rating means that the Notes

are judged to be of the highest quality with minimal credit

risk

As defined by Fitch an AA rating means that the Notes are

judged to be of very high credit quality and denote

expectations of low credit risk It indicates very strong

capacity for payment of financial commitments and is not

significantly vulnerable to foreseeable events

Notification

The Netherlands Authority for the Financial Markets Autoriteit Financiele Maten has provided each of

the Commission bancaire flnanciŁre at des assurances CBFA in Belgium Epitmph Kefalaiagoras in

Greece ComisiOn Nec/oral del Memado de Va/ores GNMV in Spain AutoritØ des marchEs financiers

AMF in France Irish Financial Regulatory Authority in Ireland Commissione Naz/onale perle Società

Borsa CONSOB in Italy Kredittilsynet in Norway Finanzmarktaufsicht FMA in Austria

Finansswalvonta in Finland Finansinspektionen in Sweden Financial Services Authority FSA1 in the

United Kingdom Commission de surveillance du secteur financier CSSF in Luxembourg the

Bundesanstalt for Finanzdienstsistungsaufsicht BaFin in Germany the Comisia Nationala Valoa//or

Mob/flare in Romania Finanstilsynet in Denmark and comissEo do Memado de Va/ores Mobil/ar/os in

Portugal with ceruficate of approval attesting that the Offering Circular has been drawn up in

accordance with the Prospectus Directive

Notwithstanding the foregoing no offer of Notes to the public may be made in any Relevant Member

State which requires the Issuer to undertake any action in addition to the
tiling

of the Final Terms with the

Netherlands Authority for the Financial Markets unless and until the Issuer advises such action has been

taken

A1196145013.0126 Apr 2010



interests of natural and legal persons involved in the issue

Save as disclosed in the Offering Circular so far as the Issuer is aware no person involved in the offer of

the Notes has an interest material to the offer

Reasons for the offer estimated net proceeds and total expenses

Reasons for the offer Banking business

ii Estimated net proceeds AUD 99339000

iii Estimated total expenses AUD 1375000 comprising combined management selling

and underwriting commission

Yield Fixed Rate Notes Only

Indication of yield 5.758 per cent per annum

The yield is calculated at the Issue Date on the basis of the

Issue Price It is NOT an indication of future yield

HistorIc interest rates Floating Rate Notes only

Not Applicable

Performance of Indexlformula explanation of effect on value of

investment and associated risks and other information concerning the

underlying Index-Linked Notes only

Not Applicable

Performance of ratesI of exchange and explanation of effect on value of investment Dual
Currency Notes only

Not Applicable

10 Performance of underlying explanation of effect on value of investment and associated

risks and Information concerning the underlying Equity-Linked Notes only

Not Applicable

11 Operational information

Intended to be held in manner which No

would allow Eurosystem eligibility

ii ISIN Code XS0505052786

iii Common Code 050505278

iv German WKN-code Not Applicable

Valoren Code Not Applicable

vi Private Placement number Not Applicable

vii Any clearing systems other than Not Applicable

Euroclear and Clearstream Luxembourg

and the relevant numbers

viii telivery Delivery against payment

ix Names and addresses of additional Not Applicable

Al 1961450/3.026 Apr 2010



Paying Delivery Agents if any

Names and addresses of Calculation Not Applicable

Agents if different from Deutsche Bank

AG London Branch

12 General

Time period during which the offer is From and including 27 April 2010 to 30 days

open from May 2010 provided that the offer period

in Austria will not commence until the

filing required by the competent authority

of Austria has been duly made and

ii in Germany will not commence until the

Final Terms have been published in

accordance with Article 14 of the

Prospectus Directive

ii Description of the application process NotApplicable

iii Description of possibility to reduce Not Applicable

subscriptions

iv Manner for refunding excess amount Not Applicable

paid by applicants

Minimum and/or maximum amount of Investors will be notified of their allocations of

application Notes and the settlement arrangements in

respect thereof The Notes will be issued on the

Issue Date against payment to the Issuer of the

net subscription moneys

vi Method and time limit for paying up the Not Applicable

securities and for delivery of the

securities

vii Manner and date in which results of the Not Applicable

offer are to be made public

viii Procedure for exercise of any right of Not Applicable

pre-emption the negotiability of

subscription rights and the treatment of

subscription rights not exercised

ix Process for notification to applicants of Not Applicable

the amount allotted and the indication

whether dealing may begin before

notification is made

A11961450130126 Apr 2010



Final Terms

COOPERAT1EVE CENTRALE RAIFFEISEN-BOERENLEENBANK BA
RABOSANK NEDERLAND

cooperatie formed under the laws of the Netherlands with its statutory seat in Amsterdam

COOPERATIEVE CENTRALE RAIFFEISEN-BOERENLEENBANK BA
RABOBANK NEDERLAND AUSTRALIA BRANCH

Australian Business Number 70003 917 655

coperatie formed under the laws of the Netherlands with its statutory seat in Amsterdam

COOPERATIEVE CENTRALE RAIFFEISEN-BOERENLEENBANK B.A

RABOBANK NEDERLAND SINGAPORE BRANCH

Singapore Company Registration Number F03634W

cooperatie formed under the laws of the Netherlands with its statutory seat in Amsterdam

Euro 110000000000

Global Medium-Term Note Programme

Due from seven days to perpetuity

SERIES NO 2213A

TRANCHE NO
USD 13050000 Step-Up Fixed Rate Notes 2010 due May 2015 the Notes

Issue Price 100.00 per cent

Rabobank international

The date of these Final Terms is 29 April 2010



PART CONTRACTUAL TERMS

Terms used herein shail be deemed to be defined as such for the purposes of the Conditions set forth in

the Offering Circular dated May 2009 and the supplemental Offering Circular dated 23 October 2009

and December 2009 both relating to recent developments the Offering Circular which together

constitute base prospectus for the purposes of the Prospectus Directive Directive 2003/71/EC the

Prospectus Directive This document constitutes the Final Terms of the Notes described herein for the

purposes of Article 5.4 of the Prospectus Directive and must be read in conjunction with the Offering

Circular as so supplemented Full information on the Issuer and the offer of the Notes is onty available

on the basis of the combination of these Final Terms and the Offering Circular The Notes will be issued

on the terms of these Final Terms read together with the Offering Cimulai Each Issuer accepts

responsibility for the information contained in these Final Terms which when read together with the

Offering Circular contains all information that is material in the context of the issue of the Notes The

Offering Circular is available for viewing at and copies may be obtained from Rabobank Nederlanci at

Croeselaan 18 3521 CB Utrecht the Netherlands and the principal office in England of the Arranger and

of the Paying Agent in Luxembourg Amsterdam and Paris and www.bourse.lu

Each potential investor In the Notes must determIne the suitability of that investment In light of

Its own circumstances potential investor should not invest in Notes which are complex

financial instruments unless it has the expertise either alone or with financial adviser to

evaluate how the Notes will perform under changing conditions the resulting effects on the value

of the notes and the impact this investment will have on the potential Investors overall

investment portfolio

issuer Cooperatieve Centrals RaiffeisenBoerenleertbank

B.A Rabobank Nederland

Series Number 2213A

ii Tranche Number

Specified Currency or Currencies United States Dollar USD
Aggregate Nominal Amount

Series USD 13050000

ii Tranche USD 13050000

Issue Price 100.00 per cent of the Aggregate Nominal Amount

Specified Denominations USD 1000

ii Calculation Amount USO 1000

Issue Date May 2010

ii interest Commencement Not Applicable

Date if different from the

Issue Date

Maturity Date May 2015

Domestic Note if Domestic Note No

there will be no gross-up for

withholding tax



10 Interest Basis Step-Up Fixed Rate

further particulars specified below

11 RedemptionfPayrnent Basis Redemption at par

12 Change of Interest or Redemption/ Not Applicable

Payment Basis

13 Put/Call Options Not Applicable

14 Status of the Notes Senior

ii Date approval for issuance Not Applicable

of Notes obtained

15 Method of distribution Non-syndicated

PROVS1ONS RELATING TO INTEREST IF ANY PAYABLE

16 Fixed Rate Note Provisions Applicable

Rates of Interest From and including the Issue Date to but exçIudinq

May 2011

2.35 per cent per annum payable annually in arrear

From and includiftQ4 May 2011 to but excluding

May_2012

2.60 per cent per annum payable annually in arrear

From and including May 2012 to but excluding

Mav_201

2.85 per cent per annum payable annually in arrear

From and including May 2013 to but excluding

May2014

3.10 per cent per annum payable annually in arrear

From and including May 2014 to but excluding the

Maturity Date

3.35 per cent per annum payable annually in arrear

ii Interest Payment Dates May in each year commencing on May 2011 and

ending on the Maturity Date

iii Fixed Coupon Amount From and including the Issue Date to but excludinQ4

May_2011

USD 23.50 per Calculation Amount

From and including May 2011 to but excludinQ4

May 2012

USD 26.00 per Calculation Amount

From and including May 2012 to but excluding

May 2013

USD 28.50 per Calculation Amount



iv Broken Amount

Day Count Fraction Condition

1a
vi Determination Dates

Condition 1a
Vii Other terms relating to the

method of calculating interest

for Fixed Rate Notes

17 Floating Rate Note Provisions

18 Zero Coupon Note Provisions

19 Index Linked Interest Note

Provisions

20 Equity Linked Interest Note

Provisions

21 Dual Currency Note Provisions

PROVISIONS RELATING TO REDEMPTION

22 Call Option

23 Put Option

24

From and including May 2013 to but excluding

May 2014

USD 31.00 per Calculation Amount

From and incIudini4 May 2014 to but excluding the

Maturity Date

USD 33.50 per Calculation Amount

Not Applicable

30/360 unadjusted

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

USO 1000 per Calculation Amount

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

As Set out in the Conditions

Final Redemption Amount all Notes

except Equity Linked Redemption Notes

and Index Linked Redemption Notes of

each Note

25 Final Redemption Amount Equity Linked

Redemption Notes of each Note

26 Final Redemption Amount Index Linked

Redemption Notes of each Note

27 Early Redemption Amount

Early Redemption Amounts payable

per Calculation Amount and/or the

method of calculating the same if

required or if different from that set out

in the Conditions on redemption

on the occurrence of an event of

default Condition 13 or for

illegality Condition 7j or for

taxation reasons Condition 7c or



in the case of Equity Linked

Redemption Notes following certain

corporate events in accordance with

Condition 7g or in the case of

Index Linked Redemption Notes

following an Index Modification Index

Cancellation or Index Disruption Event

Condition 7h or in the case of

Equity Linked Redemption Notes or

index Linked Redemption Notes

following an Additional Disruption

Event if applicable Condition 7e

II Redemption for taxation reasons Yes

permitted on days other than Interest

Payment Dates Condition 7c
iii Unmatured Coupons to become void No

upon early redemption Bearer Notes

only Condition 10t

GENERAL PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO THE NOTES

28 Form of Notes Bearer Notes

Temporary Global Note exchangeable for

permanent Global Note which is exchangeable for

Definitive Notes in the limited circumstances

specified in the permanent Global Note

New Global Notes No

29 FinanciaJ Centres Condition New York and London

10h or other special provisions

relating to payment dates

30 Talons for future Coupons or No

Receipts to be attached to

Definitive Notes arid dates on

which such Talons mature

31 Details relating to Partly Paid Not Applicable

Notes amount of each payment

comprising the Issue Price and

date on which each payment is

to be made and consequences

if any of failure to pay including

any right of the Issuer to forfeit

the Notes and interest due on

late payment

32 Details relating to Instalment Not Applicable

Notes Amount of each

instalment date on which each

payment is to be made



33 Redenomination Not Applicable

renominalisation and

reconventionirig provisions

34 Consolidation provisions Not Applicable

35 Other terms or special So tong as nearer Notes are represented by

conditions temporary and/or permanent Global Note and the

temporary and/or permanent GJobal Note is held on

behalf of Euroclear Clearstream Luxembourg or

any other clearing system notwithstanding

Condition 17 notices to Noteholders may be given

by delivery of the relevant notice to that cleanng

system for communication by it to entitled

accountholders Any notice thus delivered to that

clearing system shaH be deemed to have been

given to the Noteholders on the day on which that

notice is delivered to the clearing system

DISTRIBUTION

36 If syndicated names and Not Applicable

addresses of Managers

ii Stabilising Managers if Not Applicable

any

iii ManagerslDealers Not Applicable

Commission

37 If nonsyndicated name and Rabobank International Thames Court One

address of Dealer Oueenhithe London EC4V 3RL United Kingdom

If the sole Dealer in respect of Notes issued by

Rabobank Nederland is Rabobank International

Rabobank International will not subscribe for the

Notes but will act as agent for the placement of

Notes Such Notes will be deemed to be issued at

the time when the Notes are transferred from

Rabobank International to the subscriber and

Rabobank International receives funds from the

subscriber on behalf of Rabobank Nederlarid

38 Applicable TEFRA exemption Rules



39 Additional selling restrictions Applicable

Monaco

The Notes may not be offered or sold directly or

indirectly to the public in Monaco other than by

Monaco duly authorized intermediary acting as

professional institutional investor which has such

knowledge and experience in financial and business

matters as to be capable of evaluating the risks and

merits of an investment in the Notes Consequently

this Final Terms may only be communicated to

banks duly licensed by the ComitØ des

Etablissernents do Credit et des Enterprises

dnvestissernenf and fully licensed portfolio

management companies by virtue of Law 1.144

of July 26 1991 and Law 1.194 of July 1997 duly

licensed by the Commission de ContrOle do Ia

gestion do portefeuiies et des activitØs boursiŁres

assimilØes

Netherlands Antilles

The Notes including rights representing an interest

in Note in global form that are offered as part of

the initial distribution or by way of re-offering in the

Netherlands Antilles shall in order to comply with

the Netherlands Antilles National Ordinance on the

supervision of banking and credit institutions 1994

Landsverordening toozicht bank- en kredietwezon

1994 the NOSBC only be offered sold

transferred or delivered in the Netherlands Antilles

to credit institutions licensed in accordance with the

NOSBC or with the benefit of an individual

exemption granted by the Central Bank of the

Netherlands Antilles Bank van cie Nedeandse

Anti/len

40 Subscription period Not Applicable

GENERAL

41 Additional steps that may only be Not Applicable

taken following approval by an

Extraordinary Resolution in

accordance with Condition 14a

42 The aggregate principal amount Euro 9575646.30

of Notes issued has been

translated into Euro at the rate of

0.733766 producing sum of

for Notes not denominated in

Euro



43 In the case of Notes listed on

Euronext Amsterdam

Applicable

Numbering and letters

iiAmsterdam Listing Agent

iiiAmsterdam Paying Agent

Not Applicable

Rabobank Nederland or CoOperatieve Centrale

Raiffeisen-Boerenleenbank B.A Rabo Securities

Coöperatieve Centrale Raiffeisen-Boerenleenbank

BA Rabo Securities

LISTING AND ADMISSION TO TRADING APPLICATION

These Final Terms comprise the final terms required to list and have admitted to trading the issue of

Notes described herein pursuant to the Euro 11OQOOOOOOOO Global Medium Term Note Programme of

Rabobank Nederlarid

RESPONSIBILITY

The Issuer

Signed on

By

Duly

for the iriforTnation contained in these Final Terms



PART OTHER INFORMATION

Listing

Listing Euronext Amsterdam

ii Admission to Trading Application has been made for the Notes to be admitted to trading

on Euronext Amsterdam with effect from the Issue Date

iii Estimate of total expenses EUR 2650

related to admission to

trading

Ratings

Rating The Notes to be issued have been rated

SP AM

Moodys Aaa

Fitch Ratings Ltd AA

As defined by SP an AAA rating means that the Notes has the

highest rating assigned by SP and that the Issuers capacity to

meet its financial commitment on the obligation is extremely strong

As defined by Moodys an Aaa rating means that the Notes are

judged to be of the highest quality with minimal credit risk As

defined by Fitch an AM rating means that the Notes are judged to

be of very high credit quality and denote expectations of low credit

risk It indicates very strong capacity for payment of financial

commitmehts and is not significantly vulnerable to foreseeable

events

Notification

The Netherlands Authority for the Financial Markets Autonteit FinanciIe Merkten has provided each

of the Commission bancaire financiØre et des assurances CBFA in Belgium Epitroph Kefalaiagoras in

Greece ComisiOn Nacional del Mercado do Valores CNMV in Spain AutoritØ des marches financiers

AMF in France Irish Financial Regulatory Authority in Ireland Commissions Nazionale per le Società

Ia Borsa CONSOB in Italy Kredittilsynet in Norway Finanzmarktaufsicht FMA in Austria

Finanssivalvonta in Finland Finansinspektionen in Sweden Financial Services Authority FSA in the

United Kingdom Commission do surveillance du secteur financier in Luxembourg the 8undesanstalf

für Finanzdienstleistungsaufsicht Ba Fin in Germany the Comisia Netionalä Valorior Mobiliare in

Romania Finansfilsyriet in Denmark and Qomissao do Mercado de Valores MobiliÆrios in Portugal with

certificate of approval attesting that the Offering Circular has been drawn up in accordance with the

Prospectus Directive

Notwithstanding the foregoing no offer of Notes to the public may be made in any Relevant Member

State which requires the Issuer to undertake any action in addition to the filing of the Final Terms with

the Netherlands Authority for the Financial Markets unless and until the Issuer advises such action has

been taken

Interests of natural and legal persons involved in tile issue

Save as disclosed in the Offering Circular so far as the Issuer is aware no involved in the offer of the

Notes has an interest material to the offer



Reasons for the offer estimated net proceeds and total expenses

Reasons for the Banking business

offer

ii Estimated net USD 3050000

proceeds

iii Estimated total Not Applicable

expenses

Yield Fixed Rate Notes Only

Not Applicable

Historic interest rates Floating Rate Notes only

Not Applicable

Performance of indexlformula explanation of effect on value of investment and associated

risks and other information concerning the underlying Index-Linked Notes only

Not Applicable

Performance of rate of exchange and explanation of effect on value of investment Dual

Currency Notes only

Not Applicable

10 Performance of underlying explanation of effect on value of investment and associated

risks and Information concerning the underlying Equity-Linked Notes only

Not Applicable

11 Operational information

Intended to be held in manner which No

would allow Eurosystem eligibility

ii ISIN Code XS0503600917

iii Common Code 050360091

iv German WKN-code Not Applicable

Private Placement number Not Applicable

vi Any clearing systems other than Not Applicable

Euroclear and Clearstream

Luxembourg and the relevant

numbers

The Depository Trust Company Not Applicable

vii Delivery Delivery against payment

viii Names and addresses of additional Not Applicable

Paying/ Delivery Agents if any

ix Names and addresses of Calculation Not Applicable

Agents if different from Deutsche

Bank AG London Branch



12 General Not Applicable
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Rabobank Group

Volcano eruption triggering disruption in certain

FAsectors

22-4-2010 Food and Agribusiness news

The eruption of Icelands Eyjatjallajokull volcano and the resulting airspace closure

across large parts of Europe is having limited impact on food agribusiness FA
as whole However trade disruptions have significantly affected specific FA
sectors says Rabobanks analyst Cindy van Rijswick Cut-flowers fresh fruits and

vegetables and seafood are the products most impacted Those suffering most are

specialised trading companies and the fanners in developing countries who depend

heavily on the European market for selling their perishable products

Specific fresh fruit and vegetable trade flows impacted strongly

More than in Europe EU the airspace closure has been felt by farmers and exporters

in Africa Asia and South America that rely partly on the European market for their

perishables Although large proportion of fresh fruit and vegetables consumed in the

EU is imported from third countries the estimated air-freighted share of fresh fruit

and vegetable imports in the EU ranges from 2% to 5% Most of the imported

productssuch as bananas apples pears and citrusare transported by sea The

main air-freighted products include beans grapes peas exotic fruit asparagus

cherries peppers and berries

For the European fruits and vegetables industry the effects will be fairly marginal if

the disruptions can be resolved in the short term due to the fact that limited alternative

markets are easier to find for European producers compared to developing country

farmers Food retailers have not reported empty shelves up to now

East-African flower industry hit hard

For the East African flower industry the impact of the flight ban is significant said

Rijswick The Kenya Flower Council is reporting losses of USD million day for

the Kenyan flower industry For Kenya the flower industry is its main export earner

and 97% of the flowers produced are exported to the EU They are all transported by



air as time is of the essence for delicate and highly perishable products like cut

flowers

For some of Kenyas flower businesses the current difficulties could be the straw that

breaks the camels back Cut-flower prices have been under pressure for more than

two years now because of the growing global supply of cut flowers and drop in

demand in Europe resulting from the economic downturn Moreover the Kenyan

flower industry has suffered due to the prolonged drought

Impact on seafood industry significant and widespread

The short-term impact of the flight ban on the seafood industry is significant and

widespread Rabobanks seafood analyst Gorjan Nikolik adds Western Europe is

major importer of seafood part of which is fresh and transported by plane Suppliers

will need to find alternative routes to reach their market resulting in higher costs

The salmon farming sector is less impacted than the wild catch in the North Atlantic

Located in Norway and Scotland salmon farmers can use land transport to reach the

main European markets Some airports such as those in Sweden and northern

Norway are still open for exports to Russia Asia and sporadic flights to North

America said Nikolik Early estimates indicate that so far lost exports by Norwegian

salmon farmers alone are around GBP million

Looking forward

In the coming weeks the true magnitude of the impact of the volcanic eruption and

the resulting airspace closure will become clear for food agribusiness If more

volcanic eruptions follow and planes have to be grounded again the discussions on

vulnerability and desirability of air-freighted food transportation will definitely

proceed

The current situation may lead those farmers and traders who are largely dependent

on air freight to consider options for reducing their dependency on single mode of

transportation or single market Furthermore the current situation reinforces the

importance of companys flexibility and financial buffer to overcome unforeseen

challenges



Rabobank Group

Alternative to bank tax

22-4-2010 Economic news

The prevailing public opinion is rightly that taxpayers should not have to pay for the

damage in the event of financial system crisis Within well-functioning financial

sector this risk should be borne first and foremost by the market players themselves

and not by the state Chief Executive Officer Rabobank Group Piet Moerland says

bank tax

Numerous voices worldwide are adamantly calling for the introduction of bank tax

The idea is that this tax can be used to form an emergency fund that can absorb any

future system crises and consequently protect taxpayers from having to foot the bill

for the damage It is perfectly understandable that this idea is being put forward

particularly in climate in which the banks are being held accountable for

contributing to the financial crisis by taking what in retrospect turned out to be

irresponsible risks

better alternative to bank tax

We do not however believe that the idea of bank tax is good concept The

primary reason am saying this is not because Rabobank has been able to weather the

financial crisis on its own strength without having to appeal for state support The

main point for me is that there is better alternative to bank tax that is aimed at

achieving the same objective protecting taxpayers from having to pay for the

damage Whats more unlike bank tax our plan can actually help prevent another

financial system crisis

Rabobank recently introduced an innovative bond to the market with tremendous

success This bond features the unique characteristic that the majority of the debt will

be converted into equity should something along the lines of system crisis occur In

plain language it is security that will instantly be transformed in the event of stress

situation It is loan that would then turn into core capital in other words the buffer

capital required to absorb shocks Rabobank pays institutional investors risk

premium as remuneration for creating this flexibility in the balance sheet in exchange

for their willingness to absorb this stress risk

It is important to note in this regard that Rabobank as one of the worlds strongest

banks needs this instrument the least of all the system banks We have however

Rabobank



nonetheless taken this step because we believe it enables us to establish standard in

the market Fellow banks in other countries have expressed keen interest in finding

out more about the ins and outs of this instrument

An emergency fund
It essentially comes down to the fact that the new regulations for banks Basel III

will not only tighten the requirements regarding the amount of available capital core

capital but will also demand banks to hold sufficient amount of this capital dubbed

contingent convertible capital to ensure that every banks buffers are adequate to

survive on their own strength without state support in the event of system crisis In

other words every systemrelevant bank will be required to create an emergency

fund tailored to its specific risk profile that can be activated should crisis situation

arise

The moral hazard problem

This plan is better than bank tax bank tax would create fund that banks that take

excessive risk i.e the moral hazard problem could turn to in the event of an

emergency And that is exactly what we need to avoid Banks that take excessive risk

are precisely the ones that should not receive assistance and should have to bear the

brunt of their own actions

sharp eye on risk profile

Requiring bondholders to pay for the damage themselves means they will have large

vested interest in keeping sharp eye on the related banks risk profile bank that

takes excessive risks will be forced to pay an extremely high interest rate on bond

issues and will consequently only be burning their own fingers

The proposed solution fits in perfectly with the proposals for more stringent

regulations Basel III that are currently being developed in Europe The regulator

must furthermore be equipped with more robust legally established authorities

viable alternative

While Rabobank is opposed to the idea of bank tax we are presenting viable

alternative It will achieve exactly the same goal of protecting taxpayers from having

to foot the bill because we are also convinced that this is noble aim Whats more
this alternative will also make it possible to prevent another financial system crisis

Chief Executive Officer Rabobank Group Piet Moerland

This column was printed in de Volkskrant on 20 April 2010
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Rabobank Group Annual Report and Financial

Statements 2009

21-4-2010 Other news

On 21 April 2010 Rabobank Group published the full 2009 Annual Report and

Financial Statements Both documents are available on

www.rabobank.com/annualreports This website has been Rabobank Groups single

location for financial reporting for two years It contains all Rabobank Groups

financial data as well as information on corporate social responsibility The number of

printed reports has been reduced to minimum thus contributing to reduction in use

of paper

The website has been improved over the past few years based on user surveys It

contains number of new features such as the visitors option to compile his or her

own report and chart generator including key data All reports are available in

different formats including html and as downloads with internal and external context

links being provided Another new feature is the video page showing short videos

and visual summary of the year under review

In addition to the annual reports website mobile website has been set up showing

users the 2009 key figures at glance m.keyfiguresrabobank.com

Online reporting

Rabobank Group has added continuing report on CSR facts and figures to its annual

reporting These facts and figures are part of Rabobank Groups reporting and are

available on www.rabobank.comlcsr-figures New figures will be added in the course

of the year

Rabobank Group will publish its Interim Report 2010 on 25 August 2010



Related information

Rabobank Group Annual Reiorts

Rabobank Groirn Annual Results 2009 on your mobile
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Global animal protein markets will become more

heterogeneous 20-4-

2010 Food and Agribusiness news

During the VIV Europe in Utrecht on 20 April Rabobank analysts Dirk Jan Kennes

and Albert Vernooij addressed the challenges which the global meat sector and the

global egg sector face with the rapidly changing consumer attitude and behaviour

towards food

dynamic meat market towards 2020

Consumer demand for meat will become even more heterogeneous towards 2020
senior industry analyst Dirk Jan Kennes said Next to intrinsic product quality

parameters e.g taste pathogen free animal welfare and environmental parameters

become more important in consumers buying behaviour especially in developed

countries

Sustainability determines opportunities in developed countries especially in the

European markets where competition is intensifying as consumption stagnates and

production increases Sustainability involves animal-friendly accommodation low-

emission sty systems that fit in with the surroundings manure disposal and regionally

closed cycles In the short run opportunities lie mainly in Northern and Northwest

Europe where the markets set strict requirements of sustainably produced meat

Contrary in emerging markets demand of meat is driven by changing diet patterns

due to growing world population rising standards of living and urbanisation This will

heighten competition as demand is outstripping production in many of these countries

given the scarcity of raw materials This makes availability of sufficient raw materials

crucial for the development of the meat industry in these countries

Especially China is facing the dilemma of importing more raw materials to produce

meat locally or to import the meat directly Driven by the growing food industry and

the fact that pigs are less sensitive to diet compositions pork production is likely to

stay in China Poultry relies heavily on straight quality grains and oilseeds Therefore

it can be expected that China accept poultry imports when negotiations ask for it

Feed to meat

In the short term next crop years feedstock prices are expected to remain at their



current highs and will be volatile while from 2010 onwards markets are likely to be

more bearish due to new equilibrium and associated higher stocks levels Kennes

said This will certainly generate production response from farmers

Sustainable eggs

The shift to more sustainable production of eggs is increasing as the consumer

demand for these products is growing in Europe said Industry Analyst Albert

Vernooij Retail is increasingly banning cage eggs in favor of free range eggs driven

by both pressure from animal welfare organizations and the European cage ban on

January 2012 Globally egg demand will continue its steady growth Due to its low

price compared with other proteins eggs are the first protein for consumers moving

from grain based to protein based diet



Rabobank Group

New alliance FMO and Rabobank in emerging
markets

20-4-2010 Press Releases

Joint goal to provide know-how and innovative products for sustainable development

On March 31st FMO CEO Nanno Kleiterp and Rabobank Chairman Piet Moerland

signed Letter of Understanding to further enhance the cooperation between the two

financial institutions in the areas of food and agribusiness Corporate Social

Responsibility and sustainable energy Both FMO and Rabobank have identified the

need to make sustainable development and sustainability an integral part of their

corporate business model The Netherlands-based financial institutions therefore have

joint goal in supporting and encouraging their customers in carrying out their

business in sustainable manner through providing them with know-how and

innovative products that create opportunities for them

concrete extension of this partnership is the alliance between Rabobank
International Services and FMOs Fund Emerging Markets FOM joint initiative of

the Dutch Ministry of Economic Affairs and FMO which aims to provide financing

for Dutch companies investments across many sectors in emerging markets As

result of this alliance Rabobank will source potential FOM-clients from its Dutch

client-base while FMO will share its expertise relating to the joint venture or daughter

companies in emerging markets with Rabobank As such FMO and Rabobank will

jointly but on parallel-basis finance the Dutch mother company Rabobank and

the joint venture or daughter company FMO The aim of this non-exclusive

cooperation is to move more Dutch companies to invest in developing countries and

emerging markets and by doing so support the economy of the specific developing

country

We are very enthusiastic about this partnership Piet Moerland said It is good

example of two entities adding value and joining forces for better service to our

customers The chances to realize opportunities in emerging markets for our clients

will improve as result of this relationship For Rabobank it is another step in our

commitment to support sustainable development and sustainability It is good to see

the partnership taking off with such concrete activity as with the Fund Emerging

Rabobank



Markets FOM for it is not only about the plans that you make Ultimately it is the

action that you will take that will make the difference

At the signing FMOs CEO Kleiterp commented Rabobank already was an

important and much appreciated partner for FMO and this specific cooperation

enables us to better service our clients and serve both Dutch companies and

companies in emerging markets that have growth potential Our ultimate goal is to

provide the best possible financing solutions for entrepreneurs in developing countries

and emerging markets and by doing so stimulate the local economy in sustainable

way
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An international desk down under

16-4-2010 Other news

Rabobank also opened an international desk in Australia and New Zealand this April

It serves Dutch business clients who wish to conduct business activities down under

Ralph Ramdhani is in charge of the desk

No small player

Australia has been familiar territory for Rabobank since 1990 While the bank

launched operations in the region in the early nineties with only limited range of

products and one branch office since 1994 more branch offices have been opened and

the product range has been expanded through the acquisition of the former PIBA

Bank

It shared the same culture as Rabobank and this clearly benefited the introduction of

the brand comments Ramdhani who has been working in Sydney since mid-February

The employees here are proud to work for Rabobank and you can really sense it

Rabobank is currently represented in the region with 54 branch offices in Australia

and 32 branch offices in New Zealand With 1000 FTEs and total assets of more than

19 billion euros Rabobank is clearly no longer small player in these two countries

Gradual development

Despite Rabobanks growing presence in the area an international desk was not

opened in Australia and New Zealand until very recently This is because Rabobank

International is developing this international service for Dutch business clients step by

step The desk for Australia and New Zealand is the fourteenth to be opened

following the introduction of this service in eight European countries Turkey Chile

China Hong Kong and the US Dutch business clients frequently run up against either

much more limited range of services or lack of interest at banks

Rabobank can present Dutch clients with excellent proposals thanks to our ability to

offer international financing constructions and payment services This recently meant

we were able to help arrange financing locally for client of another bank through the

international desks in China the United States and Australia The companys head

office in the Netherlands is consequently now considering moving all their banking

business to Rabobank



Not only food agri

Rabobank has traditionally been genuine food agri bank in Australia and New
Zealand But we provide all the necessary support through our international desk We
are here to serve both food agri clients and Dutch business clients from all other

sectors

As is the case at every International Desk the local member banks in the

Netherlands continue to be the clients contact person throughout the entire process

Ramdhani works behind the scenes with Rabobank colleagues in Australia or New
Zealand and with the International Finance Manager in the Netherlands to ensure that

the bank optimally meets the clients needs

used to work at Rabobank Amsterdam in the Netherlands and was consequently

able to see first-hand how that side of the international partnership operates It is an

absolutely fantastic opportunity to now have the chance to embark on this adventure

here Sydney is sensational city and already feel right at home walk to work

every day without jacket and with big smile on my face What else could person

want
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IMF interference is mixed blessing

12-4-2010 Economic news

The IMF is going to play key role in solving the problems in Greece While only

couple of years ago there were growing calls to abolish the IMF the fund has now
made decisive comeback Its all in the game Rabobank Chief Economist Wim
Boonstra takes moment to reflect on the IMF

How happy should we be with the IMFs interference

It is an indisputable fact that the IMF has vast applicable experience in assisting

countries that are facing financial difficulties Over recent decades the fund has

helped dozens of countries to solve their financial problems The IMFs working
method has however also been widely criticised through the years diverse range

of criticisms have been levelled at the IMF One point of criticism is targeted at the

core of the medicine this institution administers that is based on less government

interference greater market forces and sound financial policy While there is

incidentally in my opinion nothing wrong with this approach the IMF has always
been under fire within the circles of development economists

Mixed blessing

The liberalisation of cross-border financial transactions constituted set component of

the IMF prescription Unrestricted cross-border financial transactions are at best

mixed blessing for countries whose financial systems have not yet been fully

developed This was revealed during the Asia crisis in the late 990s during which the

IMF was said to have played an excellent role This crisis caused series of

countries to become financially and economically infected and as result they too

ended up in difficulties Chile was one of the countries at the time that paid little

attention to the IMFs recommendations on international capital transactions and it

ultimately withstood the aftermath of this crisis by far the best of all the emerging
countries Just to refresh your memory the IMF had not exactly applauded the

Chilean approach before that time When the Asia crisis broke out most Asian

countries made the walk of shame to the IMF with the exception of Malaysia It

followed its own path and introduced capital controls on international financial

transactions While Malaysia was consequently bombarded with criticism in the end

it did not emerge from the crisis any worse off than the other affected countries

Whats more the countries that did turn to the IMF considered the imposed policy

conditions to be so unreasonable that to this very day they continue to keep their



currency exchange rates undervalued and to build up unimaginable amounts of

reserves to ensure they will never again have to resort to the IMF

Learning from past experiences

If the IMF had given countries greater freedom to curb incoming capital transactions

the entire Asia crisis might never have even come about But in reality the stance

taken by the IMF some twelve years ago actually means that the fund has

unintentionally also played into the hand of the current global balance of payments

imbalances This is because the converse side of the inconceivable amounts of

reserves is the US savings deficit which is one of the main causes of the current

crisis It is nonetheless commendable that the IMF has demonstrated that it is an

organisation that learns from past experiences It has drawn lessons from its mistakes

and has modified the orthodoxy regarding international finance The IMF is also

completely conscious of the role it played in the run-up to the current crisis IMF

Chief Strauss-Kahn spoke about this fact in Istanbul only last year

So should we be happy with the interference of the IMF
Only history will tell whether the EMU will be better off thanks to the IMF

interference It is however in any event good thing that the European political

world will continue to keep an eye on these developments Because while the IMF is

on the whole fine institution it is certainly not infallible

Dr Wim Boonstra Chief Economist Rabobank

Dr Boonstra has published numerous articles on banking financial markets

international economics and business cycles


